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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND ANALYSTS REPORTS
Thisreport containsforward looking statements within the meaning of thefederal securities laws, including statements concerning future rates,
revenues, costs, capital expenditures, and financing needs and availability and statements of management's expectations and beliefs. Actual
results could differ materially from these statements as a result of many factors, including future economic, regulatory and political conditions
in Alaska and the United States.
Investors should also be aware that while Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. ("ACS Group" or the "Company") does, at various
times, communicate with securities analysts, it is against the Company's policy to disclose to them any material non-public information or other
confidential information. Accordingly, shareholders should not assume that ACS Group agrees with any statement or report issued by an analyst

irrespective of the content of the statement or report. To the extent that reports issued by securities analysts contain any projections, forecasts or
opinions, such reports are not the responsibility of ACS Group.

INTRODUCTION

ACS Group was formed in 1998 by Fox Paine & Company, members of theformer senior management team of Pacific Telecom, Inc., and other
experienced telecommunicationsindustry executives. InMay 1999, the Company acquired Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc.'s Alaska
properties ("CenturyTel's Alaska Properties’) and Anchorage Telephone Utility or ATU (collectively the "Predecessor Entities'). CenturyTel's
Alaska Properties were the incumbent provider of local tel ephone services in Juneau, Fairbanks and more than 70 rural communities in Alaska
and provided Internet services to customers statewide. CenturyTel's Alaska Properties included ACSof Fairbanks, Inc., ACSof Alaska, Inc.,
and ACS of the Northland, Inc. ATU was the largest local exchange carrier ("LEC") in Alaska and provided local telephone and long distance
services primarily in Anchorage and cellular services statewide. ATU provided long distance servicesthrough ATU Long Distance, Inc. and
cellular services through MACtel, Inc. These companies are now known as ACS of Anchorage, Inc., ACS Long Distance, Inc. and ACS
Wireless, Inc. On October 29, 1999, the Company changed its name from ALEC Holdings, Inc. to Alaska Communications Systems Group,
Inc.

The financia statements for the ACS Group represent the operations of the following entities:

- Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.

- Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc. ("ACSHoldings")

- ACSof Alaska, Inc. ("ACSAK") (formerly Telephone Utilitiesof Alaska, Inc.)

- ACSof the Northland, Inc. ("ACSN") (formerly Telephone Utilities of the Northland, Inc.)

- ACSof Fairbanks, Inc. ("ACSF") (formerly PTI Communications of Alaska, Inc.)

- ACSof Anchorage, Inc. ("ACSA") (formerly Alaska Communications Systems, Inc.)

- ACSWirdess, Inc. ("ACSW") (formerly MACtel, Inc.)

- ACSLong Distance, Inc. ("ACSLD") (formerly ATU Long Distance, Inc.)

- ACSTdevision, L.L.C.("ACSTV") (formerly Alaskan Choice Television, L.L.C.)

- ACSlinternet, Inc. ("ACSI") (formerly PTINet, Inc.)

- Internet Alaska, Inc. ("IAI")

ACS Group istheleading diversified, facilities-based telecommunications provider in Alaska, offeringlocal telephone, cellular, long distance,
data and Internet servicesto business and residential customers
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throughout the state. ACS Group isthe only telecommunications provider in Alaska using its own network facilities to provide full service
end-to-end communicationsto its customers.

At various times, ACS Group evaluates opportunities for establishing or acquiring other telecommunications businesses through acquisitions or
otherwise in Alaska and elsewhere in the United States, and may make investments in such businessesin the future. ACS Group has focused its
attention on local telephone, cellular, interexchange network and data services, and Internet businesses.

LOCAL TELEPHONE. With almost 330,000 access lines, representing approximately 70% of theaccess lines in Alaska, ACS Group isthe
largest LEC in Alaska and the 14th largest in the U.S. The Company provides service to al of the state's major population centers, including
Anchorage, Juneau and Fairbanks.

CELLULAR. ACSGroup isthe largest and only statewide provider of cellular servicesin Alaska, currently serving approximately 76,000
subscribers. Itscellular network covers over 460,000 residents, including all major population centers and highway corridors. The Company
recently upgraded its network to be fully digital in substantially all of its service areas.

INTERNET. ACS Group isthe second largest provider of Internet access services in Alaska with over 45,000 customers. ACSGroup offers
dedicated and dial-up Internet access and digital subscriber line, or DSL, Internet access to its customers.

INTEREXCHANGE NETWORK AND OTHER

Wireless Cable Television. Long-distance. ACS Group provides long distance and other interexchange services to over 57,000 customersin
Alaska. ACSGroup has migrated long distance traffic on main routes from leased circuits onto its own network infrastructure.

Wireless Cable Television. ACS Group provides wireless cable television servicesin the Fairbanks and Anchorage serviceareas. ACS Group is
evaluating opportunities to expand its offering of wirelesscable television services.

PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND REVENUE SOURCES

ACS Group offersabroad portfolio of telecommunications services to residential and business customers in its markets. The Company's service
offerings are locally managed to better serve the needs of each community. The Company believes that, as the communications marketplace
continues to converge and competition continuesto enter the market, the ability to offer an integrated package of communicationsproducts will
provide a distinct competitive advantage, aswell as increase customer loyalty, and thereby decrease customer turnover. The Company
complementsits local tel ephone services by actively marketing itscellular, Internet, and interexchange network and other service offerings.

Profit or loss and total assets for each of the Company's segmentsis disclosed in Note 14 "Business Segments' of the Alaska Communications
Systems Group, Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements. The followingtable sets forth the components of ACS Group's consolidated revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2000 and pro forma combined revenuesfor theyears ended December 31, 1999 and 1998 (dollarsin
millions):
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REVENUE FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998
CONSOLI DATED COMBI NED COMBI NED
AMOUNT PERCENT AMOUNT PERCENT AMOUNT PERCENT
REVENUE BY SOURCE:
Local network service $92.4 29. 5% $94.5 31. 5% $93.1 33. 1%
Net wor k access 105. 2 33.6 105. 3 35.1 98.6 35.0
Directory advertising 32.0 10. 2 27.9 9.3 26.5 9.4
Der egul ated and ot her revenue 21.8 7.0 21.2 7.1 19.6 7.0
Local tel ephone 251.4 80.3 248.9 83.0 237.8 84.4
Cel | ul ar 39.5 12.6 36.1 12.0 31.8 11.3
I nt er net 9.2 2.9 4.9 1.6 5.2 1.8
I nt erexchange network and ot her 12.9 4.1 10.0 3.3 6.8 2.4
Tot al $313.0 100. 0% $299. 9 100. 0% $281. 6 100. 0%

LOCAL TELEPHONE

The Company provides local telephone service through its four LECs. Local telephone revenue consist of local network service, network
access, directory advertising, and deregulated and other revenue, each of whichis described below.

Local Network Service

Basic Local Network Service. Basic local network service enables customersto originate and receive telephone calls within a defined
"exchange" area. The Company provides basic local services on aretail basisto residential and business customers, generally for a fixed
monthly charge. The maximum amount that can be charged to a customer for basic local services is determined by rate proceedings involving
the Regulatory Commission of Alaska ("RCA"). The Company charges business customershigher ratesto recover a portion of the costs of
providing local service to residential customers as is customary in theindustry. Onaverage, U.S. business rates for basic local serviceshave
been over two times therates of residential customers. Basiclocal service aso includes non-recurring charges to customers for the installation
of new products and services and recurring charges for enhanced features such as call waiting and caller ID.

At December 31, 2000, approximately 56% of ACSGroup's retail access lines served residential customers, while 44% served business
customers. Currently, monthly charges for basic local service for residentia customers range from $9.42 to $16.30 in ACS Group's service
areas compared to the national average for urban areas of $13.84. Monthly charges for business customers range from $17.65 to $26.05 in ACS
Group's service areas compared to the national average for urban areas of $34.31.

4
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The table below setsforth the annual growth in access linesfor ACS Group and its Predecessor Entities from December 31, 1996 to December
31, 2000. The number of access lines shown for 1997 includes approximately 37,000 access lines that were acquired by CenturyTel's Alaska
Properties as part of its acquisition of the City of Fairbanks Telephone Operationin October 1997. The number of access lines shown
represents all revenue producing access lines connected to both retail and wholesale customers.

AS OF DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Retail access lines 272,936 281, 726 266, 704 275, 549 237,721
Whol esal e access |ines 17, 303 15, 680 13,010 5, 106 -
Unbundl ed network el ements 39, 221 28, 202 20, 680 2,700 -
Total Local Tel ephone Access Lines 329, 460 325, 608 300, 394 283, 355 237,721
Per cent age Growt h 1. 2% 8. 4% 6. 0% 19. 2% 5.4%

On Junel, 1999, aspart of the consolidation of its operating and billing systems, ACS Group conformed the methodology by which the number
of access linesis calculated across all of its local exchangesto that used for CenturyTel's Alaska Properties. The Company intendsto use the
method used to calculate access linesin servicefor CenturyTel's Alaska Properties to calculate its access linesin al future periods. In the table
above, for the year ended December 31, 1999, the Company shows ATU's number of access lines calculated using this method. If the number of
ATU's access linesin service at December 31, 1998 wascomputed under this same method, the number of access linesat ATU would increase
by 4,940 andthe total number of access lineswould equa 305,334 and the combined growth percentage would be 6.6% for 1999. Due to
limited data availableto ACS Group, no adjustments to the access linesin service for any year prior to 1998 have been computed.

Management believes that future access line growth is dependent on among other things, the economic outlook in Alaska and the United States,
the impact of technology on line demand and population growth in the Company's serving aress.

Competitive Local Network Service. The Company also provides interconnection through wholesale access (the "1996 Act") to itsbasic loca
service and through leasing unbundled network elements("UNES") to itscompetitors as required by the Telecommunications Act of 1996.
Revenues for these services areincluded in local network service revenues. The Company currently provides 56,524 lines to competitors in the
Anchorage service area on either awholesale or UNE basis. UNE rates in Anchorage are currently $13.85, which, in the opinion of
management, is below the Company'sforward |ooking and embedded cost. The RCA haslifted the Company's rural exemption for the
Fairbanks and Juneau serving areas and awarded interconnection ratesto a competitor on a UNE basisof $19.19 and $16.71, respectively,
whichthe Company also believes to be below its cost. Asof March 8, 2001, no facilities have been provided to competitors on awholesale or
UNE basisin Fairbanksor Juneau. See "Business -- Regulation” for further discussion of regulatory matters including interconnection under the
1996 Act.

While there is some seasonality, operating resultsfor local telephone services are not materially impacted by seasonal factors.
Network Access

Network access services arisein connection with the origination and termination of long distance, or toll, callsand typically involve more than
one company in the provision of such long distance service on an end-to-end basis. Sincetoll calls are generally billed to the customer
originating the call, amechanismisrequired to compensate each company providing servicesrelating to the call. This mechanismisthe access
charge, which the Company bills to each interexchange carrier for the use of its facilities to access the customer. The Company also receives
universal service revenue, whichit includes in its reported network access revenue. These components of network access revenue are described
below.
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Intrastate Access Charges. ACSGroup generates intrastate access revenue when an intrastate long distance call that involves an ACS Group
LEC and an interexchange carrier is originated and terminated withinthe samestate. The interexchange carrier paysthe Company an intrastate
access payment for either terminating or originating the call. The Company records thedetails of thecall through its carrier access hilling
system and receives the access payment from theinterexchange carrier. The company also provides billing and collection ("B&C") servicesfor
interexchange carriers through negotiated B& C agreements for certain types of toll callsplaced by the Company's local customers. ACS
Group's LECsin competitive areas are under their own stand-alone tariffs for intrastate access. In non-competitive areas, ACS Group's LECs
participate in a statewide tariff and access charge pooling arrangement that is administered by the Alaska Exchange Carriers Association
("AECA"). The access charge for ACS Group's intrastate serviceis regulated by the RCA.

Interstate Access Charges. ACSGroup generates interstate access revenue when an interstate long distance cal is originated from an Alaskan
local calling area served by an ACS Group LEC and isterminated in aloca calling areain another state, and vice versa. The Company bills
interstate access charges in a manner similar to intrastate access charges. However, interstate access charges areregulated by the Federal
Communications Commission ("FCC") rather than the RCA. ACS Group's LECs participate in a nationwide tariff and access charge pooling
arrangement that is administered by the National Exchange Carrier Association ("NECA™) for all ACS Group'sLECs except ACSA. ACSA
participates in the NECA common linetariff, but has its own interstate access tariff for traffic sensitive and special access services.

Universal Service Revenue. Universal service revenue supplements the amount of local service revenue the Company receives to ensure that
basic local service ratesfor customers in high cost rural areas are not significantly higher than rates charged in lower cost urban and suburban
areas. The 1996 Act prescribed new standards applicable to universal service, including mechanisms for defining the types of servicesto be
provided as part of a universal service program, specific goalsor criteria applicableto universal service programs, new qualificationsfor
receipt of universal service funding and new requirements for contributions to universal service funding. The FCC, in conjunction with a
federal-state joint board composed of FCC and state commission members, has been working since passage of the 1996 Act to implement these
new statutory provisions. The FCC haschosen to address universal service matters, initially for non-rural telephone companies, and
subsequently for rural telephone companies. New cost-identification models for non-rural local carriers wereadopted effective on January 1,
2000. New rules for rural telephone companies, applicable to all ACSGroup LEC operations except ACSA, have been proposed to the FCC by
the Joint Board. If these rules are adopted in 2001, they are unlikely to have a material impact on ACS Group's revenue.

Operating results for network access services are not materially impacted by seasonal factors.

Directory Advertising
Directory advertising revenues are derived by ACSGroup principally from yellow pages advertising in thelocal telephone books of each of the
Company'slocal exchange service areas. The Company provides thisservice under a contractual arrangement with a directory publishing

company. Directory advertising isbilled in conjunction withlocal telephone service. ACS Group competes for directory advertising servicesin
substantialy all of its serviceareas.

Deregulated and Other Revenue
Deregulated and other revenues consist of B& C contracts, space and power rents, pay telephone service, customer premise equipment sales,
and other miscellaneous revenues generated by the Company'sLECs. ACS Group seeksto capitalizeon itslocal presence and network
infrastructure by offering these additional services to customers and interexchange carriers.

6
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CELLULAR

ACS Group'scellular businessis currently managed separately from its LEC business and is subject to a different regulatory framework and
cost structure. Cellular servicesare provided statewide under the ACS Wireless and MACtel brand names. The primary sources of cellular
revenue include subscriber access charges, airtime usage, toll charges, connection fees, roaming revenues, and enhanced features, such ascaller
ID and call waiting. A subscriber may purchase services separately or may purchase rate plansthat package these servicesin different ways to
fit different calling patterns and desired features.

The table below setsforth the annual growth in the number of cellular subscribers served and total covered population for ACS Group and its
Predecessor Entities from December 31, 1996 to December 31, 2000.

AS OF DECEMBER 31

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Estimated covered popul ation 462, 057 460, 802 460, 162 453, 361 353,674
Endi ng subscri bers 75, 933 73, 068 66, 572 55, 131 39, 329
Endi ng penetration 16. 4% 15. 9% 14. 5% 12. 2% 11. 1%

Although ACSGroup hasachieved cellular penetration rates of 17% in Anchorage and Fairbanks, and 21% in Kenai, penetration rates in the
Company'sother service areas are significantly lower. Management believes there are opportunities to improve the penetration rates of its
cellular operations in Juneau. Management also believes that the market for cellular serviceswill continueto grow withthe expansion of the
cellular industry as awhole.

ACS Group aso owns 10 megahertz E Block PCS licenses covering Anchorage, Juneau and Fairbanks, which were purchased by CenturyTel's
Alaska Properties in 1997. Management is analyzing thebuild out of these licenses and technical aternatives for using thisspectrum to enhance
the Company'sservice offeringsin its overall business.

Cellular revenuedeclines in thewinter monthsand increases in the summer months due to Alaska's northern latitude and the wideswing in
available daylight. However, operating results for cellular services are not materially impacted by seasonal factors.

INTERNET

ACS Group provides Internet access services to approximately 45,000 customers at December 31, 2000. In order to offer Internet access, the
Company provides local dia-up telephone numbersfor its customers. ACS Group also offers high speed DSL. These local dia-up numbersand
dedicated DSL connections allow customersaccess, through a modem connection on their computer, to a series of computer servers ACS
Group owns and maintains. These servers allow customers to access their e-mail accounts and to be routed to local access points that connect
customers to the Internet. ACSGroup charges customers either aflat rate for unlimited Internet usage or a usage sensitive rate, which, in either
case, isbilled on customers local telephone hill.

Operating results for Internet access services are not materially impacted by seasonal factors.

INTEREXCHANGE NETWORK AND OTHER
Long Distance Services. ACS Group's predecessors began offering long distance services on aresale basisin October 1997, primarily in
Anchorage. The Company currently hasapproximately 57,000 long distance customers and less than 5% of total long distance revenuesin
Alaska. Before August 1998, CenturyTel's Alaska Properties were precluded from entering the long distance business by a non-competition

agreement with AT& T Alascom which wassigned when Pacific Telecom sold Alascom, Inc.to AT&T in 1995. To date, ACS Group'slong
distance operations have generated significant operating losses. The Company is evaluating its long distance strategy.

7
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In April 1999, ACS Group entered into a settlement agreement with General Communication, Inc. ("GCI") under which the Company agreed to
enter into a number of new business arrangements andto settle a number of outstanding disputes, including GCl's opposition to ACS Group's
acquisitions of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and ATU. Aspart of this agreement andto support other aspects of the Company's business
strategy, ACS Group purchased from GCI $19.5 million of fiber capacity for high-speed linkswithin Alaska and for termination of trafficin the
lower 49 states. Subsequently, the Company entered into an amendment to the purchase agreement with GCI, whereby, among other things,
ACS Group agreed to purchase additional capacity for $19.5 million. The Company fulfilled this commitment to purchase additional capacity
onJanuary 12, 2001.

ACS Group is subject to numerous conditions imposed by the RCA and, to alesser degree, by the FCC on the manner in which the Company
conducts its long distance operations. The restrictions areintended to prohibit cross-subsidization from the regulated LEC to thelong distance
affiliate and discrimination against other long distance providersin favor of a LEC'slong distance affiliate. Among the conditions applied to
ACS Group'slong distance affiliates are those which:

- require the Company to hold all books and records, management, employees and administrative services separate, except that services may be
provided among affiliates through arm'slength affiliated interest agreements,

- prohibit ACSAK, ACSN and ACSF properties from bundling local and long distance servicesuntil competition develops in their local
markets and

- prevent the Company fromjoint ownership of telephone transmission or switching facilities with the LEC and from using the LEC's assets as
collateral for its own indebtedness.

Asaresult of theintroduction of competition in ACSA's local service areas, the Alaska Public Utilities Commission ("APUC"), predecessor to
the RCA, lifted the restriction on bundling of local and long distance services in ACSA'sservice areas in 1998. The status of this bundling
restriction for ACSA is unclear based on recent RCA actions.

Operating results for long distance services are not materially impacted by seasona factors.

Wireless Cable Television. ACS Group owns ACSTV, awireless cable television provider. ACSTV provides wireless cabletelevision services
over assigned UHF frequencies to approximately 2,300 customers in the Company's Anchorage and Fairbanks serviceareas. ACS Group is
evaluating opportunities to expand its offering of wirelesscable television services.

NETWORK FACILITIES

Asof December 31, 2000, ACS Group owned 74 exchanges serving approximately 330,000 access lines. All of the Company'sexchanges are
served by digital switchesprovided predominately by Nortel Networks. ACS Group's switches are linked through a combination of extensive
aerial, underground and buried cable, including485 miles of fiber optic cable, as well as digital microwave and satellite links. The Company
has 100% single-party services (one customer per access line), and believes substantially all of its switches have current generic software
upgrades installed, allowing for the full range of enhanced customer features.

ACS Group hasintegrated numerous network elements to offer avariety of servicesand applications that meet theincreasingly sophisticated
needs of customers. These elementsinclude Signal System 7 signaling networks, voice messaging platforms, digital switching, digital
subscriber lines and, in some communities, integrated service digital network access. Asthe telecommunications industry experiences
significant changes in technology, customer demand and competition, the Company intends to introduce additional enhancements.

8

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




Network operations and monitoring are provided by ACS Group's network operating control center located in Anchorage. The network
operating control center has technicians staffed or on-call seven days aweek, 24 hours a day. Automated alarm systemsare in place should
problems arise with the network after normal business hours. The Company also has customer care call center facilities in Anchorage and
Fairbanks along with additional customer care facilitiesin Juneau, Sitka, Kenai/Soldotna and Kodiak. All of these facilities offer extended
business hours to efficiently handle customer inquiries and orders for service.

ACS Group'scellular operations consist of three switching centers, 89 cell sites and four repeaters covering substantially all major population
centers and highway corridors in Alaska. The Company uses Ericsson switchesand radios for its cellular operations. The Company converted
substantially of al of itsswitching and cell site equipment to digital servicein 2000. The Company'sswitching and cell siteinfrastructureis
linked by fiber and digital microwave. ACSGroup's network operating control center located in Anchorage also supports all cellular switches in
ACS Group's markets. Customer care centers arelocated in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau and Kenai/Soldotna.

The Company is enhancing its interexchange network to accommodate developing products and technology. The Company isworking with
Nortel Networks and other vendors on a multiple phase conversion of its network fromatime division multiple access, or TDMA, circuit
switched platformto an asynchronoustransfer mode/Internet protocol, or ATM/IP. ACS Group believes theimplementation of an ATM/IP
network will enhance itscapability to provide a complete suite of telecommunications and data services and achieve significant operating
efficiencies. The Company completed thefirst phase of the conversion in 1999, whichresulted in themigration of its network trafficto its fiber
optic transport facilitiesacquired in June 1999. The Company completed the second phase in 2000, which involved the conversion of its
transport connections between Anchorage and each of Fairbanks, Kenai, Juneau and Seattle from TDMA to ATM/IP. ACS Group expects to
compl ete the implementation of its ATM/IP network by year-end 2002. Planned network enhancements prior to year-end 2002 will include the
installation of call serversin Anchorage and either Fairbanks or Juneau and the conversion of network switching nodes to accommodate
ATM/IP treffic.

Completion of the ATM/IP network will enablethe Company to provide an array of |P products throughout its core business. ACS Group
currently offers framerelay, and will offer each of the following services as the necessary network elementsare completed:

- virtua private networks,

- virtua private lines,

- transparent local area networks(LAN),

- proprietary LANsand wide area networks (WAN) and

- high speed Internet access.

CUSTOMERS

ACS Group hasthree basic typesof customers for the servicesof its LECs:

- business and residential customerslocated in their local serviceareas that pay for local phone service,

- interexchange carriersthat pay for access to long distance calling customerslocated withinthe Company'slocal service areas and

- competitivelocal exchange carriers ("CLECs") that pay for wholesale access to the Company's network in order to provide competitive local
service on either awholesale or UNE basis as prescribed under the 1996 Act.

Approximately 56% of ACS Group's retail access lines served residential customers, while 44% served business customers.

9
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ACS Group aso has approximately 76,000 cellular subscribers, 45,000 Internet subscribers and 57,000 long-distance subscribers consisting
substantially of retail residential and business consumers.

No single ACS Group customer represented more than 10% of its total 2000 consolidated revenue.
COMPETITION

Local Telephone Service
Incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECS") may be subject to any of threetypesof competition:
- facilities-based competition from providers withtheir own local service network,

- resale competition fromresale interconnection, or providers who purchaseloca service from thelLEC at wholesale rates and resell these
services to their customersand

- competition from UNE interconnection, that is, providers who lease UNEs from the ILEC.

The geographic characteristics of rural areas presently make the entrance of most facilities-based competitors uneconomical because of the
significant capital investment required and thelimited market size. Therefore, ACS Group believes competition islikely to come from resale
interconnection or UNE interconnection. There are no regional Bell operating companiesin Alaska.

In September 1997, GCI and AT& T Alascom, thetwo largest long distance carriersin Alaska, began providing competitive local telephone
services in Anchorage. GCl competes principally through UNE interconnection with ACSA facilities, while AT& T Alascom competes
primarily by reselling ACSA's services. Competition is based upon price and pricing plans, types of services offered, customer service, billing
services, quality and reiability. GCI has focused principally on advertising discount plans for bundled services. AT& T Alascom's strategy has
been to resell ACSA'sservice as part of apackage of local and long distance services. Asaresult, ACSA now has approximately 37%
competitive market penetration as of December 31, 2000. The Company expects GCl and AT& T Alascom to continueto compete for local
telephone business.

As"rural telephone companies' under the 1996 Act, ACS Group'srural LECs have historically been exempt from the obligation to leasetheir
facilities or resell their services on awholesale discount basisto CLECs seeking interconnection. However, on June 30, 1999 the APUC
ordered these exemptions terminated for certain rural service areas of ACS Group, and on October 11, 1999, the RCA, which replaced the
APUC on July 1, 1999, sustained the APUC'sorder. Asaresult, ACS Group'srural LECs entered into interconnection arbitration with GCI.
Thisarbitration resulted in arbitration agreementsfor certain rural service areas of ACS Group. See "Business -- Regulation” for further
discussion.

ACS Group expects increasing competition from providers of various services that provide users the means to bypass its network. Long
distance companies may construct, modify or leasefacilities to transmit traffic directly from a user to along distance company. Cable television
companies also may be able to modify their networks to partially or completely bypass the Company's local network.

In addition, while cellular telephone services have historically complemented traditional LEC services, the Company anticipates that existing
and emerging wirel ess technol ogies may increasingly compete with LEC services. For example, AT& T hasrecently introduced its fixed
wireless product to the Anchorage market. At thistimeit isnot possible to predict theimpact of thisproduct onthe Company'sshare of the
local market. Technological developments in cellular telephone features, personal communications services, digital microwave and other
wireless technologies are expected to further permit the development of alternativesto traditional wireline services.
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Cdlular Services

The wireless telecommunications industry is experiencing significant technological change, as evidenced by the increasing pace of
improvementsin the capacity and quality of digital technology, shorter cycles for new products and enhancements, and changes in consumer
preferences and expectations. ACS Group believes that the demand for wireless telecommunications services islikely to increase significantly
as equipment costs and servicerates continueto decline and equipment becomes more convenient and functional. Competition is based on
price, quality, network coverage, packaging features and brand reputation. In addition, there are six PCSlicenseesin each of the Company's
cellular service areas. ACSGroup holds PCS licenses covering Anchorage, Fairbanks and Juneau. ACS Group currently competes with at least
one other wireless provider in each of its cellular service areas, including AT& T Wireless Services, Alaska DigiTel, and Dobson
Communications. At least one new wireless competitor is expected to enter the Alaska market in 2001. The Company believes that the unique
and vast terrain and the high cost of PCS system buildout make entrance into markets outside Anchorage uneconomical at this time.

Asthe market for simple cellular voice services approaches maturity, providers are experiencing downward pressure on price. ACS Group is
positioning itself to offset thisimpact by bringing new higher margin services to market. By developing productsfor targeted market segments,
the Company isleveraging the advantagein market share and geographical coverageto attract new customers andincrease monthly revenues
from existing customers. New products will be coming to market in 2001 that will address the specific needs of the oil and construction
industries. New consumer offerings will also cometo market in 2001. These new services are expected to provide a meansfor differentiation,
produce additional revenues and increase margins.

Long Distance Services

The long distance telecommunications market is highly competitive. Competition in the long distance businessis based on price, customer
service, billing servicesand quality. The Company currently offerslong distance serviceto customerslocated throughout the state of Alaska;
however, it isfocused primarily on the more populous communitiesin thestate. AT& T Alascom and GCI arecurrently the two major
competing long distance providersin Alaska. The Company currently hasless than 5% of total long distance revenuesin Alaska. The Company
provides traditional "1+" direct distance dialing (DDD), toll-free services, calling cards and private line services for dataand voice

applications. In late 2000, The Company introduced its flat-rate long distance "Infinite Minutes' program, which helped to increase its market
share intheresidential long distance segment over previous periods. ACS Group expects to continue offering innovative products of this nature
inthe future.

Internet Services
The market for Internet access servicesis highly competitive. There arefew significant barriers to entry, and the Company expects that
competition will intensify in thefuture. ACS Group currently competes with a number of established online services companies, interexchange
carriers and cable companies. The Company believes that its ability to compete successfully will depend upon a number of factors, including
the reliability and security of its network infrastructure, the ease of access to the Internet, and the pricing policies of its competitors.
SALESAND MARKETING
ACS Group and its Predecessor Entities have historically conducted their sales and marketing operations for each of their respective products
on a stand-alone basis, with each product line having its own sales force and marketing department. ACS Group has consolidated its product

and service offerings under the " Alaska Communications Systems" and "ACS" brands, subject to regulatory and strategic business
considerations.

Key components of the Company's sales and marketing strategy include:
- marketing current and future service offerings aggressively, including packaged service offerings,
- centralizing marketing functions and
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- enhancing direct sales efforts.

ACS Group believes that it can leverage its position as an integrated, one-stop provider of telecommunications services withstrong positionsin
local access, cellular, long distance and data, and Internet markets. By pursuing, within the bounds of any applicable regulatory constraints, a
marketing strategy that takes advantage of these characteristics and that facilitates cross-selling and packaging of it products and services, the
Company believes it can increase penetration of new product offerings, improve customer retention rates, increase itsshare of its customers
overal telecommunications expenditures, and achieve continued revenue and operating cash flow growth.

ACS Group hasbegun, to alimited extent, within regulatory bounds, marketing local telephone servicesin attractively priced, packaged service
offeringswith cellular, long distance and Internet services. However, ACS Group believes packaged offerings are popular with customers
because they alow customers to enjoy pricing for a number of servicesat a substantial discount to ala carte pricing of individua services.
Subject to regulatory limitations, the Company intends to expand thisstrategy, whichit expects will increase the average revenue per customer,
and resultin amoreloya and satisfied customer base and in reduced churn.

The Company has established asales and marketing organization where marketing strategies will be centralized and sales functionswill be
based locally. To enhanceits direct selling efforts, the Company has established additional customer and retail service centers inits larger
service areas, such as Juneau and Kenai/Soldotna, and intends to enhance its call center operations through a combination of technology
investments, training, and incentive compensation programs for call center employees.

EMPLOYEES

ACS Group considers employee relations to be good. As of December 31, 2000, the Company employed atotal of 1,163 regular full-time
employees, 857 of whom were represented by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 1547 ("IBEW"). On November 2,
1999, the IBEW membership for ACSGroup ratified theterms of the new master collective bargaining agreement that governs the termsand
conditions of employment for all IBEW represented employees working for ACS Group in the State of Alaska. The master agreement embraces
alabor-management relationship that isfounded on trust, cooperation and shared goals. The November 1999 agreement, which expires
December 31, 2006, provides for wage increases up to 4% in specified years based on theannual increases in the U.S. Department of Labor
CPI-U, the consumer priceindex for Anchorage. The last wageincrease under the agreement was implemented in January 2000 and the next
scheduled wage review isin July 2001. The master agreement also provides escalation in contributions of up to 4% annually for the health and
welfare contributions that are made by ACSGroup on behalf of the represented employee group. There have been no work stoppages or strikes,
and none are anticipated.

ACS Group enjoys good relations withthe employee group that is not represented by the IBEW as well. Non-represented employees qualify for
wage increases based onindividual and company performance. Additionally, employees represented by ACS Group receive health and welfare
packages that are competitive in the marketplace in which ACS Group competes.
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REGULATION
OVERVIEW

The Company's local telephone operating subsidiaries, ACSA, ACSF, ACSAK, and ACSN, are each "telecommunications carriers' and ILECs
under the Communications Act of 1934 (the "Communications Act"), which wasamended by the 1996 Act, and are subject to FCC jurisdiction.
ACSLD, ACS Group's long distance subsidiary, is aso subject to both the FCC and RCA'sregulatory jurisdiction. ACSGroup's cellular and
PCS companies are also subject to FCC jurisdiction because they are telecommunications carriers and because they hold FCC-issued licenses.
The Company's local tel ephone operating companies are also "public utilities' within themeaning of the Alaska statutes and are, therefore,
governed by the applicable rules and regulations of the RCA. The RCA succeeded to the regulatory responsibilities of the APUC when it
ceased to exist on June 30, 1999.

FEDERAL REGULATION

Under the federal regulatory scheme, ILECs arerequired to comply with the Communications Act and the applicable rules and regulations of
the FCC. In substantially overhauling the Communications Act, the 1996 Act was intended to, among other things, €liminate unproductive
regulatory burdens and promote competition. Despite this, telecommunications carriers are still subject to extensive ongoing regulatory
requirements. For instance, ACS Group's subsidiaries arerequired to maintain accounting records in accordance with the Uniform System of
Accounts, to structure access charges according to FCC rules, andto charge for interstate servicesat arate of return not to exceed arate
prescribed by the FCC. The FCC also must give prior consent to transfers of control and assignments of radio frequency licenses. The FCC
requires ILECs providing access services to file tariffs with the FCC reflecting the rates, termsand conditions of those services. These tariffs
are subject to review and potential objection by the FCC or third parties. Additionally, all of the Company's LECs are "ILECS" within the
meaning of the 1996 Act. Assuch, they are subject to variousrequirements under that Act, including specific interconnection duties such as
providing requesting telecommunications carriers with UNEs and wholesale discounted resale of end user services.

Asof 2001, long distance companies will be precluded from filing tariffs for interstate domestic services. Federal tariffing is being replaced
with Internet web site posting of offers, terms and prices. ACSLD was fully detariffed prior to theend of 2000.

STATE REGULATION

Telecommunications companies subject to the RCA'sjurisdiction are required to obtain certificates of public convenience and necessity prior to
operating as a public utility in Alaska. The RCA is responsible for approving new certificates and any transfersof existing certificates. In
addition, the RCA isresponsible for implementing a portion of the competitive requirements of the 1996 Act, aswell as for regulating intrastate
access and rates for local and other services of local telephone companies. After passage of the 1996 Act, the APUC adopted a planto address
competition issues across Alaska. The APUC established multiple dockets to investigate different competition-related issues, including revising
local and long distance market structures, reforming its intrastate access charge systemand establishing a state universal servicefund. In
addition to itspreliminary actions to mandate access charge depooling for ILECs operating in competitive markets, the RCA made operational
the new Alaska Universal Service Fund ("AUSF"). In a subsequent rulemaking, the RCA revised its eligibility standards for companies
receiving high-cost switching support from the AUSF. These new rules resulted in aloss of support to ACS Group's rural affiliates. Rather than
seeking interim local relief for this cost recovery shift, ACS Group has opted to include consideration of this issuein the more comprehensive
rate proceedings described below.

In connection with regulatory approval of ACS Group's acquisitions of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and ATU in 1999, the APUC imposed
several conditions on its operating companies. Among those conditions was a requirement that ACSA, ACSF, ACSAK, and ACSN each file
revenue regquirement, cost of service and rate design studies no later than July 2001. All of these companies except
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ACSF were aso required to fileupdated depreciation analyses concurrently with the rate case filings. ACS Group is actively involved inthe
production of these filingsand anticipates that acomprehensive schedule will be established after a pre-hearing conference.

Aspreviously noted, restrictions were placed on theability of ACS Group'srural LECsto bundle service offeringswith ACSLD. In October
2000, ACSLD offered itsinnovative, flat-rated long distance plan called "Infinite Minutes." Initialy, the Infinite Minutes was offered in the
interstate jurisdiction and included an eligibility requirement that customers subscribe to ACS Group's local service (or Internet service where
ACS Group'sloca service was not otherwise available). After introducing the interstate plan, ACSGroup's filed a similar instate plan withthe
RCA. Although approved on an interim basis, the RCA imposed severa conditions on Infinite Minutes. Among these was the conclusion that
requiring LEC subscription as an dligibility criterion violated ACSLD'scertificate restrictionsregarding "bundled offers." The RCA ordered
ACSLD to "de-link" the instate Infinite Minutes offer from any LEC bundling requirement for all markets, including Anchorage. The RCA aso
ordered ACSLD to offer instate Infinite Minutes to all customers on a statewide basis andto do so viaa"1-800" platformin thoselocations
where ACSLD did not already operate. Finally, the RCA directed ACSLD to order equal access interconnection with its competitor, GCI, in
Anchorage, to facilitate access to Infinite Minutes by GClI's LEC customers. After considerable review of the changing economic profile of this
offer as imposed by the RCA, ACSLD has determined to discontinue itsinstate Infinite Minutes plan and has made appropriate filings withthe
RCA todo so.

Having secured both LEC certification and interconnections agreementsto servethe local exchange marketsin Juneau and Fairbanks, Alaska,
GClI's CLEC operation has filed for "Eligible Telecommunications Carrier” ("ETC") status with the RCA. ETC designation is an essential first
step in securing "portable” or shared universal service support. ACS Group's operating companies are currently designated as ETCs in the same
two markets for which GCI seeks similar designation. Although it is possible to have multiple ETCsin a single market, GCl's request is unusual
inthat it asksthe RCA to act in advance of al digibility requirements having been met. ACS Group and the Alaska Telephone Association are
expected to file comments with the RCA.

The RCA also commenced a rulemaking geared towards new regulations for the "deaveraging" of LEC study areas for purposes of computing
universal service support. The regulatory objectives include creating competitive incentivesin the lower cost components of the study area
without placing undue pressure on support mechanismsfor the higher cost segments. Although currently inactive, this rulemaking is of
particular interest to ACS Group andis likely to be scheduled for further proceedingsin 2001 along with an anticipated new rulemaking
targeted at further access charge reform.

COST RECOVERY AND REVENUE RECOGNITION

Asaregulated common carrier, the operating subsidiary companies of ACS Group are afforded the opportunity to set maximum rates at a level
that allows the Company to recover the reasonable costsincurred in the provision of regulated telecommunications services and to earn a
reasonable rate of return on the investment required to provide these services.

These costs are recovered through:

- monthly charges to end users for basic local telephone services and enhanced service offerings,

- access charges to interexchange carriers for originating and terminating interstate and intrastate interexchange calls,

- interconnection charges, wholesale service charges, UNE charges, and other ratesto competing carriers interconnecting withthe Company's
networks or reselling its services and

- high-cost support mechanisms, such as thefederal Universal Service Fund and the AUSF.

Maximum rates for regulated services and the amount of high-cost support are set by the FCC with respect to interstate servicesand by the RCA
with respect to intrastate services.
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In conjunction with the recovery of costsand establishment of ratesfor regulated services, a LEC must first determine its aggregate costs and
then allocate those costs between regulated and nonregulated services. After identifying theregulated costs of providing local telephone service,
aLEC must alocate those costs between state and federal jurisdictionsand among its variousinterstate and intrastate services. Thisprocess is
complicated by the necessity to allocate specific pieces of plant and equipment to a particular service because a LEC's plant and equipment are
utilized for different jurisdictional services, such aslocal telephone and interstate and intrastate access. This process is referred to as
"separations" and is governed primarily by the FCC'srules and regulations. The underlying legal purpose of separations rules isto define how a
carrier's expenses arealocated and recovered from federal and state jurisdictions. The FCC is considering whether to modify or eliminate the
current separations process. Thisdecision could indirectly increase or reduce earnings of carriers subject to separations rules by reallocating
costs between the federal and statejurisdictions.

INTERSTATE END-USER RATES

The deployment of the local telephone network from the switching facility to the customer is known as the "local loop" andis oneof the most
significant costs incurred by a L EC in providing telephone service. The FCC has established arate structure that providesfor therecovery of a
portion of the cost of the local loop allocated to the interstate jurisdiction directly from the end user customer through the assessment of a
subscriber line charge. The remaining portion of the local 1oop costs arerecovered from interstate access charges to an interexchange carrier or,
in some circumstances, fromthe federal Universal Service Fund. A number of new initiatives under review at the FCC have the potential to
shift substantial portions of the interexchange contribution directly to the end user. Both the Coalition for Affordable Local and Long distance
Services ("CALLS") and the proposed Multi-Association Group ("MAG") plansinclude an appreciable increase in the subscriber line charge
paid by both residential and business customers. The CALLSplan, affecting companies servicing predominantly large, urban markets, has
already been given FCC approval. The similarly structured MAG plan, which may, if adopted, have direct application to marketsin Alaska, is
under review by the FCC at thistime.

Asaresult of themarket and geographic conditions in rural areas, the costs of providing local loop and switching services are often higher than
in urban areas. In the absence of an accommodation in the FCC rules to address thisfact, a substantial portion of the costs of smaller LECs
would remain alocated to the intrastate jurisdiction placing substantial pressure on such carriers to charge higher rates for intrastate services.
Accordingly, the FCC provides for additional interstate cost recovery by €ligible telecommunications carriers through the federal Universal
Service Fund. The federal Universal Service Fundisavailable to carriers whoselocal loop costs are significantly above the national average as
calculated pursuant to FCC rules. Recent FCC rulings have made this high-cost support available to a competitive carrier, on an averaged per
line basis, for those lines serving customers switching to the competitive carrier. See "Promotion of Universal Service," below. Rulesfor rura
telephone companies are still being devel oped by the FCC and have not been adopted as of March 8, 2001.

INTERSTATE ACCESS RATES

Interstate access rates are developed on the basis of a LEC'smeasurement of its interstate costs for the provision of access service to
interexchange carriers divided by its projected demand for access service. The resulting rates are published in a company's interstate access
tariff and filed with the FCC, at whichtime they are subject to challenge by third parties and to review by the FCC.

The FCC recognized that this rate making and tariff filing process may be administratively burdensome for small LECs. Accordingly, the FCC
established NECA, in 1983 to, among other things, develop common interstate access service rates, termsand conditions. NECA develops
interstate access rates on thebasis of data that are provided individually by participating LECs and blended to yield average rates. Theserates
are intended to generate revenue equal to the aggregate costs plus a return on the investment of all of the participants. Currently, the authorized
maximum rate of return usedin setting interstate access rates is 11.25%.

On August 24, 2000, GCl, filed aforma complaint with the FCC under various provisions of the Communications Act of 1934 (as amended),
alleging that ACSA (formerly known as ATU) exceeded their federally authorized rates of return
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related to the 1997-1998 monitoring period. The principal issue raised in the complaint focuses on the proper jurisdictional recognition (federal
versus state) of minutesof use associated with Internet service provider traffic. On January 24, 2001, the FCC issued an order finding for GCI
on the matter and ordering the Company to pay GCIl approximately $2.7 million plus interest. The Company hasfiled an appeal in the United
States Court of Appealsfor theDigtrict of Columbia Circuit and will seek a stay concerning itsobligation to pay GCI during the pendency of
the appeal. The Company believes it has adhered to applicable lega requirements and is actively defending its position, but cannot predict the
ultimate outcome of the proceedings. Amounts potentially refundable under the FCC'sorder are fully reserved at December 31, 2000.

Individual participating LECs are likely to have costs of providing service that are either higher or lower than the revenuesgenerated by
applying the overall NECA tariff rate. To rectify this result, the revenues generated by applying the NECA rates are pooled from al of the
participating companies and redistributed on the basis of each individual company's costs. The result of this process not only eliminatesthe
burden of individual tariff filing, but aso produces a system in which small companies can share and spread risk. For example, if asmaller LEC
filed its own tariff and subsequently suffered the loss of major customersthat utilize interstate access service, the LEC could suffer significant
under-recovery of its costs. In the NECA pool environment, the impact of this loss isreduced because it is spread over all of the pool
participants.

NECA operates separate pools for traffic sensitive costs, which are primarily switching costs, and non-traffic sensitive costs, which are
primarily loop costs. Companies are also free to develop and administer their own interstate access charges. ACS Group's rural LECs
participate in both the traffic sensitive and non-traffic sensitive NECA pools. ACSA filesits own traffic sensitive access tariffs with the FCC
but participates in the NECA non-traffic sensitive pool.

The FCC has initiated a proceeding to review itspolicies governing interstate exchange access rates and therate of return applicable to ILECs
who are subject to rate-of-return, rather than price cap, regulation. All of the Company's LEC subsidiaries arerate-of-return regulated, and thus
the outcome of this proceeding could directly affect their earning prospects. The FCC has not yet taken final action in this proceeding. In
October, 2000, theMAG composed of three trade associations representing small rural telephone companies, submitted a proposal to the FCC
that would, if adopted: (1) preserve the current 11.25 percent authorized rate of return for LECs subject to rate-of-return regulation;

(2) permit these carriersto elect "incentive" regulation that would allow them to earn in excess of the authorized rate of return under some
circumstances; and

(3) decrease overal interstate access charge rate levels, whileincreasing universal service support payments. The FCC sought comment on the
MAG Plan in January 2001. The outcome of this proceeding and its ultimateimpact on the Company cannot be predicted at this time.

On October 26, 2000, the FCC granted the petition of a subsidiary of ACS Group, ACSA (previoudly filed under the nameof ATU), seeking a
waiver of certain federal access charge rules. The effect of the waiver isto permit ACSA pricing flexibility through the ability to offer termand
volume discount pricing in connection with its switched access services. The FCC waiver was granted, in part, upon findings concerning the
level of competition in the Anchorage marketplace, as demonstrated in the record of the proceedings.

END USER LOCAL RATES

The levels of rates charged to end-users for the provision of basic local service are generally subject to rate-of-return regulation administered by
the RCA. Local ratesare typically set at alevel that will alow recovery of embedded costs for local service divided by the number of services
and customers. Recognized costsinclude an allowancefor arate of return on investment in plant used to provide local service. Rate casesare
typically infrequent, carrier-initiated and require the carrier to meet substantial burdens of proof. The last APUC-authorized rates of return were
12.55% and 11.70% for ACSAK and ACSN, respectively. These rates were ordered in 1989. ACSA's last authorized rate of return was 8.97%
for retail local exchange and 10.85% for intrastate access, ordered in 1991. ACSF was previously not regulated by the APUC and instead was
regulated by the City of Fairbanks Public Utilities Board. Asa condition of the acquisition of the City of Fairbanks Telephone Operation by a
predecessor company, the APUC required that a general rate proceeding be initiated for ACSF by June 1999. This proceeding has been delayed

16

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




and combined with arequirement that all ACSGroup's affiliate LECs file revenue requirement analyses, cost of service studies and proposed
rate designs with the RCA no later than July 1, 2001.

The APUC adopted regulationsto govern competition in thelocal exchange marketplace. The transitional regulations provide for, among other
things:

- initial classification of al ILECs, including the Company'srural propertiesand ACSA, as dominant carriers,
- symmetrical requirementsthat al carriers, both dominant and nondominant, offer al retail servicesfor resale at wholesale rates and

- substantial dominant carrier pricing flexibility in competitive areas, under which carriers may reduce retail rates, offer new or repackaged
services andimplement special contracts for retail service upon 30 days notice to the APUC. Only rate increases affecting existing services are
subject to full cost support showings for LECsin areas with local competition.

INTRASTATE ACCESS RATES

In the past, the APUC had required al local companiesin Alaskato pool their access costs and has set an annual statewide average pricefor
access service. Each LEC charges interexchange carrier fees for originating or terminating long distance calls on its network based on the
statewide average cost of access rather than on itsindividual costs of access. Access revenuesare collected in a pool administered by the AECA
and then redistributed to the LECs based on their actual costs. With the passage of the 1996 Act and increased competition in thelocal
exchange market, the APUC began a process of reforming intrastate access charges.

Under recent revisions to the Alaska access system, LECs not yet subject to local competition continueto participatein the AECA pool.
Participants in this pool recover their costs based on the embedded cost of services most recently authorized by the RCA. Inthe event of
competitive entry into a dominant incumbent carrier's service area, these revisions also requirethe dominant LEC to exit thepool and initiate
separate access charges. Dominant LECs subjected to competitive entry have theright to propose that their access charges be based on market
rates. The RCA is currently advancing a proceeding to examine whether changesto the current annual process for establishing access charges
are warranted. The RCA is also expected to issue a new access charge reform Notice of Inquiry in early 2001 whichwill target further
substantive changes in access charge derivation.

An additional consequence of this access reformis the continued removal of subsidies implicit in access pricing. For instance, the APUC
abolished the "weighting system" for the non-traffic-sensitive rate element that had loaded extra costs on access charges for lower cost urban
exchanges to support rural exchanges. At the same time, the APUC shifted the support requirement for high switching coststo a state universal
service fund. The RCA hasadopted new regulationswhich limit thisswitching support to local companies with access lines of 20,000 or less.
This change has reduced the amount of AUSF, whichthe Company'srural LECs receive and theresulting cost recovery shift will be addressed
inthe local servicerate casesto be filed in 2001.

The AUSF serves as a complement to thefederal Universal Service Fund, but must meet federal statutory criteria concerning consistency with
federal rules and regulations. Currently, the AUSF only subsidizes a portion of higher cost carriers' switching costs, and the costs of lifeline
service, which supports rates of low income customers. It is expected that application of the fundto support certain public interest payphones
will occur in 2001. Itisunclear the degree to which the AUSF might be used to absorb cost shifts that occur if federal universal service support
isscaled back in the future,

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1996
Among other things, the 1996 Act was enacted to enhance competition without jeopardizing the availability of nationwide universal service at
affordable rates. These two objectives have resulted in a complex set of rulesintended to promote competitive entry in the provision of local

telephone services except where entry would adversely affect the provision of universal service or the public interest.
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PROMOTION OF LOCAL SERVICE COMPETITION AND RURAL EXEMPTIONS
The 1996 Act made competitive entry into thelocal telephone business more attractive to other carriers by removing barriers to competition. In
order to promote competition, the 1996 Act established new interconnection rules generally requiring LECsto allow competing carriersto
interconnect with their local networks. Congress recognized, however, that when the desire to promote competition conflicted with the ability of
existing carriersto provide universal service to higher cost customers, LECs classified as "Rural Telephone Companies' should be exempted
from interconnection requirements until the continuation of the exemption was no longer required by thepublic interest, as defined in the 1996
Act.
Under the 1996 Act, all LECs, including both ILECs and new competitive carriers, arerequired to:
- offer reasonable and nondiscriminatory resale of their telecommunications services,

- ensurethat customerscan keep their telephone numberswhen changing carriers,

- ensurethat competitors customerscan usethe same number of digits when dialing and receive nondiscriminatory access to telephone
numbers, operator service, directory assistance and directory listing,

- ensure access to telephone poles, ducts, conduits and rights of way and

- compensate competitors for the costs of terminating traffic.

The 1996 Act also requires ILECsto:

- negotiate in good faith the termsand conditions of interconnection with any competitive carrier making a request for same,
- interconnect their facilities and equipment with any requesting telecommunications carrier at any technically feasible point,

- unbundle and provide nondiscriminatory access to UNES, such aslocal loops, switches and transport facilities, at nondiscriminatory rates and
on nondiscriminatory termsand conditions, unless such carriers are exempt as rural telephone companies,

- offer resaleinterconnection at wholesde rates,

- provide reasonable notice of changesin the information necessary for transmission and routing of servicesover the ILEC'sfacilities or in the
information necessary for interoperability and

- provide for the physical collocation of equipment necessary for interconnection or access to UNEs at the premises of theILEC, at rates, terms
and conditions that are just, reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

In order to implement interconnection requirements, L ECs generally enter into negotiated interconnection arrangements with competing
carriers. LECs may also offer interconnection tariffs, availableto all competitors.

Competitors arerequired to compensate a LEC for the cost of providing interconnection services. In the case of resale interconnection, the rules
provide that the rates charged should be on awholesale basis and reflect the current retail rates of thelLEC, excluding the portion of costs
avoided by theILEC. In the case of UNE interconnection, rates are based on costing methodol ogies that employ aforward-looking economic
cost pricing methodology known as Total Element Long Run Incremental Cost ("TELRIC").

On January 25, 1999, in AT&T Corp. et a. v. lowaUtilities Board et al. 525 U.S. 366 (1999), the U.S. Supreme Court affirmed the FCC's
authority to develop national pricing guidelines, but the Supreme Court did not evauate the substance of these rules. Some ILECs have argued
that the FCC improperly placed upon them the burden of proof in rural exemption proceedings and improperly defined the meaning of the term
"not unduly economically burdensome” as used in the 1996 Act. Inaddition, some ILECs argued that the FCC'sforward-looking TELRIC
pricing methodol ogy does not allow adequate compensation for the provision of UNES.
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On July 18, 2000, in lowa Utilities Board, et a. v. Federal Communications Commission 219 F.3d 744 (8th Cir. 2000) ("lowa ll"), the Eighth
Circuit Court of Appeals ordered some of these FCC rules to be vacated on the groundsthey were inconsistent with the 1996 Act. The Eighth
Circuit said the FCC's rural exemption ruleswere contrary to the plain language of the 1996 Act. Asto the FCC's TELRIC pricing

methodol ogy, the Eighth Circuit upheld the use of a forward-looking economic model but vacated the FCC's rule requiring the pricing model to
assume a hypothetical network based upon the most efficient technology currently available and thelowest cost network configuration.

On September 22, 2000, the Eighth Circuit stayed that portion of its mandate which vacated the FCC hypothetical network rule (set out at 47
C.FR.

Section 51.505(b)(1)). This suspension was ordered by the Court to permit parties to the proceeding to seek review of itslowa Il decision by
the U.S. Supreme Court. On January 22, 2001, the U.S. Supreme Court granted certiorari to review the Eighth Circuit'sdecision requiring the
FCC to vacateits hypothetical network rule. The Eighth Circuit did not suspend other portions of its decision, including those portions vacating
FCC rules addressing the "rural exemption" provisions of 47 U.S.C. Section 251(f)(1), and the U.S. Supreme Court declined to review the
Eighth Circuit'srural exemption decision.

Subsequent to staying itsmandate concerning the hypothetical network rule, on January 8, 2001, the Eighth Circuit, in Southwestern Bell v.
Missouri Public Service Commission, 2001 W.L. 13289 (8th Cir. 2001), vacated an interconnection agreement approved by the Missouri PSC
on the grounds that it relied on the hypothetical network rule that the Eighth Circuit had previously found invalid. The Eighth Circuit, in that
case, specifically held that despite staying its mandate in lowa 11, al interconnection agreements must be based on use of a pricing methodology
that is consistent with the court's ruling in lowall.

The 1996 Act also specifies that resale and UNE rates are to be negotiated among the parties, or, if the parties fail to reach an agreement,
arbitrated by the relevant state regulatory commission. Once the parties have come to agreement, the proposed rates are subject to final
approva by the stateregulatory commission.

In January 1997, ACSA's predecessor ATU entered into an interconnection agreement with GCI, which provides for resale and UNE
interconnection, and with AT& T Alascom, which provides for resale interconnection. Neither interconnection agreement contained adefined
term or atermination date. Near the end of 1999, the Company notified GCl and AT&T of its view that theinterconnection agreements
pertaining to ACSA had reached the end of areasonable period of availability. In January of 2000, the Company filed a motion with the RCA to
reopen theoriginal GCI arbitration proceedingsinvolving ACSA for the purpose of establishing of an appropriate forward looking cost model
and the re-pricing various interconnection services and UNEs in the Anchorage market. The RCA subsequently granted the essence of the
Company'smotion and has reopened the docket for such purposes. No action wastaken in 2000, but the Company expects the RCA to hold
hearings and consider the matter in 2001.

Certain of ACSGroup's local operating utilities, ACSAK, ACSN, and ACSF, are defined as "rural telephone companies' under the 1996 Act.
Asrura telephone companies, they were granted rural exemptions from the requirements relating to both resale interconnection and UNE
interconnection. The rural exemptions were to continue until the APUC determined that interconnection was technically feasible, not unduly
economically burdensome and consistent with the 1996 Act's universal service provisions.

On June 30, 1999, the APUC issued anorder terminating the rural exemptions of ACSN, ACSAK and ACSF. On October 11, 1999, the RCA
affirmed the APUC's order. As aresult, theserural LECs are nolonger exempt fromthe 1996 Act'sinterconnection requirements applicableto
ILECs, and the Company's competitorsimmediately requested interconnection agreements.

Separately, on September 1, 1999, ACS Group filed petitions with the RCA seeking suspension or modification of interconnection duties and
addressing market structure reforms for the Fairbanks and Juneau-Douglas markets. Inthose petitions, the Company'srural LECs proposed
tariffed termsand conditions, including pricing, for resale of their services at wholesale discounts, for certain UNES, and for the interconnection
of their facilitiesand those of CLECs in the Fairbanks and Juneau-Douglas markets, effective January 1, 2000. Further, as part of that proposal,
ACS Group aso requested that the RCA permit its LECs
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to operate subject to competitive regulation and that the RCA remove or reduce other regulatory limitations in those markets, effective January
1, 2001. Subsequently, on October 26, 1999, the RCA dismissed the Company's petitions seeking to establish open competitive marketsin
Fairbanks and Juneau through tariffed interconnection terms and conditions.

On November 10, 1999, the Company filed aformal appeal of the RCA'sorder terminating therural exemptionsin the Alaska Superior Court.
On November 12, 1999, the Company filed a parallel appeal of the RCA's order dismissing its petitions for tariffed interconnection in the
Alaska Superior Court. The issuesin the casewere fully briefed during the year 2000. Recently, the court denied the Company'srequest to stay
the RCA'sorder terminating therural exemptions. Although ACS Group believes that the appeals are well founded, it cannot predict thetiming
and outcome of this litigation. The Company believes that the RCA's order isinconsistent with the pronouncements of the Eighth Circuit and
that tariffing terms and conditions for interconnection will promote moreopen competitive markets and thus eventually promote regulatory
flexibility and/or reduced regulation.

Subseguent to terminating therural exemptionsfor the Fairbanks and Juneau-Douglas markets, the Company entered into unsuccessful
negotiations for interconnection agreementswith GCI. Interconnection issues, including the pricing for UNES, were subject to an RCA
arbitration during the year 2000. On September 5, 2000, the RCA issued orderslargely ratifying the findings of thearbiter in the Fairbanksand
Juneau interconnection arbitration proceedingsinvolving the Company and GCI. On September 25, 2000, the Company filed protective appeals
in the State Superior Court and in the Federal District Court for the District of Alaska, aleging variouserrors in the RCA orders. On October 5,
2000, the RCA issued final orders affirming theinterconnection agreementsarbitrated in these proceedings. On October 20, 2000, the Company
filed a petition for reconsideration with the RCA, seeking Commission review and redetermination of specific elementsin itsfinal order. The
RCA did not act on this petition. Although ACS Group believes that the appeals are well founded, it cannot predict the timing and outcome of
this litigation. The Company hasand will continue to vigorously defend its proposed cost models and interconnection chargesbut it cannot be
certain that it will be able to charge rates that provide fair compensation for providing UNEs and/or schedule discounted resale services.

In 1999, the Company also received requests for interconnection from Alaska Fiber Star, L.L.C. In 2000, the Company executed
interconnection agreements with Alaska Fiber Star, L.L.C. with termstied to the Company'sinterconnection agreementswith GCI. The
Company expects other interconnection requests in the future.
For 2000, ACSGroup's LECs benefiting fromrural exemptions accounted for 40.2% of its consolidated operating revenues and 44.4% of its
consolidated operating income. The loss of the rural exemptions, absent compensating measures, such as rate increases or market structure
reforms, including the replacement of implicit subsidies by explicit support mechanisms, rate deaveraging, or regulatory flexibility, could
adversely affect the Company's operating results.

PROMOTION OF UNIVERSAL SERVICE

While the1996 Act promoted Congress policy of ensuring that affordable serviceis provided to consumers universally in rural, high-cost areas
of thecountry, the1996 Act altered the framework for providing universal service by:

- providing for the identification of those serviceseligible for universal service support,

- requiring the FCC to make implicit subsidies explicit,

- expanding thetypes of communications carriers required to pay universal service contributions and

- allowing CLECsto be dligible for funding.

These and other provisions were intended to make provision of universal service support compatible with a competitive market.

Pursuant to the 1996 Act, federal Universal Service Fund paymentsare only availableto carriersthat are designated as dligible
telecommunications carriers by a state public utilities commission. In areas served by rural
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LECs, the 1996 Act provides that a state public utilities commission may designate more than one eligible telecommunications carrier, in
addition to the ILEC, only after determining that the designation of an additional eligible telecommunications carrier is consistent with the
publicinterest. Asaresult, an incumbent rural LEC hasan opportunity to maintain its status as the solerecipient of federal Universal Service
Fund paymentsinits service area, even if it is subsequently subjected to competition. ACSAK, ACSN and ACSF are currently the sole
designated eligible telecommunications carriersin their respective service areas, although GCI has requested that the RCA designate it as an
eligible telecommunications carrier in Fairbanks, Juneau, Eielson, and Fort Wainwright, al of whichare currently served by the Company's
subsidiaries. The addition of a second eligible telecommunications carrier in the service areas of ACS Group's properties could have the effect
of reducing the amount of fundsavailable fromthe federal Universal Service Fundand could materialy adversely affect the Company'sability
to achieve areasonable rate of return on the capital invested in its network.

The FCC has adopted new universal service rulesfor non-rural LECs, suchas ACSA, effective January 1, 2000. These rules, likethose
previously in effect, provide no federal universal servicefund support to ACSA.

Rulesfor rural telephone companies are still being developed by the FCC, in consultation with a Federal-State Joint Board on Universal Service
("Joint Board"). The RCA Chairmanisamember of thisJoint Board, and the Company's remaining LEC subsidiaries are rural telephone
companies as defined in the 1996 Act. In September 1997, the Joint Board created a Rural Task Force (RTF) to study universal service issues
facing rura telephone companies. In September 2000, the RTF issued a recommendation to the Joint Board that, if adopted by the FCC, would
largely preserve or increase existing universal service support to rural carriers. The FCC has sought comment on the RTF Plan and is expected
to act on it in 2001.

Because the operating subsidiary companies of ACS Group provide interstate and international services, they are required to contribute to the
federal Universal Service Fund a percentage of their revenue earned fromtheir interstate and international services. Although the Company's
rural LECsreceive subsidies fromthe federal Universal Service Fund, they cannot be certain of how, in thefuture, the Company's contributions
to the fund will compare to the subsidies they receive fromthe fund.

Separately, the FCC has conducted a rulemaking concerning ways to promote basic and advanced servicesto unserved and underserved aress.
In June 2000, the FCC determined that all carriers, including cellular and other carriers, must first consult with therelevant state commission to
determine whether the state commission or the FCC may properly designate the carrier as aneligible telecommunications carrier to receive
federal universal service support for services provided on non-tribal lands. The FCC hasindicated that it will act on carrier requests to be
designated as an eligible telecommunications carriers for non-tribal landsonly if the carrier provides a statement from the state commission or a
court of competent jurisdiction that the state commission lacks authority to do so.

FCC REGULATION OF WIRELESS SERVICES

The FCC regulates thelicensing, construction, operation, acquisition and sale of personal communications services and cellular systemsin the
United States. All cellular and personal communications serviceslicenses have a 10-year term, at the end of whichthey must be renewed.
Licenses may be revoked for cause, and license renewal applications may be denied if the FCC determines that renewal would not serve the
publicinterest. Inaddition, all personal communications serviceslicensees must satisfy certain coverage requirements. Licensees that fail to
meet the coverage requirements may be subject to forfeiture of the license.

The FCC restricts the amount of wireless spectrum that a single entity may hold in a market. Currently, the FCC's rules prohibit an entity from
holding more than 45 MHz of spectrum, except for certain rural cellular markets, in which thelimit is55 MHz. Many interested partiesin the
wireless industry have proposed elimination of the FCC's cap on wireless spectrum. On January 23, 2001, the FCC initiated a proceeding to
examine whether conditions in wireless markets warrant elimination or modification these spectrum "cap” rules. Until this rule isrelaxed or
eliminated, it will limit theamount of wireless spectrum the Company can acquire in a particular market.
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The Communications Act preempts state and local regulation of the entry of, or therates charged by, any provider of commercial mobile radio
service whichincludes personal communications services and cellular servicesand the FCC does not regulate such rates. The FCC imposes,
however, avariety of additional regulatory requirements on commercial mobile radio service operators. These include:

- Commercial mobile radio service operators must be able to transmit 911 callsfrom any qualified handset without credit check or validation,
are required to provide the location of the 911 caller, withinan increasingly narrow geographic tolerance over time, and in thefuture, will be
required to provide 911 service for individualswith speech and hearing disabilities.

- The FCC is considering mechanismsto permit commercial mobile radio service operators to charge the party initiating the call for the call
(even if itisnot a personal communications serviceor cellular subscriber).

FCC REGULATION OF INTERSTATE LONG DISTANCE SERVICES

The Company's long distance services are currently not subject to rate regulation by the FCC, andit is not required to obtain FCC authorization
for the installation, acquisition or replacement of its domestic interexchange network facilities. However, the Company must comply with the
requirements of common carriage under the Communications Act. ACS Group is subject to thegeneral requirement that its charges and terms
for its telecommunications services be "just and reasonable" and that it not make any "unjust or unreasonable discrimination” in its charges or
terms, as well as to a number of other requirements of the Communications Act and the FCC'srules. The FCC has jurisdiction to act upon
complaints against any common carrier for failure to comply with its statutory obligations, and it has recently levied substantial fines on carriers
that have engaged in "slamming," which is the industry term for unauthorized switching of a customer's telecommunications service provider.

In 1996, the FCC issued an order that required nondominant interexchange carriers, like ACS Group, to cease filing tariffsfor its domestic
interexchange services. The order required mandatory detariffing and gave carriers nine months to withdraw federa tariffs and moveinto
contractual relationshipswith their customers. This order subsequently was upheld by the United States Court of Appealsfor the District of
Columbia Circuit. As aresult, al interstate interexchange carriers, including ACSLD, were required to detariff contract-type interstate,
interexchange services by January 31, 2001, and must detariff interstate consumer long distance services by April 30, 2001. These rules also
require ACSLD to post the rates, terms, and conditions of its service onits Internet web site, and engage in other public disclosure activities.
The FCC has also proposed rules that would require nondominant international carriersto detariff international services. ACSLD isalready in
compliance with these current FCC requirements.

FCC POLICY ONINTERNET SERVICES

The 1996 Act establishesa distinction between telecommunications services, which are regulated by the FCC, and information services, which
remain unregulated. ACS Group's Internet servicesare considered information services and are not regulated by the FCC. Becausethe
regulatory boundaries in thisarea are somewhat unclear and subject to dispute, however, the FCC could seek to characterize some of the
Company'sinformation services as "telecommunications services." If that happens, those services would become subject to FCC regulations.
Theimpact of areclassification of ACS Group'sInternet servicesisdifficult to predict.

In June 2000, the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit held that AT& T's high-speed Internet access service, delivered using
cable television facilities, constituted both a "telecommunications’ and an "information” service. Inresponse to this holding, in September
2000, the FCC launched a proceeding to examinewhether providers of high-speed Internet access over such cable facilities should be required
to provide "open access' to their facilitiesto competing Internet service providers on a nondiscriminatory basis. If the FCC implementssuch a

requirement, the Company may be able to supplement its own high-speed Internet access offerings by obtaining access to GCI's high-speed
Internet access cable linesfor its own Internet service provider.
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OTHER REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS

In addition to the foregoing matters, a number of other FCC, state and judicial proceedings are currently pending or may be initiated in the
future which could materially affect the Company'sbusiness. Some of these proceedings include:

- The 1996 Act placed statutory restrictions on the ability of telecommunications carriersto useand disclose certain types of customer
information in marketing different types of services. The U.S. Court of Appealsfor the Tenth Circuit has held that the FCC's rules implementing
this provision of the 1996 Act were an unconstitutional abridgment of the carrier's freedom of speech. InJune 2000, the United States Supreme
Court denied a petition to review the Tenth Circuit's decision. The FCC has not yet acted to develop revised implementing regulations.
Although the Company continues to adhere to the statutory restrictions and the FCC'sformer rules pending further legal developments, any
further FCC action to create new implementing rules may impose significant additional restrictions on ACS Group's ability to market packaged
service offeringsto its customers. The FCC hasadopted new rules designed to make it easier for customers to understand the bills of
telecommunications carriers. These new rules, among other things, establish certain requirements regarding the formatting of billsand the
information that must be included on hills. Inresponse to severa petitions for reconsideration, in March 2000, the FCC largely reaffirmed its
rules.

- The FCC has adopted an order that requires telecommunications service providers to make their services accessible to individualswith
disabilities, if readily achievable. It isunclear theeffect that this order will have on ACSGroup's businesses.

- The FCC has ordered telecommunications service providersto provide law enforcement personnel witha sufficient number of portsand
technical assistance in connection with wiretaps. In August 2000, the United States Court of Appealsfor the District of ColumbiaCircuit
vacated portions of these FCC rules and remanded the matter to the FCC for further consideration. The FCC hasnot yet taken action on
remand. The Company cannot predict its costs of complying with these rulesat this time.

The foregoing is not an exhaustive list of proceedingsthat could materialy affect ACS Group's business. The Company cannot predict the
outcome of theseor any other proceeding before the FCC, the RCA or thecourts.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

ACS Group's operations are subject to federal, state and local lawsand regulations governing the use, storage, disposal of, and exposure to,
hazardous materials, the release of pollutants into the environment and the remediation of contamination. Asan owner or operator of property
and a generator of hazardous wastes, the Company could be subject to environmental laws that impose liability for theentire cost of cleanup at
contaminated sites, regardless of fault or the lawfulnessof the activity that resulted in contamination. The Company believes, however, that its
operations are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental lawsand regulations.

Many of ACS Group's properties formerly contained, or currently contain, underground and above ground storage tanks used for the storage of
fuel or wastes. Some of these tanks have leaked. The Company believes that known contamination caused by these leaks has been, or is being,
investigated or remediated. The Company cannot be sure, however, that it hasdiscovered all contamination or that the regulatory authorities
will not request additional remediation at sites that have previously undergone remediation.

ACS Group'scellular and television operations are a so subject to regulations and guidelines that impose a variety of operational requirements
relating to radio frequency emissions. The potential connection between radio frequency emissionsand negative health effects, including some
forms of cancer,
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study by the scientific community in recent years. To date, the results of these studies have been inconclusive. Althoughthe Company has not
been named in any lawsuits alleging damages from radio frequency emissions, it is possible it could be in thefuture, particularly if scientific
studies conclusively determine that radio frequency emissions are harmful.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

At December 31, 2000, ACS Group'stelecommunications network includes over 485 miles of fiber optic cable, over 170 switchingfacilities
and a statewide cellular network. Inaddition, the Company purchased fiber capacity in May of 1999 and in January of 2001 for high-speed
links within Alaska and for termination of traffic in the lower 49 states. The Company plans to continue enhancing its network to meet customer
demand for increased bandwidth and advanced services. See "Business -- Network Facilities."

Local Telephone. ACS Group's primary local telephone properties consist of 168 switching facilities serving 74 exchanges. The Company owns
most of itsadministrative and maintenance facilities, customer service center, central office and remote switching platforms and transport and
distribution network facilities. The Company'slocal telephone assets are located in Alaska. The ACS Group leases its corporate headquarters
located in Anchorage, Alaska.

ACS Group'stransport and distribution network facilities include a fiber optic backbone and copper wire distribution facilitiesthat connect
customers to remote switch locations or to the central office and to points of presence or interconnection with interexchange carriers. These
facilities arelocated onland pursuant to permits, easements, right of ways or other agreements.

Cdllular. ACS Group hasthree cellular switches, 89 cell sitesand four repeatersthat cover all major population centers and highway corridors
throughout Alaska. In most cases, the Company leases theland on which these sites are located.

Internet. ACS Group haspoint of presence facilitiesin over 25 communities serving the mgjority of Alaska'spopulated areas. These
communitiesare linked over both owned and leased facilities to the Internet at Seattle, Washington.

Interexchange network and other. ACS Group is afacilitiesbased interexchange carrier. The Company has invested in fiber optic capacity
through an indefeasible right of usethat provides bandwidth between the Company's Anchorage, Fairbanks, and Juneau |ocations and Seattle,
Washington. The Company also |eases transport facilities and has arrangements with other interexchange carriersto terminate trafficin the
lower 49 states.

Substantialy all of the Company'sassets (including those of its subsidiaries) are pledged as collateral for its senior obligations. See Note 7
"Long-term Obligations' to the Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company isinvolved in variousclaims, legal actions and regulatory proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion
of management, the ultimate disposition of these matterswill not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financia
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Some of thelegal proceedings involving regulatory mattersare described under "Business -- Regulation.” Inaddition, the ALLTEL Publishing
Corporation initiated litigation alleging improper termination of certain directory publishing contracts on February 25, 2000. Following various
discovery proceedings in August and September 2000, ALLTEL filed a second amended
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complaint on October 10, 2000, alleging new facts in connection with its cause of action. Subsequently, in December 2000, the Company
negotiated an agreement with ALLTEL that released it from all claims, known or unknown, in exchange for cash consideration.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a voteof security holders during the fourth quarter of 2000.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

ACS Group's Common Stock, $.01 par value, was first listed on the NASDAQ National Market on November 18, 1999 under the symbol
"ALSK." Prior to November 18, 1999, there was no public market for ACS Group's Common Stock. The following table sets forth quarterly
market price rangesfor ACS Group's Common Stock in 2000 andin 1999 for the period during whichit was publicly traded:

2000 QUARTERS H GH LOW

1st $16. 7500

$12. 0625

2nd $14. 5000 $9. 8750

3rd $10. 8750 $5. 4375

4t h $9. 0000 $4. 6250
1999 QUARTERS H GH LOW
4th (from Novenber 18 through Decenber 31) $16. 0000

$12. 0000

The approximate number of holders of record of Common Stock as of March 7, 2001 was 48. Management believes that actual holders exceed
1,500, including those held in the broker/deal ers name on behalf of their clients.

DIVIDENDS

ACS Group hasnever declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock. The Company intendsto retain its earnings, if any, to finance
the development and expansion of its business, and, therefore, it does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in theforeseeable future.
Moreover, the Company's ability to declare and pay cash dividends on its common stock is restricted by covenantsin itsbank credit agreement
and in the indentures governing its senior discount debentures and senior subordinated notes.

STOCK OFFERINGS

During 1999 the Company issued 21,829,273 shares of stock under Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933. OnMay 14, 1999, the Company
sold 20,082,871 shares of common stock to Fox Paine Capital, itsaffiliates and membersof management for proceeds of $121.2 million, which
was used, together with proceeds of debt issued, to acquire the Predecessor Entities. On May 14, the Company a so issued detachable warrants
whichwere convertible into 828,261 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share to alender in connection withthe issuance
of $25.0 million in senior discount debentures whichwas also used to fund the acquisitions. The warrantswere converted in aroll-up
transaction into 827,670 shares of stock on November 18, 1999 in connection with the Company'sinitial public offering. Subsequent to the
acquisitions and prior toitsinitial public offering, the Company alsoissued 1,746,402 shares of common stock to certain members of
management and Cook Inlet Region, Inc. for proceeds of $10.4 million which wasused to fund ACS Group's capital expenditures.

During 1999 ACS Group offered to the public 10,000,000 shares of its common stock. The effective date of the Company'sregistration
statement (File #333-88753) filed on Form S-1 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, relatingto ACSGroup's initia public offering of
common stock wasNovember 17, 1999. Goldman, Sachs & Co., Donaldson, Lufkin and Jenrette, CIBC World Markets, Deutsche Banc Alex.
Brown, and Hambrecht & Quist led the underwriting syndicate. The offering commenced on November 18, 1999 and closed on November 23,
1999, resulting in aggregate gross proceeds of $140.0 million. ACS Group's net proceeds from the offering were$127.9 million. Approximately
$9.1 million of offering expenses was attributable to underwriting discounts. Proceeds of the offering we fully expended as of January 12, 2001.
The proceeds were applied as follows:
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- $10.6 million of the proceeds being used to retire 35% of the Company's senior discount debentures, including a $1.3 million premium for
early retirement,

- $25.0 million was used to repay outstanding obligations under the Company's senior revolving credit facility and
- $92.3 million was used to fund capital expenditures and operations.

On December 3, 1999 the Company registered 6,021,489 shares under various employee and non-employee stock option plansand an
employee stock purchaseplan (File# 333-92091) on Form S-8 under the Securities Act of 1933. As of March 7, 2001, 4,027,999 option grants
are outstanding under the employee stock option plansand 237,228 optionshave been exercised and converted into shares of the Company's
common stock. As of March 7, 2001, 26,085 shares have been awarded under the non-employee stock plan, of which 12,970 wereelected to be

deferred. As of March 7, 2001, 131,612 shares have been issued under the employee stock purchase plan. See Note 12, "Stock Incentive Plans'
to the Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. Consolidated Financia Statements for further discussion.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

The following table setsforth selected historical consolidated financial data of ACSGroup. Consider the following points in connection with
the table:

- The selected historical consolidated operating data for theyear ended December 31, 1999 represents the consolidated results of ACS Group
from May 15, 1999 through December 31, 1999. Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1999 combined operations to conform to the
current presentation of ACSGroup's consolidated operations.

- "EBITDA" isnet income before interest expense, taxes onincome, depreciation and amortization and extraordinary items. EBITDA is not
intended to represent cash flow from operations as defined under generally accepted accounting principles and should not be considered as an
alternative to netincome as an indicator of the Company's operating performance or cash flows. EBITDA is presented because management
believesitisauseful financial performance measurefor comparing companies in the telecommunications industry in terms of operating
performance and ability to satisfy debt service, capital expenditures and working capital requirements.

- "EBITDA margin" is EBITDA divided by total operating revenues.

The selected historical consolidated financial data below should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Resultsof Operations" and the audited consolidated financial statements of ACS Group and therelated notes. See
Index to Financial Statements and Scheduleswhich appears on page F-1 hereof.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
For theYears Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999
(dollars in thousands, except share data)
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OPERATI NG DATA:
Operati ng revenues:
Local tel ephone
Cel I ul ar
I nt er net
I nt erexchange network and ot her

Total operating revenues

Qperati ng expenses:

Local tel ephone

Cel I ul ar

I nt er net

I nt erexchange network and ot her

Unusual charges

Depreci ati on and anortization

Total operating expenses

Qperating incomne

O her inconme and expense:
I nterest expense
(39, 624)

Interest incone and ot her

Equity in loss of investnents
(198)

Total other income (expense)

(38,799)
Loss before incone taxes and extraordinary itens
(22,512)
I ncome tax benefit
(301)

Loss from continui ng operations
(22, 211)

Extraordinary item - early extinguishment of debt

(3, 267)

Net | oss
(25, 478)

Loss per share - basic and dil uted:
Loss from continuing operations
(0.95)

Extraordi nary item
(0.14)

Net | oss
(1.09)

Wei ght ed average shares outstandi ng

OTHER FI NANCI AL DATA

Cash provided by operating activities
Cash used by investing activities
(774, 653)

Cash provided (used) by financing activities

EBI TDA

EBI TDA mar gi n
29. 7%
Capita
(74, 828)

expendi t ures -
Dpumrrnt oy LLE LR

— Faalfdalia

OTHER DATA (END OF PERI OD)
Access lines in service

~ 1 1 ..1 -

R R PR

2002

EDGAR Onl i ne,

$ 251, 424
39, 490
9,170
12, 909

(64, 710)

6, 680
(303)

(197)

(13, 593)
111, 573
35. 6%

(72, 253)

I nc.

329, 460

—_—r— N

832, 614
57,418

325, 608

-~ O
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SELECTED HISTORICAL COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA--CENTURYTEL'S ALASKA PROPERTIES

The following table setsforth selected historical combined financial data of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties. Consider thefollowing pointsin
connection with the table:

- The Company derived the selected historical combined financial datafor each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 1998 and
as of December 31, 1997 and 1998 from the audited combined financial statements and therelated notes of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties
whichare included el sewherein this Form 10-K.

- The Company derived the selected historical combined financial data as of December 31, 1996, from the unaudited combined financial
statements of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties which are not included in this Form 10-K.

- CenturyTel acquired its Alaska properties on December 1, 1997 aspart of its acquisition of Pacific Telecom. This acquisition wasaccounted
for as a purchase, resulting in a pushdown of $248 million of goodwill to CenturyTel's Alaska Properties.

- The financia statementsfor the 11-month period ended November 30, 1997 and prior periods have been presented on Pacific Telecom's basis
of accounting, while thefinancial statements asof December 31, 1997, the one-month period ended December 31, 1997 and subsegquent periods
have been presented on CenturyTel's basis of accounting.

- Thefinancial statementsof CenturyTel's Alaska Properties includethe results of the City of Fairbanks Telephone Operation from October 6,
1997, the date of its acquisition. This acquisition wasaccounted for asa purchase.

- On December 31, 1997, the cellular operations in Fairbanks were sold to ATU. The Fairbanks cellular property had 5,497 subscribers at the
time of thesdle.

The selected historical combined financial data below should be read in conjunction with "Management'sDiscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations' and the combined financial statements of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and the related notes. See Index
to Financia Statements and Scheduleswhich appears on page F-1 hereof.
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OPERATI NG DATA:
Qper ating revenues:

Local tel ephone
Cel | ul ar

Total operating revenues

Oper ating expenses
Local tel ephone
Cel | ul ar
Depreci ation and anortization

Total operating expenses
Operating inconme

Interest expense, net
G her inconme (expense)

I nconme before incone taxes
I ncone taxes

Net incone

OTHER FI NANCI AL DATA:

Cash provi ded by operating activities
Cash used by investing activities
Cash used by financing activities

EBI TDA

EBI TDA mar gi n

Capi tal expenditures

OTHER DATA (END OF PERI OD):
Access lines in service
Cel | ul ar subscri bers
Cel | ul ar penetration

BALANCE SHEET DATA (END OF PERI OD):

Total assets

Long-term debt including current portion
St ockhol ders' equity

CenturyTel's Al aska Properties

Century Tel ephone
Enterprises, Inc

2,576

104, 595
19,914

(1, 405)
356

$ 38,291

(26, 664)

(6, 770)

50, 729
40. 7%

26, 799

131, 858
2,945
5.2%

$ 472, 660
43, 408
400, 962

EGAF

T Inr |

2002

Dec. 1, 1997
to Dec 31
1997

Jan. 1, 1997
to Nov. 30,
1997

(Amount s in Thousands)

$ 10, 255
181

124, 869
2,096
3. 7%

$ 459, 175
42, 950
391, 314
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$ 79, 330
5,120

23,141

(298)

$ 21,213
(13, 554)
(8, 209)
38, 666
45. 8%
14,575

I nc.

20, 255

(33)

$ 34,589
(20, 611)
(12, 947)

35, 570
44. 0%
20, 465

82, 969
5,573
3.8%

$ 162, 834
44,294
92,137



SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA--ATU
The following table setsforth selected historical financial data of ATU. Consider thefollowing points in connection with the table;

- ACSGroup derived the selected historical financial datafor each of the three yearsin the period ended December 31, 1998 and as of
December 31, 1997 and 1998 from theaudited financial statementsand the related notes of ATU which areincluded elsewhere in this Form
10-K.

- ACSGroup derived the selected historical financia data as of December 1996 from the audited financial statements of ATU, which are not
included in this Form 10-K.

- "Other income (expense)" includes the equity in earnings (losses) from minority investments.

- During the periods presented, ATU was a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage and was exempt fromfederal and state taxes on
income.

- Net cash dataincludes information from ATU financial statements prepared in accordance with governmental accounting standards. The
differences between governmental accounting standards and the standards promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, and their
impact on ATU's financial statements are discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements of Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund
whichare included elsewherein this Form 10-K.

- OnJune 1, 1999, as part of the consolidation of its operating and hilling systems, ACS Group conformed the methodology by which the
number of access linesis calculated acrossall of itslocal exchanges to that used for CenturyTel's Alaska Properties. If thenumber of ATU's
access linesin service at December 31, 1998 was computed under thissame method, the number of access linesat ATU would increase by
4,940 and the total number of access lines would equal 305,334 and the combined growth percentage would be 6.6% for 1999. Dueto limited
data available to ACS Group, no adjustments to the access linesin service for any year prior to 1998 have been computed.

The selected historical financial data below should be read in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations' and thefinancial statementsof ATU and therelated noteswhich are included elsewherein thisForm 10-K.
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OPERATI NG DATA:
Operating revenues:
Local tel ephone
Cel I ul ar
Long di stance

Total operating revenues

Oper ati ng expenses:
Local tel ephone
Cel I ul ar

Long di stance
Depreci ati on and anortization

Total operating expenses
Qperating income

I nterest expense, net
O her incone (expense)

I nconmre before incone taxes
I ncone taxes

Net incone

OTHER FI NANCI AL DATA:
Cash provided by operating activities
Cash used by investing activities

Cash used by financing activities
EBI TDA

EBI TDA mar gi n
Capi tal expenditures

OTHER DATA (END OF PERI OD):
Access lines in service
Cel | ul ar subscri bers

Cel lul ar penetration

BALANCE SHEET DATA (END OF PERI OD):

Total assets

Long-term debt including current portion
St ockhol ders' equity

EGAF

— Faalfdalia

2002.

1998 1997
(Anount s in Thousands)
$ 121, 057 $ 116, 555
29, 225 21, 845
6, 815 1,541
157, 097 139, 941
74, 240 74, 994
19, 961 14, 455
10, 395 4,644
29, 608 26, 839
134, 204 120, 932
22,893 19, 009
(6,427) (6, 768)
(2, 896) (123)
13, 570 12,118
$ 13,570 $ 12,118
$ 53, 207 $ 46, 641
(5, 659) (3, 665)
(33, 580) (46, 916)
49, 605 45,725
31. 6% 32. 7%
29, 644 35, 187
168, 536 158, 486
63, 627 53, 035
15. 8% 13. 3%
$ 350, 245 323,124
172,521 151, 945
141, 884 136, 414
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20, 916

(219)

$ 308, 810

146, 412
132, 596



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND ANALYSTS REPORTS

Thisreport containsforward looking statements within the meaning of thefederal securities laws, including statements concerning future rates,
revenues, costs, capital expenditures, and financing needs and availability and statements of management's expectations and beliefs. Actual
results could differ materially from these statements as a result of many factors, including future economic, regulatory and political conditions
in Alaska and the United States.

Investors should also be aware that while ACS Group does, at various times, communicate with securities analysts, it isagainst ACS Group's
policy to discloseto them any material non-public information or other confidential information. Accordingly, shareholders should not assume
that ACS Group agrees with any statement or report issued by an analyst irrespective of the content of the statement or report. To the extent that
reports issued by securities analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are not the responsibility of ACS Group.
INTRODUCTION

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with thefinancial statements and related notes and the other financial information
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP

ACS Group was formed in 1998 by Fox Paine & Company, members of theformer senior management team of Pacific Telecom, Inc., and other
experienced telecommunicationsindustry executives. InMay 1999, the Company acquired CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and Anchorage
Telephone Utility or ATU. CenturyTel's Alaska Properties were theincumbent provider of local telephone servicesin Juneau, Fairbanks and
more than 70 rural communities in Alaska and provided Internet services to customers statewide. CenturyTel's Alaska Properties included ACS
of Fairbanks, Inc., ACS of Alaska, Inc., and ACS of theNorthland, Inc. ATU wasthe largest LEC in Alaska and provided local telephone and
long distance services primarily in Anchorage and cellular services statewide. ATU provided long distance services through ATU Long
Distance, Inc. and céllular servicesthrough MACtel, Inc. These companies are now known asACS of Anchorage, Inc., ACSLong Distance,

Inc. and ACSWireless, Inc. On October 29, 1999, the Company changed its namefrom ALEC Holdings, Inc. to Alaska Communications
Systems Group, Inc.

Thefinancia statements for the ACS Group represent the operations of the following entities:
- Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.

- Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc.

- ACSof Alaska, Inc. (formerly Telephone Utilitiesof Alaska, Inc.)

- ACSof the Northland, Inc. (formerly Telephone Utilities of the Northland, Inc.)
- ACSof Fairbanks, Inc. (formerly PTI Communications of Alaska, Inc.)

- ACSof Anchorage, Inc. (formerly Alaska Communications Systems, Inc.)

- ACSWirdess, Inc. (formerly MACtel, Inc.)

- ACSLong Distance, Inc. (formerly ATU Long Distance, Inc.)

- ACSTdevision, L.L.C. (formerly AlaskanChoice Television, L.L.C.)

- ACSlInternet, Inc. (formerly PTINet, Inc.)

- Internet Alaska, Inc.
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Prior to the consummation of the acquisitions of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and ATU in May 1999, ACS Group had no operations.
Accordingly, thefollowing discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company's consolidated financial statements and therelated notes,
the combined financial statements and therelated notes of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and thefinancial statements and therelated notes of
ATU included herein.

Today, ACSGroup generates revenue through:

- theprovision of local telephone services, including:

- basic local serviceto retail customerswithin ACS Group's service aress,

- wholesale service to CLECs,

- network access servicesto interexchange carriersfor origination and termination of interstate and intrastate long distance phone calls,

- enhanced services,

- ancillary services, such asB&C, and

- universal service payments;

- the provision of wireless services,

- theprovision of Internet services; and;

- theprovision of interexchange network services and other services, including:

- theprovision of long distance servicesand

- theprovision of wireless cable television services.

ACS Group also recognizes its proportionate share of the netincome or loss of its minority-owned investments.

Within the telecommunications industry, L ECs have historically enjoyed stable revenueand cash flow from local exchange operations resulting
from the need for basic telecommunications services, the highly regulated nature of the telecommunications industry and, in the case of rural
LECs, theunderlying cost recovery settlement and support mechanisms applicable to local exchange operations. Basiclocal service is generaly
provided at aflat monthly rate and allowsthe user to place unlimited calls within a defined local calling area. Access revenuesare generated by
providing interexchange carriers access to the LEC'slocal network and its customers. Universal service revenues are asubsidy paid to rural
LECsto support thehigh cost of providing service in rural markets. Other servicerevenue is generated from ancillary services, enhanced

services and Internet access.

Changes in revenue arelargely attributable to changesin the number of access lines, local service rates and minutesof use. Other factors can
also impact revenue, including:

- intrastate and interstate revenue settlement methodologies,

- authorized rates of return for regulated services,

- whether an access lineis used by a business or residentia subscriber,

- intrastate and interstate calling patterns,

- customers selection of various local rate plan options,

- selection of enhanced calling services, such asvoice mail, or other packaged products, suchas cellular and Internet and
- other subscriber usage characteristics.

LECs have three basic tiersof customers:

- business and residential customerslocated in their local serviceareas that pay for local phone service,
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- interexchange carriersthat pay for access to long distance calling customerslocated withinitslocal service areas and

- CLEC'sthat pay for wholesale access to the Company's network in order to provide competitive local service on either awholesale or UNE
basis as prescribed under the 1996 Act.

LECs provide access service to numerous interexchange carriers and may also bill and collect long distance charges from interexchange carrier
customers on behalf of the interexchange carriers. The amount of access charge revenue associated witha particular interexchange carrier
varies depending upon long distance calling patterns and the relative market share of eachlong distance carrier.

ACS Group'slocal service ratesfor end users are authorized by the RCA. Authorized rates are set by the FCC and the RCA for interstate and
intrastate access charges, respectively, and may changefrom timeto time.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following unaudited table summarizes ACS Group's operations for theyears ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998. For the year ended
December 31, 1999, the summary information represents the historical combined operating results of the Predecessor Entities-- prior to their
ownership by ACS Group, from January 1, 1999 through May 14, 1999, plus the consolidated results of ACS Group from May 15, 1999
through December 31, 1999. For the year ended December 31, 1998, the summary information representsthe historical combined operating
results of the Predecessor Entities -- prior to their ownership by ACS Group. Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1999 and 1998
combined operations to conform to the current presentation of ACS Group's consolidated operations.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(i n thousands)
Oper ati ng revenues
Local tel ephone:

Local network service $ 92,420 $ 94,499 $ 93,079
Net wor k access revenue 105,172 105, 366 98, 578
Directory advertising 32, 056 27,911 26, 507
Der egul at ed revenue and ot her 21,776 21,198 19, 644
Total |ocal tel ephone 251, 424 248, 974 237, 808
Cel | ul ar 39, 490 36, 041 31, 801
I nt er net 9,170 4,948 5,182
I nt erexchange network and ot her 12, 909 9, 946 6, 815
Total operating revenues 312, 993 299, 909 281, 606
Oper ati ng expenses
Local tel ephone 144, 876 160, 200 141, 933
Cel | ul ar 24, 641 23,748 22,089
I nt er net 11, 785 7,612 4,315
I nt erexchange network and ot her 21, 207 14, 509 10, 395
Unusual charges 5, 288 -- --
Depreciation and anortization 72, 265 63, 487 60, 067
Total operating expenses 280, 062 269, 556 238, 799
Operating incone 32,931 30, 353 42,807
O her income and expense:
I nterest expense (64, 710) (44, 150) (12,982)
I nterest incone and ot her 6, 680 3, 496 5, 555
Equity in loss of investments (303) (1,569) (2,945)
Total other incone (expense) (58, 333) (42, 223) (10, 372)
I ncone (|l oss) before incone taxes and extraordinary item (25, 402) (11, 870) 32,435
I ncone tax expense (benefit) (197) 3, 643 9, 218
I ncone (loss) from continuing operations (25, 205) (15, 513) 23,217
Extraordinary item- early extingui shnent of debt -- (3,267) --
Net incone (|oss) $ (25, 205) $ (18, 780) $ 23,217
36
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TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER
31, 1999

OPERATING REVENUES

Operating revenues increased $13.1 million, or 4.4%, for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to the year ended December 31, 1999.
Local telephone, cellular, Internet and interexchange network and other revenues all increased compared to the prior period.

Local Telephone

L ocal telephone revenues, which consist of local network service, network access revenue, directory advertising and deregulated and other
revenues, increased $2.5 million, or 1.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to the sameperiod in 1999.

The local network service component of local telephone revenues was $92.4 million during 2000 compared with $94.5 million during 1999.
Revenue decreased $2.1 million or 2.2% fromthe prior year, despite growth in average total access linesin service of 4.6% and increased
penetration of enhanced features. The net decrease was due primarily to chargesfor uncollectible accounts and increased market penetration of
lower margin wholesale linesin the Anchorage market. The charges for uncollectible accounts recorded against local network service revenue
in 2000 were $4.1 million in excess of those recorded during 1999, accounting for more than 100% of the decrease inlocal network service
revenue. The chargesfor uncollectibleaccounts werealso approximately $2.6 million in excess of industry average collection rates. Collection
processes have been improved and management expectsthat chargesfor uncollectible accounts will be in linewith industry benchmarks going
forward. Management also believes that the continued loss of market share experienced in the Anchorage market is attributable to below cost
interconnection rates for UNES currently in place. The RCA has recently approved arbitrated interconnection rates for UNESs for the Company's
Fairbanks and Juneau marketswhich, in the opinion of management, are also below cost. See "Business - Regulation” under Item 1 of Part | of
this report for further discussion.

Network access revenues decreased by $0.2 million, or 0.2%, from $105.4 million in 1999 to $105.2 million in 2000. Network access revenues
were reduced by $3.6 million in thethird quarter of as aresult of a complaint filed with the FCC during the third quarter aleging that one of the
Company'ssubsidiaries exceeded their federally authorized rate of return. See "Business - Regulatory” under Item 1 of Part | of thisreport for
further discussion of this matter. Network access revenues are based on a regulated return on rate base and recovery of allowable expenses
associated withthe origination and termination of toll calls. The decrease in telephone access revenuesfrom the corresponding period in 1999
is due primarily to changesrelating to cost alocation factors, rate base and expenses from period to period. Management expectsthat network
access revenues will decline as a component of local telephone revenues for the foreseeable future.

Directory advertising revenues increased by $4.1 million from $27.9 million in 1999 to $32.1 million in 2000. This growth corresponds with
the growth in average access linesin service during 2000 over 1999 from 313,001 during 1999 to 327,534 during 2000, or an increase of 4.6%,
combined with additional penetration for the current directory phone book cycles.

Deregulated and other revenues, which grew $0.6 million, or 2.7% over 1999, consists principally of B& C services, space and power rents,
deregulated equipment sales, paystation revenues and other miscellaneoustel ephone revenues. The revenue increase was due primarily to
increased deregulated equipment salesin 2000.

Cdlular
Cellular revenuesincreased $3.4 million, or 9.6%, to $39.5 million for theyear ended December 31, 2000 compared to $36.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 1999. This growthin revenueis dueto growthin average cellular subscribersto 74,501 in 2000 from 69,820 in 1999,
or 6.7%, and an increase in average revenue per unitfrom $43.02 in 1999 to $44.17 in 2000. The increase in average revenue per unit is due to
the rollout of statewidedigital service during 2000 and the introduction of new statewide and national pricing programs.
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Internet

Internet revenues increased from $4.9 million in 1999 to $9.2 million in 2000 -- an increase of $4.2 million, or 85.3%. Thisincreaseis
primarily due to theadditional revenuesfrom IAl, whichwas acquired in June of 2000. Internet revenues were also impacted by growthin DSL
and dial-up subscribers.

I nterexchange Network and Other

Interexchange network and other revenues include long distance and wireless cable revenues. These revenues increased from $9.9 millionin
1999 to $12.9 million in 2000 -- an increase of $3.0 million, or 29.8%. Long distance revenues increased from $9.6 million in 1999 to $11.8
million in 2000 due to increases in long distance minutes of use from 67.7 million to 95.3 million and increases in circuit rent revenues, coupled
with therollout of competitive long-distance product offerings. Wireless cable revenuesalso increased $0.8 million due to the additional

revenues from ACSTV, which wasacquired in September of 1999.
OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses increased $10.5 million, or 3.9%, from $269.6 million for theyear ended December 31, 1999 to $280.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000.

Local Telephone

The components of local tel ephone expense are plant specific operations, plant non-specific operations, customer operations, corporate
operations and property and other operating tax expense. Depreciation and amortization associated with the operation of the local telephone
segmentisincluded in total depreciation and amortization. Local telephone expenses decreased from $160.2 million for theyear ended
December 31, 1999 to $144.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 -- a decrease of $15.3 million or 9.6%. During 1999, the Company
incurred one-timeand transaction related costs associated with the acquisitions of the Predecessor Entitiesof $7.1 million. The Company also
incurred $5.7 million of compensation expense related to telephone operations as a result of options granted below fair value at the date of
grant, which vested fully upon the completion of ACSGroup's initial public offering. Adjusted for these non-recurring items, telephone
operating expenses would have been $147.4 million for 1999. Asa percentage of revenue, local telephone expense decreased from 59.2% for
1999, adjusted for the non-recurring items, to 57.6% for 2000. This changein local telephone expense as a percentage of local telephone
revenue improved despite approximately $4.1 million in chargesfor uncollectible accounts recorded against revenues during 2000 in excess of
those recorded during 1999, as previously discussed. During 2000, ACS Group alsoincurred $1.1 million of local telephone expense resulting
from interconnection proceedings with CLECsfor which comparable costs were not incurred during the corresponding year of 1999.
Management expects to incur similar additional costs associated with interconnection proceedings during 2001.

Cedlular

Cellular expensesincreased $0.9 million, or 3.8%, for theyear ended December 31, 2000 compared to theyear ended December 31, 1999.
Cellular expensewas 65.9% of cellular revenues for 1999 and 62.4% of cellular revenuesfor 2000.

I nternet

Internet expenses increased by $4.2 million, or 54.8%, and decreased as a percentage of revenue from 153.8% in 1999 to 128.5% in 2000. The
increase in Internet expenses was due to the acquisition in June of 2000 of 1Al for which comparable costs are not included for 1999, and costs
associated withdeveloping the Company's statewide Internet infrastructure and the rollout of the DSL product.
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Interexchange Network and Other

Interexchange network, data services and other expensesincreased by $6.7 million, or 46.2%, and increased as a percentage of revenuefrom
145.9% in 1999 to 164.3% in 2000. The majority of thisincrease was the result of additional circuit and other costs associated with developing
the Company's statewide network and increases in minutes of use for long distance as discussed above. Wireless cable expenses also increased

due to the acquisition of ACSTV, which was completed in September 1999.

Unusua charges

During theyear ended December 31, 2000, ACS Group recorded $5.3 million of unusual charges, consisting of the write-off of approximately
$1.5 million of costs related to the attempted acquisition of Matanuska Telephone Association, $0.8 millioninalega settlement and $3.0
million related to severance and restructuring plans. Employee force reductions resulting from these restructuring plans are expected to total
approximately 300 by their completion, of which approximately 100 were completed by December 31, 2000. The reduction in workforce, along
with other cost structure improvements, is expected to result in expense reductions for 2001 of between $12 and $15 million.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expenseincreased $8.8 million, or 13.8%, due principally to increases in plant in service for the year ended
December 31, 2000 over the corresponding period of 1999.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense increased $20.6 million, or 46.6%, for theyear ended December 31, 2000 ascompared to theyear ended December 31, 1999.
Thisincreaseis dueto $611.6 million of debt incurred by ACSGroup in connection with the acquisitions on May 14, 1999 of substantialy al
of its operations.

INCOME TAXES
ACS Group hasfully reserved theincome tax benefit resulting from the consolidated losses it has incurred since May 14, 1999 - the date of the
acquisition of substantially all of its operations. Income taxes reflected in the combined financial statements are substantially those of the
Predecessor Entities.

NET INCOME

The decrease in net income is primarily a result of the factors discussed above.
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TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER
31, 1998

OPERATING REVENUES
Operating revenues increased $18.3 million, or 6.5% for the twelve monthsended December 31, 1999 compared to the twelve months ended
December 31, 1998. Local telephone, cellular and interexchange network and other revenues all increased compared to the prior twelve-month
period.

Local Telephone

L ocal telephone revenues, which consist of local network service, network access revenue, directory advertising and deregulated and other
revenues, increased $11.2 million, or 4.7%, for the twelvemonths ended December 31, 1999 compared to the twelve months ended December
31, 1998.
The local service revenue component of local telephone revenues was $94.5 million during 1999 compared with $93.1 million during 1998 --
an increase of $1.4 million or 1.5% over theprior year. Thisincrease corresponds withthe growthin averagetota access linesin service of

6.7%, partially offset by the growth in lower margin wholesale and UNE lines as a component of access line growth in the Anchorage market.

Network access revenues increased by $6.8 million, or 6.9%, from $98.6 million in 1998 to $105.4 millionin 1999. Approximately $3.7
million of thisincrease is due to the recording by ATU of $1.9 million of 1998 revenue true-upsin 1999, prior to its acquisition by ACS Group.

Directory advertising revenues increased by $1.4 million, or 5.3%, from $26.5 million in 1998 to $27.9 million in 1999. This growth
corresponds with the growth in average access lines in serviceduring 1999 over 1998 from 295,580 during 1998 to 315,471 during 1999, or an
increase of 6.7%.

Deregulated and other revenues, consists principally of B& C services, space and power rents, deregulated equipment sales, paystation revenues
and other miscellaneous telephone revenues.

Cdlular
Céllular revenuesincreased $4.2 million, or 13.3%, to $36.0 million for the twelve monthsended December 31, 1999 compared to $31.8
million for the twelve monthsended December 31, 1998. This growth in revenue is due to growth in average cellular subscribersin service to
69,820 during 1999 from 60,852 during 1998, or a growth rate of 14.7%.

I nternet
Internet revenues decreased from $5.2 million in 1998 to $4.9 million in 1999, reflecting increased competition.

I nterexchange Network and Other

Interexchange network and other revenues include long distance and wireless cable servicerevenues. These revenues increased from $6.8
million in 1998 to $9.9 million in 1999 -- an increase of $3.1 million, or 45.9%. This increaseis primarily due to an increase in long distance
minutes of use from 41.5 million minutes to 67.7 million minutes for 1998 and 1999, respectively.

OPERATING EXPENSES
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Operating expenses increased $30.8 million, or 12.9 %, from $238.8 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 1998 to $269.6 million
for the twelve monthsended December 31, 1999. Operating expenses increased to 89.9% of revenuesfor thetwelve monthsended December
31, 1999 from 84.8% of revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 1998. During 1999, the Company incurred one-timeand
transaction related costs associated with the acquisitions of the Predecessor Entities of $8.2 million. The Company aso incurred $6.1 million of
compensation expensein connection with options granted below fair value at the date of grant, which vested fully upon the completion of ACS
Group's initial public offering. Adjusted for these non-recurring items, operating expenses would have been $255.3 million for 1999 compared
with $238.8 million for 1998, or 84.4% and 85.1% of revenues for 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Local Telephone

The components of local tel ephone expense are plant specific operations, plant non-specific operations, customer operations, corporate
operations and property and other operating tax expense. Depreciation and amortization associated with the operation of the local telephone
segment isincluded intotal depreciation and amortization. Local tel ephone expenses increased from $141.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 1998 to $160.2 million for the year ended December 31, 1999 -- an increase of $18.3 million, or 12.9%. These expense
categories included the one-time and transaction related costs associated with the acquisitions of $7.1 million and approximately $5.7 of the
compensation expenses as described in the preceding paragraph. Without these non-recurring costs and compensation expense, local telephone
expense would have been approximately $147.4 million for 1999 compared to $141.9 million in 1998, or an increase of $5.5 million or 3.9%.
Asadjusted, local telephone expense represented 59.7% of local telephone revenue for 1998 and 59.2% for 1999.

Cdlular
Cellular expensesincreased $1.7 million, or 7.5%, for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 compared to the twelve months ended
December 31, 1998. Cdlular expenses included approximately $.3 million of compensation expense as previously described. Adjusted for the
compensation expense, cellular expense was$23.4 million in 1999 compared to $22.1 million in 1998 -- an increase of $1.3 million or 5.9%
from 1998 to 1999. Cellular expense was 69.5% of cellular revenues for 1998 and, as adjusted for compensation expense, 65.1% of cellular
revenues for 1999.

Internet

Internet expenses increased by $3.3 million, or 76.4%. The increase was theresult of costs associated with developing the Company's statewide
Internet infrastructure and marketing costsincurred to acquire additional customers.

I nterexchange Network and Other
Interexchange network and other expenses increased by $4.1 million, or 39.6%, and decreased as a percentage of revenue from 152.5% in 1998
to 145.9% in 1999. The increase was the result of additional circuit and other costs associated with devel oping the Company's statewide
network and increases in minutes of use for long distance as discussed above.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation and amortization expenseincreased $3.4 million, or 5.7%, due principally to increases in plant in service for the twelve months
ended December 31, 1999 over the corresponding period of 1998.

INTEREST EXPENSE
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Interest expense increased $31.2 million, or 240.1%, for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 as compared to the year ended December
31, 1998 due to $611.6 million of debt incurred in connection with the acquisitions of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and ATU.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM -- EARLY EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT
During thefourth quarter of 1999, ACSGroup retired 35% of its 13% senior discount debentureswith proceeds generated fromthe Company's
initial public offering, resulting in extraordinary expense of $3.3 million. See Note 11, "Extraordinary Item," to the Alaska Communications
Systems Group, Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

INCOME TAXES

ACS Group hasfully reserved theincome tax benefit resulting from the consolidated losses incurred since the date of the acquisitions of the
Predecessor Entities. Income taxes reflected in the combined financia statements are substantially those of the Predecessor Entities. See Note
10, "Income Taxes," to the Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

NET INCOME

The decrease in net income is primarily aresult of the factors discussed above and, in particular, the decrease in operating margin of $12.5
million and the increase in interest expense of $31.2 million as a result of the financing of the acquisitions.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

ACS Group hassatisfied its operational and capital cash regquirements primarily through internally generated funds, the sale of stock and debt
financing. For thetwelve months ended December 31, 2000 the Company's cash flows from operating activities were $48.2 million. At
December 31, 2000, the Company had approximately $53.1 million in working capital, with approximately $61.9 million in cash and cash
equivaents. As of December 31, 2000 the Company had $75.0 million of remaining capacity under its revolving credit facility, representing
100% of available capacity.

The Company has a $435.0 million bank credit agreement (" Senior Credit Facility"), $150.0 million in 9.375% senior subordinated notes due
2009 and $17.3 million in 13% senior discount debentures due 2011, representing substantially all of the Company'slong-term debt of $614.0
million as of December 31, 2000. Interest on ACS Group's senior discount debentures and the senior subordinated notesis payable

semiannually. Interest on borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility is payable monthly, quarterly or semi-annually at the Company's option.
The Senior Credit Facility requiresannual principal payments commencing on May 14, 2002.

The Company employs an interest rate hedge transaction, which fixes at

5.99% the underlying variable rate on one-half of the borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility, or $217.5 million, expiring in June 2002. The
underlying variable ratefor the Senior Credit Facility is based on the London Interbank Offer Rate ("LIBOR"), which is adjusted at each
monthly, quarterly or semi-annual rollover date.

Thelocal telephone network requires thetimely maintenance of plant and infrastructure. ACS Group'slocal network isof high quality, is
technically advanced and will haverelatively predictable annual capital needs. The Company'shistorical capital expenditures have been
significant. The construction and geographic expansion of ACSGroup's cellular network has required significant capital. The implementation
of the Company's interexchange network and data services strategy isalso capital intensive. In 1999, the Company purchased fiber capacity for
$19.5 million, whichwas funded with monies borrowed to finance the acquisition of substantialy all of its operations. Capital expenditures for
2000 were$72.3 million, including $3.2 million in capital leases. ACS Group anticipates total capital spending in 2001 to be approximately
$75.0 million, including the purchase of additional fiber capacity for $19.5 million in January 2001. The Company intendsto fundits future
capital expenditures withcash on hand, through internally generated cash flows, and if necessary, through additional borrowingsunder the
revolving credit facility.

ACS Group's capital requirements may change, however, due to, among other things: the Company's decision to pursue specific acquisition
opportunities, changesin technology, the effects of competition or changes in the Company'sbusiness strategy. ACS Group's ability to satisfy
its capital requirements will be dependent upon its future financial performance, which is, in turn, subject to future economic conditions and to
financial, business and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company's control.

On September 30, 1999, the Company acquired an additional one-third interestin Alaskan Choice Television (now ACSTV) for $1.9 million,
increasing its ownership to a two-thirds majority interest. On October 6, 1999, the Company entered into an agreement to acquirethe remaining
one-third interest and on February 14, 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of theremaining one-third interest in ACSTV for $3.0
million.

On June 16, 2000, ACSGroup acquired all outstanding shares of 1Al, an Internet service provider with over 25,000 customers in Alaska. The
acquisition was funded entirely with cash on hand.

ACS Group believes that it will have sufficient working capital provided by operations and available borrowing capacity under the existing
revolving credit facility to fundits operations and capital expenditures over thenext 12 months. ACS Group's ability to satisfy its capital
requirements will be dependent upon its future financial performance, which is, in turn, subject to future economic conditions and to financial,
business and other factors, many of which are beyond the Company's control.

EFFECT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
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In June 1998, theFinancial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. This statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative
instruments and hedging activities. It requires that an entity recognizes all derivatives aseither assetsor liabilities in the statement of financial
position and measures those instruments at fair value. This statement, asamended, is effective for the Company on January 1, 2001. Currently,
the Company believes that adoption of this statement will not have amaterial impact on itsconsolidated statements of financia position, results
of operations or cash flows.

OUTLOOK
ACS Group expects the demand for telecommunications services in Alaska to grow, particularly asaresult of:
- continuing growth in demand for core telephone services and enhanced service offerings,

- increased line demand from expected growth in the Alaskan economy and population growthin ACS Group's service aress,

- increases in demand for cellular services and
- growthin demand for DSL and Internet access services due to higher business and consumer bandwidth needs for Internet and data services.

The Company believes that it will be able to capitalize onthis demand through its diverse service offerings onits owned facilities and new sales
and marketinginitiatives directed toward basic, enhanced and data services.

There are currently a number of regulatory proceedings underway at the state and federal levels that could have a significant impact on the
Company'soperations.

The Company cannot predict with certainty the impact of current or future regulatory developments on any of its businesses. See"Business --
Regulation” under Part 1, Item 1 of this report for further discussion.

The telecommunicationsindustry is extremely competitive, and ACS Group expects competition to intensifyin thefuture. Asthe ILEC, the
Company faces competition mainly fromresellers, local providers who lease UNEsfrom ACS Group and, to alesser degree, from
facilities-based providers of local telephone services. In addition, asaresult of theRCA's recent affirmation of the APUC's termination of the
Company'srural exemptions, ACS Group may be required to provide interconnection elements and/or wholesale discounted servicesto
competitors in al or someof its rural service areas. Moreover, while cellular telephone services have historically complemented traditional
LEC services, the Company anticipates that existing and emerging wireless technologies may increasingly compete withLEC services. In
cellular services, ACS Group currently competes with at least one other cellular provider in each of its cellular service areas. Inlong distance,
the Company currently hasless than 5% of total long distance revenues in Alaska and faces competition from the two major long distance
providersin Alaska. In the highly competitive business for Internet access services, ACS Group currently competes with a number of

established online service companies, interexchange carriers and cable companies.

The telecommunications industry is subject to continuous technological change. ACS Group expects that new technological developments in
the future will generally serveto enhance itsability to provide serviceto itscustomers. However, these devel opments may also increase
competition or require the Company to makesignificant capital investmentsto maintain itsleadership position in Alaska.

IMPACT OF INFLATION

The effect of inflation on ACSGroup's financial results has not been significant in the periods presented.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company has issued senior discount debentures, senior subordinated notes and hasentered into a bank credit facility. These on-balance
sheet financial instruments, to the extent they provide for variable rates of interest, expose the Company to interest rate risk, withthe primary
interest raterisk exposure resulting from changesin LIBOR or the prime rate, which are used to determine the interest ratesthat are applicable
to borrowings under the Company'sbank credit facilities. The Company uses off-balance sheet derivative financial instruments, in particular an
interest rate swap agreement, to partially hedge variable interest transactions. The Company's derivative financial instrument transaction has
been entered into for hedging purposes only. The terms and characteristics of the derivative financial instruments are matched with the
underlying on-balance sheet instrument or anticipated transactions and do not constitute speculative or leveraged positions independent of these
€XPOSUres.

The information below summarizes the Company's sensitivity to market risk associated with fluctuationsin interest rates as of December 31,
2000. To the extent that the Company's financial instrumentsexpose the Company to interest rate risk, they are presented within each market
risk category in the table below. The table presents principal cash flows and related interest rates by year of maturity for the Company's senior
discount debentures, bank credit facilities, senior subordinated notes and capital |eases and other long-term obligations in effect at December
31, 2000. The LIBOR rate used in the variable rate calculation to forecast expected interest for 2001 and beyond was 6.40%, which was the
three month LIBOR rate on December 31, 2000. The cash flows related to thevariable portion of the interest rate swap is determined by
comparing the December 31, 2000 three month LIBOR to the underlying contract rate and applying the spread to the nominal amount. For the
interest rate swap agreement, the table presents the notional amount and therelated reference interest rates by year of maturity. Fair values
included herein have been determined based on (i) quoted market prices for senior subordinated notes; (ii) the carrying value for the bank credit
facility at December 31, 2000, as interest rates are reset periodically; and (iii) by discounting expected cash flows to their present value for the
interest rate swap using theweighted average interest rate of the Company's variable debt in effect at December 31, 2000. Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc.'s Consolidated Financia Statements contain descriptions of the senior discount debentures, senior
subordinated notes, credit facility, capital leases and other long-term obligations and theinterest rate swap agreement and should be read in
conjunction withthe table below.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity:
Seni or Di scount Debentures:
I nterest Amount
Average interest rate (fixed)

Credit Facility - Tranche A
I nterest Amount
Average interest rate (variable)

Credit Facility - Tranche B:
I nterest Amount
Average interest rate (variable)

Credit Facility - Tranche C
Interest Anmount
Average interest rate (variable)

Seni or Subordi nated Notes:
Interest Anmount
Average interest rate (fixed)

Capital |eases and other
I nterest Anmount
Average interest rate (fixed)

Credit Facility - $75 MIlion Revol ver
Interest Anmount
Average interest rate (variable)
Commi t nent fee
Average interest rate (fixed)

Variable to Fixed Interest Rate Swap
-- Credit Facility:
Not i onal anount - $217, 500
Interest received
Interest paid
Average receive rate
Average pay rate

2000 2001

$ 2,255 $ 2,251
13. 00% 13. 00%

$13, 940 $13, 948
9. 29% 9. 30%

$14, 428 $14, 328
9. 62% 9. 55%

$13, 328 $13, 237
9. 87% 9.81%

$14, 090 $14, 051
9. 38% 9. 38%

$ 1,449 $1, 118
8.91% 8.47%

.- $ -
0. 00% 0. 00%

$ 381 $ 380
0. 50% 0. 50%

$ 1,060 $ 935

- $ -
0. 49% 0.43%

e AL

$ 2,251
13. 00%

$13, 826
9. 15%

$14, 203
9. 40%

$13,123
9. 65%

$14, 051
9. 38%

$ 976
8. 60%

0. 00%
380
0. 50%

©*»

$ 432

0.41%

$ 2,251
13. 00%

$13, 687
9. 15%

$14, 061
9. 40%

$12, 991
9. 65%

$14, 051
9. 38%

$ 907
8. 56%

0. 00%
380
0. 50%

©@

$ -
0. 00%

2002. EDGAR Onli ne,

2004

$ 2,251
13. 00%

$13, 585
9. 15%

$13, 956
9. 40%

$12, 894
9. 65%

$14, 090
9. 38%

$ 845
8. 54%
0. 00%

$ 381
0. 50%

$ -
0. 00%

I nc.

$ 2,251
13. 00%

$13, 408
9. 15%

$13, 775
9. 40%

$12, 727
9. 65%

$14, 051
9. 38%

$ 777
8. 50%

0. 00%
380
0. 50%

©

$ -
0. 00%

$12, 090
13. 00%

$11, 566
9. 15%

$25, 390
9. 40%

$29, 651
9. 65%

$47, 388
9. 38%

$ 4,117
10. 36%

0. 00%
140
0. 50%

©

$ --
0. 00%



TOTAL FAI R
PAI D VALUE
Interest Rate Sensitivity:
Seni or Di scount Debentures: $ 21,665
I nterest Anpunt $ 25,600
Average interest rate (fixed) 13. 00%
Credit Facility - Tranche A $150, 000
I nterest Anpunt $ 93, 960
Average interest rate (variable) 9.19%
Credit Facility - Tranche B: $150, 000
I nterest Anopunt $110, 141
Average interest rate (variable) 9. 45%
Credit Facility - Tranche C $135, 000
I nterest Anopunt $107, 951
Average interest rate (variable) 9. 70%
Seni or Subordi nat ed Not es: $126, 375
I nterest Anpunt $131, 772
Average interest rate (fixed) 9. 38%
Capital |eases and ot her $ 14, 641
I nterest Anpunt $ 10, 189
Average interest rate (fixed) 8. 85%
Credit Facility - $75 MIlion Revol ver $ --
I nterest Anount --
Average interest rate (variable) 0. 00%
Commi t ment fee $ 2,423
Average interest rate (fixed) 0. 50%
Variable to Fixed Interest Rate Swap
-- Credit Facility: $ (1, 243)
Noti onal anount - $217, 500
Interest received $ 2,427
Interest paid --
Average receive rate 0. 44%
Average pay rate 0. 00%

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Combined and consolidated financial statements of Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries, Alaska Communications
SystemsHoldings, Inc., CenturyTel's Alaska Properties, and Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund are submitted asa separate
section of thisForm 10-K. See Index to Financial Statementsand Schedules which appears on page F-1 hereof.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTSWITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

46

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERSOF THE REGISTRANT
Except for the following information regarding ACS Group's executive officers and directors, the information required by this item will be
included in ACS Group's definitive proxy statement for its 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Proxy Statement"), or by an amendment
to this report to be filed on or before April 30, and suchinformation is incorporated herein by reference.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERSAND DIRECTORSOF THE REGISTRANT

Set forth below are the executive officers and directors of ACSGroup asof the date hereof:

NANVE ACGE PCsI TI ON

Charl es E. Robi nson 67 Chai rman and Chi ef Executive Oficer

Wesl ey E. Carson 50 President and Chief Adnministrative Oficer

John R Ayers 58 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Oficer
Kevi n P. Henmenway 40 Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Oficer
Leonard A. Steinberg 47 General Counsel and Secretary

Carl H Marrs 51 Director

Byron |. Mallott 58 Director

W Dexter Paine, IIl] 40 Di r ect or

Saul A. Fox 47 Director

Way T. Thorn 29 Di rector

Bri an Rogers 50 Di rector

CHARLES E. ROBINSON, ACSGroup's Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since May 1999, has over four decades of experience inthe
telecommunicationsindustry. Mr. Robinson wasinstrumental in creating Alaska'slong distance communicationssystems, includingthe White
Alice Communications System, beginning in the late 1950's. Between 1979 and 1982, Mr. Robinson served as President of Alascom, the state's
primary long distance carrier at the time. Under his guidance, Alascom developed the first statewide long distance service network in Alaska,
connecting with more than 27 independent local companies. Mr. Robinson served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Pacific Telecom
from 1981 until its sale to CenturyTel in 1997 and wasappointed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 1989. Mr. Robinson remained as
President and Chief Executive officer at Pacific Telecom until February 1999. Mr. Robinson hasbeen a member of the National Security
Telecommunications Advisory Committee for thelast 18 years, having been appointed by President Reagan. Mr. Robinson has also served on
the Board of Directors of the United States Telecommunications Association from 1993 to 1995 and from 1999 to the present. Since January
2000, Mr. Robinson has served on theBoard of Directors of WJ Communications, Inc.

WESLEY E. CARSON, ACS Group's President and Chief Administrative Officer, has been with the Company sinceits inception. Mr. Carson
has held his current position since November 2000. On October 7, 1999, Mr. Carson (previously an Executive Vice President) was appointed
President and Chief Operating Officer, and served in that capacity until assuming his current role. Mr. Robinson had previously held the titleof
President. Mr. Carson has over 20 years of telecommunications experience. He began his career in telecommunicationsin 1980 with TRT
Telecommunications Corporation, an international data and voice carrier located in Washington, D.C. that wasacquired by Pacific Telecomin
1988. From 1989 to 1998, Mr. Carson served as theVice President of Human Resources for Pacific Telecom. From July 1998 to May 1999,
Mr. Carson served asthe Executive Vice President of LEC Consulting. Mr. Carson holds aB.A. in International Relations from Brigham

Y oung University, a Master of Public Administration degree from the University of Illinois-Springfield and a J.D. from Georgetown University.

47

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




JOHN R. AYERS is Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, a position he hasheld since November 2000. Mr. Ayersjoined
ACS Group as Senior Vice President of Marketing and Salesin May 1999 and served in that capacity until assuminghis current role. Mr. Ayers
has more than 20 years of experience in thetelecommunications industry. AsPresident and co-founder of e.Net, Ltd. in 1996, Mr. Ayers served
as a consultant to a variety of established and start-up businesses. From February 1983 through March 1996, Mr. Ayers held various leadership
positions with Pacific Telecom and its subsidiaries, including Executive Vice President of Pacific Telecom Services Company, with
responsibility for strategic planning, marketing and business development, and Executive Vice President and General Manager of Alascom,

Inc., Alaskds largest interexchange carrier. Mr. Ayers holds a bachelor's degree in management from Golden Gate University.

KEVIN P.HEMENWAY is Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer, aposition he has held since November 2000. Mr.
Hemenway joined ACS Group asVice President and Treasurer in July 1999 and served in that capacity until assuming his current role. Mr.
Hemenway has over 10 yearsof prior experience in the telecommunicationsindustry. Before joining the Company, Mr. Hemenway served as
the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Atlantic Tele-Network, Inc. based intheU.S. Virgin Islands. From January 1990 to October 1998,
as an independent consultant, Mr. Hemenway performed financial, accounting, management and rate making consulting services for the
telecommunicationsindustry, principally for Atlantic Tele-Network, Inc. and its subsidiaries. From 1986 through 1989, Mr. Hemenway was
employed by Deloitte & Touche LLP asa CPA and manager, performing both audit and consulting services and from 1983 to 1986, was
employed by Grant Thornton as a CPA and senior staff accountant. Mr. Hemenway graduated from Creighton University in 1982 witha
B.S.B.A., maoring in accounting, and is a non-practicing CPA certificate holder registeredin the State of Nebraska.

LEONARD A. STEINBERG is Genera Counsel and Secretary, a position he hasheld since January 2001. Mr. Steinberg |eft private practice in
June 2000 to join ACS Group asa Senior Attorney in the Corporate Legal Department. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Steinberg used his expertisein
regulatory and administrative matters to represent telecommunications and energy clients of Brena, Bell & Clarkson, P.C., an Anchorage,
Alaskalaw firm. Prior to that, Mr. Steinberg was a Partner in the firm of Hoise, Wes, Sacks & Brelsford withoffices in Anchorage, Alaskaand
San Francisco, California. Mr. Steinberg practiced in the firm's Anchorage office from 1996-1998 and in thefirm's San Francisco office from
1988-1996 where he primarily represented large clientsin oil and gas royalty andtax disputes. Mr. Steinberg holds a Masters in Public
Administration degree fromHarvard University'sKennedy School of Government, Masters of Business Administration degree from U.C.
Berkeley's Haas School of Business and a J.D. fromthe University of California's Hastings College of Law.

CARL H. MARRS, adirector since July 1999, is President and Chief Executive Officer of Cook Inlet Region, Inc. Mr. Marrs has been with of
Cook Inlet Region, Inc. for approximately 25 years. During that period Mr. Marrs has been employed in a series of management positions,
culminating in his appointment as President in 1986. Mr. Marrs attended the Stanford University School of Business for Executivesin 1983 and
the Amos Tuck School of Businessat Dartmouth Collegein 1986.

BYRON |I. MALLOTT, adirector since January 2000, isthe President and Chief Executive Officer of the First AlaskansFoundation. From
1995 until January 2000, Mr. Mallott served as the Executive Director of the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation. Prior to joining the Alaska
Permanent Fund Corporation, Mr. Mallott served in various capacities, including Director, Chairman and President and Chief Executive Officer
of Sealaska Corporation over aperiod of nearly 20 years. Mr. Mallott has also served in various political appointments and elected positions.

W. DEXTER PAINE, I11, adirector sinceJuly 1998, wasa co-founder and has been President of Fox Paine & Company since itsinception in
1997. From 1994 until founding Fox Paine, Mr. Paine served as a senior partner of Kohlberg & Company. Prior to joining Kohlberg &
Company, Mr. Paine served as a general partner at Robertson Stephens & Company. Mr. Painehas a B.A. in economics from Williams College.
Since January 2000, Mr. Paine has served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of WJ Communications, Inc.

SAUL A. FOX, adirector since May 1999, wasa co-founder and hasbeen Chief Executive Officer of Fox Paine & Company since its inception
in 1997. From 1984 until founding Fox Paine & Company, Mr. Fox was at Kohlberg Kravis & Roberts & Co. Prior to joining KKR, Mr. Fox
was an attorney at Latham & Watkins, alaw firm headquartered in Los Angeles, Cdlifornia. Mr. Fox hasaB.S. in
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communications and computer science from Temple University anda J.D. from the University of Pennsylvania Law School. Since January
2000, Mr. Fox has served on the Board of Directorsof WJ Communications, Inc.

WRAY T. THORN, adirector since January 2000, hasalso been a director with Fox Paine & Company since January 2000. From 1996 until
joining Fox Paine& Company, Mr. Thorn was a principal and founding member of Dubilier & Company. Prior to joining Dubilier & Company,
Mr. Thorn was an associatein the Acquisition Finance Group of Chase Securities, Inc. Mr. Thorn isa graduate of Harvard University. Since
January 2000, Mr. Thorn hasserved onthe Board of Directors of WJ Communications, Inc.

BRIAN ROGERS, adirector since February 2001, is currently Principal Consultant and Chief Financial Officer for Information Insights, Inc., a
management and public policy consulting firm. Mr. Rogers served asVice President of Finance for the University of Alaska Statewide System
from 1988 to 1995. Mr. Rogers is aformer state legidator, who served in the Alaska State House of Representatives from 1979 to 1982. Mr.
Rogers chaired the State of Alaska L ong-Range Planning Commission during 1995 and 1996, and currently, as a Regent of the University of
Alaska, servesas Chair of the University'sAudit Committee. He holds a Master in Public Administration degree from the Kennedy School of
Government, Harvard University.

DONN T. WONNELL, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since June 1999, left the Company in December 2000 for
personal reasons unrelated to ACSGroup.

MICHAEL E. HOLMSTROM, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since February 1999, left the Company in November 2000
for persona reasons unrelated to ACS Group.

F. SCOTT DAVIS, Senior Vice President of Non-Regulated Operations since February 2000, retired in June 2000.
JASON B. HURWITZ, adirector since October 1999, left the board in January 2000 for personal reasons unrelated to ACS Group.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by thisitem will be included in ACS Group's definitive Proxy Statement, and such information isincorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by thisitem will be included in ACS Group's definitive Proxy Statement, and such information isincorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by thisitem will be included in ACS Group's definitive Proxy Statement, and such information isincorporated herein
by reference.

49

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTSON FORM 8-K
(& 1. Financial Statements

Combined and consolidated financia statements of ACS Group and its Predecessor Entities are submitted as a separate section of thisForm
10-K. Seelndex to Combined and Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules which appears on page F-1 hereof.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Financia statement schedules for ACS Group and its subsidiaries are submitted asa separate section of this Form 10-K. See Index to Combined
and Consolidated Financial Statementsand Schedule which appears on page F-1 hereof.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K
No reports on Form 8-K werefiled during the quarter ended December 31, 2000.

(c) Exhibits

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




EXH BI T NO DESCRI PTI ON

2.1 Purchase Agreenent, dated as of August 14, 1998, as anended, by and
among ALEC Acquisition Sub Corp., CenturyTel of the Northwest, Inc.
and CenturyTel Wreless, Inc.*

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreenent, dated as of Cctober 20, 1998, by and
bet ween Al aska Communi cations Systens, Inc. and the Minicipality of
Anchor age*

3.1 Anended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Regi strant *****

3.2 Anended and Restated By-Laws of the Registrant*****

4.1 Speci nen of Common Stock Certificate*****

4.2 St ockhol ders' Agreenent, dated as of Muy 14, 1999, by and anobng the
Regi strant and the Investors |listed on the signature pages thereto*

4.3 First Amendnent to Stockhol ders' Agreenment, dated as of July 6
1999, by and anmpong the Regi strant and the Stockholders listed on

t he
si gnature pages thereto*

4.4 Second Amendnent to Stockhol ders' Agreenent, dated as of Novenber

16, 1999 by and anong the Registrant and the Stockholder's listed
on
the signature pages thereto*****

4.5 I ndenture, dated as of My 14, 1999, by and between Al aska
Conmmuni cati ons Systenms Hol dings, Inc., the Quarantors (as defined
therein) and I BJ Witehall Bank & Trust Conpany*

4.6 Purchase Agreenent, dated as of May 11, 1999, by and anong Al aska
Conmmuni cati ons Systens Hol dings, Inc., the Quarantors, Chase
Securities Inc., CIBC Wrld Markets Corp. and Credit Suisse First
Bost on Cor por ati on*

4.7 I ndenture, dated as of May 14, 1999, by and between the Registrant
and The Bank of New York*

4.8 First Amendnent, dated as of Cctober 29, 1999, to Indenture l|isted
as Exhibit No. 4.7**

4.9 Form of Second Anendrment dated as of Novenber 17, 1999 to I|ndenture

listed as Exhibit No. 4, 7*****

4.10 Purchase Agreenent, dated as of May 11, 1999, by and anong the
Regi strant, DLJ Investnent Partners, L.P., DLJ Investnent Funding,

Inc. and DLJ ESC I, L.P.*
10.1 Exchange and Registration Rights Agreenent, dated as of May 14,
1999, by and anpbng Al aska Comuni cati ons Systens Hol di ngs, Inc.,
t he
Quarantors, Chase Securities Inc., CIBC Wrld Mirkets Corp. and
Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation*
10. 2 Exchange and Regi stration Rights Agreenent, dated as of May 14,

1999, by and anmong the Registrant, DLJ Investnent Partners, L.P.
DLJ I nvestnent Funding, Inc. and DLJ ESC Il L.P.*

50

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




10. 3 Credit Agreenent, dated as of May 14, 1999, by and ampong Al aska
Conmuni cations Systems Hol dings, Inc., the Registrant, the
financi al
institutions Lenders party thereto, The Chase Manhattan Bank,

Credit
Sui sse First Boston and Canadi an |Inperial Bank of Conmerce*

10. 4 Amendrment No. 1, dated as of Cctober 19, 1999 to Credit Agreenent
listed as Exhibit No. 10.3**

10.5 Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of March 12, 1999, by and anobng
Al aska Communi cations Systens Hol dings, Inc., the Registrant and
Charles E. Robi nson*

10.6 Enpl oynent Agreenent, dated as of March 12, 1999, by and anobng
Al aska Communi cations Systens Hol dings, Inc., the Registrant and
Wesl ey E. Carson*

10. 7 ALEC Hol di ngs, Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan*

10. 8 Al aska Communi cations Systens Group, Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive
Pl an*****

10.9 Al aska Conmuni cations Systens Group, Inc. 1999 Non- Enpl oyee

Di rector

Conpensati on Pl an*****

10. 10 Al aska Communi cations Systens Group, Inc. 1999 Enpl oyee Stock
Purchase Pl an*****

12.1 Statenents Re: Conputation of Ratios
21.1 Subsi di ari es of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP relating the audited financi al

statements of Al aska Conmuni cations Systens Group, Inc. as of
Decenber 31, 2000 and 1999

23.2 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP relating to the audited financi al
statements of Al aska Conmunications Systens Hol dings, Inc. and
subsi diari es as of Decenber 31, 1998 and for the period from June
16, 1998 (date of inception) through Decenber 31, 1998 (included in
Exhi bit No. 23.1)

23.3 Consent of KPMG LLP relating to the audited conbi ned financial
statements of CenturyTel's Al aska Properties as of Decenber 31,

1998
and for the year then ended

23.5 Consent of KPMG LLP relating to the audited financial statenents of
Muni ci pality of Anchorage Tel ephone Utility Fund as of Decenber 31,
1997 and 1998 and for each of the years in the three-year period
ended Decenber 31, 1998

23.6 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP relating to the audited conbi ned
financial statenents of CenturyTel Al aska Properties as of Decenber
31, 1997 and for the year ended Decenber 31, 1996, the el even

nont hs
ended Novenber 30, 1997 and the one nonth ended Decenber 31, 1997
(included in Exhibit No. 23.1)

24. 1 Powers of Attorney (included on signature page)***
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* Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-4 fileNo. 333-82361 and incorporated by reference thereto.
** Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on November 5, 1999 and incorporated by reference thereto.

*** Previoudly filed on October 8, 1999 and incorporated by reference thereto.

**** Previoudly filed on November 1, 1999 and incorporated by referencethereto.

****%* Previoudy filed as an exhibit to the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1/A file No. 333-888753 filed on November 17, 1999
and incorporated by reference thereto.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. Anchorage, Alaska

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and cash flowsfor the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999. Our audits included the financial statement schedule listed in Item 14(a)2 of Form 10-K. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are theresponsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility isto express anopinion on
these financial statementsand financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosuresin thefinancial statements. An audit also includes
ng the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statementsreferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financia position of Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and theresults of their operations, and their cash
flowsfor theyears ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Alsoin our opinion, suchfinancial statement schedule, whenconsidered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements
taken as awhole, present fairly in all material respectsthe information set forththerein.

/'s/ DELO TTE & TOUCHE
LLP

Portl and, Oregon
February 20, 2001

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equival ents

Accounts receivabl e-trade, net of allowance of $9,831 and $5, 203
Materials and supplies

Prepayments and other current assets

Total current assets

I nvest nent s

Property, plant and equi pnent
Less: Accunul ated depreciation and anortization

Property, plant and equi prent, net

Goodwi | I, net of accumul ated anortization of $11,753 and $4, 243
O her assets

Total assets

LI ABI LI TTES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term obligations
Account s payabl e-trade

Accounts payable-affiliate

Advance billings and custoner deposits
Accrued and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term obligations, net of current portion
Unanortized investment tax credits

O her deferred credits and long-termliabilities
Conmi t nents and conti ngenci es

St ockhol ders' equity:

Preferred stock, no par, 5,000 authorized, no shares issued and outstandi ng
Common stock, $.01 par val ue; 145,000 shares authorized, 33,000 and

32,657 shares issued and 31, 468 and 32, 657 outstanding, respectively
Treasury stock, 1,532 and O shares, respectively, at cost
Paid in capital in excess of par value
Accumul ated deficit

Total stockhol ders' equity

Total liabilities and stockhol ders' equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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953, 557

64, 304

611, 418
197

10, 755

330

(9, 735)
275, 468
(50, 683)

$ 101, 994
49, 323
5,923
4,327

902, 131

71, 030

327

273,119
(25, 478)



ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTSOF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)
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Oper ating revenues:
Local tel ephone
Cel | ul ar
I nt er net
I nt er exchange network and ot her

Total operating revenues

Oper ati ng expenses:
Local tel ephone
Cel I ul ar
I nt er net
I nt er exchange network and ot her
Unusual charges
Depreciation and anortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Q her incone and expense:
I nterest expense
(39, 624)
Interest income and ot her
Equity in loss of investnents
(198)

Total other income (expense)
(38, 799)

Loss before incone taxes and extraordinary item

(22, 512)

| ncone tax benefit

Loss from continui ng operations
(22, 211)

Extraordinary item - early extingui shment

(3, 267)

Net | oss
(25, 478)

Loss per share - basic and dil uted:
Loss from conti nui ng operations
(0.95)

Extraordi nary item
(0.14)

Net | oss
(1.09)

Wei ght ed average shares outstandi ng

EGAF

— Faalfdalia

of debt

2002.

EDGAR Onl i ne,

(64, 710)

6, 680
(303)

I nc.




See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

PAID I N
CAPI TAL I N
COMMVON EXCESS OF ACCUMULATED TREASURY
STOCK PAR DEFICI T STOCK
Bal ance, Decenber 31, 1998 $-- $ -- $ -- $
I ssuance of 32,657 shares of common stock, $.01 par 327 261, 885
Fair value of warrants issued in conjunction wth
long term debt - - 5,089 --
St ock based conpensation -- 6, 145 --
Net | oss -- -- (25, 478)
Bal ance, Decenber 31, 1999 327 273,119 (25, 478)
I ssuance of 343 shares of common stock, $.01 par 3 2,349 -- --
Net | oss -- -- (25, 205) --
Purchase of 1,532 shares of treasury stock -- (9, 735)
Bal ance, Decenber 31, 2000 $330 $275, 468 $(50, 683) $(9, 735)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999

(IN THOUSANDS)

2000
CASH FLONS FROM OPERATI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Net | oss $ (25, 205)
Adj ustnments to reconcile net loss to net cash provi ded by operating activities:
Depreci ation and anortization 72,265
Anortization of debt issuance costs 4,573
Armortization of deferred compensation - stock options --
Investment tax credits (197)
Capitalized interest (1, 096)
O her deferred credits (1, 141)
Changes in conponents of working capital:
Accounts receivable and other current assets (5, 649)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 3,560
Q her 1, 084
Net cash provided by operating activities 48, 194
CASH FLOA5S FROM | NVESTI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Construction and capital expenditures, net of capitalized interest (69, 101)
Cost of acquisitions, net of cash received (5,598)
Gt her assets --
Net cash used by investing activities (74, 699)
CASH FLOAS FROM FI NANCI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Proceeds from the issuance of |ong-term debt --
Payments on | ong-term debt (6, 210)
Debt issuance costs --
I ssuance of common stock and warrants 2,352
Purchase of treasury stock (9, 735)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (13, 593)
I ncrease (decrease) in cash (40, 098)
Cash and cash equival ents at begi nning of the year 101, 994
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 61,896
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DATA:
Interest paid $ 59,6672
I ncone taxes paid --
SUPPLEMENTAL NONCASH TRANSACTI ONS:
Property acquired under capital |eases $ 3,152
Not e payable in connection with acquisition 2,250

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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$ (25, 478)

40, 306
3,193
6, 145

(301)
(860)
2,987

3,154
15, 544
(657)

(74, 088)
(697, 732)
(2, 833)

(774, 653)

616, 597
(12, 590)
(37, 900)
266, 507

832,614

101, 994



ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
1. DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company" or "ACS Group") (formerly ALEC Holdings, Inc.), a Delaware
corporation, isengaged principally in providing local telephone, wireless, Internet and interexchange network and other services toits
customers in the State of Alaska through its telecommunications subsidiaries. The Company was formed in October of 1998 for the purpose of
acquiring and operating telecommuni cations properties.

The consolidated financial statements for the Company represent the operating results of the following legal entities fromthe date of their
respective acquisition (see Note 2, Acquisitions):

- Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.

- Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc. ("ACS Holdings")

- ACSof Alaska, Inc. ("ACSAK") (formerly Telephone Utilitiesof Alaska, Inc.)

- ACSof the Northland, Inc. ("ACSN") (formerly Telephone Utilities of the Northland, Inc.)

- ACSof Fairbanks, Inc. ("ACSF") (formerly PTI Communications of Alaska, Inc.)

- ACSof Anchorage, Inc. ("ACSA") (formerly Alaska Communications Systems, Inc.)

- ACSWirdless, Inc. ("ACSW") (formerly MACtdl, Inc.)

- ACSLong Distance, Inc. ("ACSLD") (formerly ATU Long Distance, Inc.)

- ACSTdevision, L.L.C. ("ACSTV") (formerly Alaskan Choice Television, L.L.C.)

- ACSlInternet, Inc. (formerly PTINet, Inc.)

- Internet Alaska, Inc. ("IAI")

A summary of significant accounting policiesfollowed by the Company is set forth below:

Basis Of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are asof and for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 and include the operations
of the Company and ACS Holdings, ACSAK, ACSN, ACSF, ACSA, ACSW, ACSLD, and ACS Internet, Inc. sincetheir acquisition on May
14, 1999, ACSTV since its acquisition on September 30, 1999, and IAl since its acquisition on June 16, 2000. Prior to the completion of the
acquisitions on May 14, 1999, the Company's balance sheet was comprised of 100 shares of common stock and the Company had no
operations.

The consolidated financial statements includeall majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances have been eliminated.
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1999 financial statementsto make them conform to the current presentation, includinga
reduction of operating revenues and operating expenses of $474 to conform to the current practice of eliminating i ntersegment revenue and
expense.

Use Of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetsand liabilities and disclosure of commitments and
contingencies at thedate of the financia statements and the reported amounts of revenuesand expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
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For purposes of the consolidated balance sheets and statements of cash flows, the Company generally considers all investments with amaturity
at acquisition of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies are carried in inventory at thelower of weighted average cost or market.

F-7
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
I nvestments

Investmentsin unconsolidated subsidiaries and other investees in which the Company has20% to 50% interest or otherwise exercises
significant influence are accounted for under the equity method.

Investments carried at equity consists of the following at December 31, 2000:

Conpany: Carrying val ue Per cent
Owned
Al aska Network Services, |nc. $1, 370 47. 0%

Investments carried at equity consists of the following at December 31, 1999:

Conpany: Carrying val ue Per cent
Omned
Al aska Network Services, Inc. $1,614 47. 0%
I nternet Al aska, |nc. 59 28. 5%
$1, 673

Alaska Network Services, Inc. (ANS) by vote of its Board of Directors has elected to wind up its operations and dissolve, whichit expects to
complete during 2001. During 2000 the Company wrote down its investmentin ANSto its expected realizable value.

The Company acquired all outstanding shares of 1Al on June 16, 2000.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Telephone plant is stated substantially at original cost of construction. Telephone plant retired in the ordinary course of business, together with
cost of removal, lesssalvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation with no gain or loss recognized. Renewal s and betterments of telephone
plant are capitalized whilerepairs, aswell as renewalsof minor items, are charged to operating expense as incurred. The Company provides for
depreciation of telephone plant on the straight-line method, using rates approved by theregulatory authorities. The composite annualized rate of
depreciation for all classes of property, plant, and equipment was6.6% and 6.5% for 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The company isthe lessee of equipment and buildings under capital leases expiringin variousyears through 2019. The assets and liabilities
under capital leases arerecorded at thelower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or thefair value of the assets. The assets are
amortized over thelower of their related leasetermsor their estimated productive lives. Amortization of assetsunder capital leasesisincluded
in depreciation expense for 2000 and 1999.

Non-Telephone plant is stated at purchased cost and, when sold or retired, again or lossis recognized. Depreciation of such property is
provided on thestraight-line method over its estimated service life ranging from three to 20 years.

Cdlular, PCS, and UHF Licenses
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Cdlular, PCS, and UHF licenses are stated at purchased cost. Amortization is computed on the straight-line method over an estimated useful
life of 40 years. These licenses are renewable at the Company'soption in perpetuity. The amortization expensefor 2000 and 1999 was$606 and
$347, respectively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost of companies acquired over the fair value of their net assets at dates of acquisition. Goodwill associated
with the purchase of telephone properties is amortized on the straight-line method over 40 years. Goodwill associated with non-regulated
properties is amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years. The amortization expense for 2000 and 1999 was$7,510 and $4,243,
respectively.

F-8
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Debt Issue Costs

Legal, accounting and financing fees, printing costs, and other expenses associated with the senior credit facility, senior subordinated notes, and
discount debentures are being amortized on the straight-line method over the term of the debt, which approximates the effective interest
method. Amortization expense included in interest expense for 2000 and 1999 was $4,573 and $2,899.

Treasury Stock

During 2000, the Company was authorized by its Board of Directorsto repurchase up to $10,000 of its common stock, to be completed by
December 31, 2000. ACSGroup acquired 1,532 shares of its common stock for $9,735. Thistreasury stock is being held for general corporate
purposes.

Revenue Recognition

Recurring local service revenues arebilled one monthin advance and are deferred until earned. Nonrecurring revenues are billed in arrears and
are recognized when earned. Additionally, the Company establishes estimated bad debt reserves against uncollectible revenuesincurred during
the period. During 2000 and 1999, no customer accounted for more than 10% of the consolidated revenues of the Company.

Access revenuesare recognized when earned. The Company participatesin toll revenue pools with other telephone companies. Such pools are
funded by toll revenue and/or access charges regulated by the Regulatory Commission of Alaska ("RCA") within theintrastate jurisdiction and
the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") withinthe interstate jurisdiction. Much of theinterstate access service revenueisinitialy
recorded based on estimates. These estimates are derived from interim financial statements, available separations studies and the most recent
information available about achieved rates of return. These estimates are subject to adjustment in future accounting periods as refined
operational information becomes available. To the extent that disputes arise over revenue settlements, the Company's policy isto defer revenue
collected until settlement methodol ogies are resolved and finalized.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under theliability method, deferred taxes reflect the temporary
differences between the financial and tax bases of assets and liabilities usingthe enacted tax ratesin effect in the yearsin which the differences
are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assetsare reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent that it is unlikely they will be realized. One of the
acquired companies had a remaining unamortized regulatory investmenttax credit of $695 at May 14, 1999, of which $301 was amortized
against incomein 1999, $197 was amortized against income in 2000 leaving a remaining balance of $197 at December 31, 2000.

Regulatory Accounting and Regulation

Theloca telephone exchange operations of the Company account for costs in accordance with the accounting principles for regulated
enterprises prescribed by Statements of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation. This accounting recognizes the economic effects of rate regulation by recording cost and a return on investment assuch amounts
are recovered through rates authorized by regulatory authorities. Accordingly, under SFAS No. 71, plant and equipment is depreciated over
lives approved by regulators and certain costs and obligations are deferred based upon approvals received from regulatorsto permit recovery of
such amountsin future years. Depreciable lives of plant and equipment approximate their estimated economic lives. Unregulated revenues and
costsincurred by thelocal telephone exchange operations and non-regulated operations of the Company are not accounted for under SFAS No.
71 principas. The effect of adopting SFAS 101 , Regulated Enterprises -- Accounting for the Discontinuation of Application of FASB
Statement No. 71, would not be material to the Company'sfinancia position, results of operations or cash flows.

F-9
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Regulatory Accounting and Regulation, continued

Theloca telephone exchange activities of the Company are subject to rate regulation by the FCC for interstate telecommunication service, and
the RCA for intrastate andlocal exchange telecommunication service. The Company, as required by the FCC, accounts for such activity
separately. Long distance services of the Company are subject to rate regulation as a non-dominant interexchange carrier by the FCC for
interstate telecommunication services and the RCA for intrastate telecommunication services. Cellular operations are not subject to rate
regulation.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluatesthe carrying valueof property, plant and equipment and intangiblesif events or changesin circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of such assets may not be fully recoverable on the undiscounted cash flow basis of the underlying business.

Compr ehensive Income (L 0ss)
The Company's comprehensivelossis equal to its netloss for all periods presented.

Earnings Per Share

Dilutive common equivalent shares from stock options and warrants are cal culated using the treasury stock method (dilutive earnings per share).
Due to the Company'sreported net loss, common equivalent shares, which consisted of 3,998 and 3,154 options granted to employees, were
anti-dilutive for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. For 1999 earnings per share is based on theweighted average
number of sharesof common stock outstanding from May 14, 1999 through December 31, 1999 (basic earnings per share). The weighted
average number of shares outstanding during 1999 is calculated from May 14, 1999 because the Company had no significant operations or
outstanding shares prior to that date.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, theFinancial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities. This statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities. It requiresthat an
entity recognizes all derivatives aseither assetsor liabilities in the balance sheet and measures those instruments at fair value. This statement, as
amended, is effective beginning for the Company'sfiscal year ending December 31, 2001. Currently, the Company believes that adoption of
this statement will not have a material impact on its consolidated statements.

2. ACQUISITIONS

On May 14, 1999, the Company acquired ACS Holdings who acquired Century Telephone Enterprise, Inc.'s Alaska holdings, including
ACSAK, ACSN, ACSF, Pacific Telecom of Alaska PCS, Inc., and Pacific Telecom Cellular of Alaska, Inc., excludingthe assets, liabilities and
equity of Alaska RSA#1 (collectively, "CenturyTel's Alaska Properties'). On the same date, ACS Holdings also acquired from the Municipality
of Anchorage ACSA and itssubsidiaries, ACSW and ACSLD (collectively, "ATU"). These holdingsinclude local area exchange service, long
distance service, Internet serviceand cellular operations throughout rural Alaska and Anchorage. Both acquisitions were accounted for under
the purchase method of accounting. The financial statements reflect the allocation of the purchase price and assumption of certain ligbilitiesand
include the operating results of both ATU and CenturyTel's Alaska Properties from the date of acquisition. In total, the Company paid Century
Telephone Enterprise $411,784 for the CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and the Municipality of Anchorage $265,115 for the assets acquired.
Acquisition expenses totaling $19,216 were also allocated to the purchase price.

F-10
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

2. ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

The following reflects the allocation of the purchase price and the sources of fundsto financethe purchase.

Cent uryTel
Al aska

properties ATU Tot al
Current assets $ 16,882 $ 42,146 $ 59,028
Property, plant and equi pnent 157, 758 248, 648 406, 406
O her assets 13, 680 20, 665 34, 345
Liabilities assuned (19, 746) (41,177)
(60, 923)
Net assets acquired 168, 574 270, 282 438, 856
Goodwi | | 250, 323 6, 936 257, 259
Total cost of acquisition 418, 897 277,218 696, 115
Acqui sition expenses (7,113) (12, 103)
(19, 216)
Total purchase price paid $ 411, 784 $ 265, 115 $ 676, 899

Net assets acquired were purchased for cash provided fromthe following sources:

Senior credit facility revolving | oan $
6, 700

Senior credit facility term| oans

435, 000

9- 3/ 8% seni or subordi nated notes due 2009

150, 000

13% seni or di scount debentures due 2011

19, 911

| ssuance of commbn stock and warrants

126, 289

Tot al sources
$737, 900

These sources aso provided $12,601 of working capital and included $48,400 of transaction fees and expenses.

The following are the unaudited pro formaresults for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, giving effect to the acquisitions as if they
had occurred at the beginning of the periods.
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Revenues $299, 909 $281, 606
Loss from continui ng operations

(26, 749)
(17, 276)
Net | oss

(30,016)
(17, 276)
Loss from continuing operations per share $ (0.82) $
0.53
&bt ILSS per share (basic and dilutive) $ (0.92) $
(0.53)

On September 30, 1999, the Company acquired a majority interestin Alaskan Choice Television, LLC ("ACTV™). The cash purchase price was
approximately $1,900. On February 14, 2000, the Company purchased the remaining one-third interest of ACTV for $3,042, including a $2,250
note payable which callsfor accelerated principal paymentsbased on the achievement of certain subscriber goals in thefuture. This acquisition
isnot included in the pro formaresults above, as it would not have had a significant effect.

On June 16, 2000, the Company acquired a 100% interest in IAl. It previously held a minority interest of 28.5%. This acquisition is not
included in the pro formaresults above, as it would not have had a significant effect.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable - trade at December 31, 2000 and 1999 is comprised of the following:

Accounts receivabl
Cust oners
$36, 163

e - trade:

Connecti ng conpani es

14, 261
O her
4,102

54,526

Less al |l owance for doubtful

5, 203

Accounts recei
$49, 323

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

vabl e - trade,

net

accounts

$39, 594
13, 410

3,164

Property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2000 and 1999 is comprised of the following:

EGAF
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2000 1999

Property, plant, and equipmrent:

Land, buil dings and support assets $144, 500
$143, 806

Central office switching and transni ssion 286, 714
256, 805

Qutside plant cable and wire facilities 455, 213
437, 813

Cel lul ar switching and transm ssion systens 34,738
21, 861

O her 5,311
6, 316

Construction work in progress 27,081
35, 530

953, 557

902, 131

Less accumnul ated depreciation and anortization 492, 822
452, 304

Property, plant and equi pnent, net $460, 735
$449, 827

2000 1999

Property held under capital |eases:

Land, buildings and support assets $ 9,230
$8, 974

Qutside plant cable and wire facilities 2,710

O her 856

12, 796

8,974

Less accumul ated depreciation and anortization 1, 250
325

Property held under capital |eases, net $11, 546
$8, 649

Amortization on assets under capital leases included in depreciation expense in 2000 and 1999 is $925 and $325, respectively.

F-12
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The Company leases various land, buildings, right-of-ways, and personal property under operating lease agreements. Rental expenses under
operating leases for 2000 and 1999 were $4,055 and $1,030, respectively. Future minimum payments under these leases for the next five years
and theresfter areas follows:

2001 $
3,126
2002
2,743
2003
2,213
2004
1, 277
2005
804
Thereafter
5, 837

5. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets at December 31, 2000 and 1999 was comprised of the following:

2000 1999
Debt issue costs, net of accunul ated anortization
of $7,766 and $3, 193, respectively $30, 128 $34, 701
Cellular, PCS, and UHF |licenses, net of anortization of $953
and $347, respectively 24,943 25,431
Prepai d pensi on asset 3,862 3,530
Deferred charges and other assets 5,371 7, 368
$64, 304 $71, 030

6. ACCRUED AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued and other current liabilitiesat December 31, 2000 and 1999 was comprised of thefollowing:
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Accrued payroll, benefits,
7,928

Accrued personal tine off
4,506

Accrued interest

2,904

Ref undabl e access revenue
O her

5,942

and related liabilities
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7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations consist of the following at December 31, 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999

Senior credit facility termloan - tranche A $ 150, 000 $ 150, 000
Senior credit facility termloan - tranche B 150, 000 150, 000
Senior credit facility termloan - tranche C 135, 000 135, 000
9 3/ 8% seni or subordi nated notes due 2009 150, 000 150, 000
13% seni or di scount debentures due 2011 17, 313 17,598
Oiginal issue discount - 13% senior discount debentures due 2011 (2,950) (3,249)
Capital |eases and other |ong-term obligations 14, 641 13, 407

614, 004 612, 756
Less current portion 2,586 4,845
Long-term obligations, net of current portion $ 611, 418 $ 607,911

The aggregate maturities of long-term obligationsfor each of the fiveyears and thereafter subsequent to December 31, 2000 areas follows:

Tot al

2,586
4,911
4,729

4,787

2005
4,859
Thereafter
592, 132

Senior Credit Facility

On May 14, 1999, the Company entered into a credit agreement with a syndicate of commercial bankswhich provide the Company's senior
credit facility. The senior credit facility provides $435 million of term loans and arevolving credit facility witha $75 million line of credit. The
Company'sobligations under the senior credit facility areunconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed, joint and severaly, by the Company and
its subsidiaries, and secured by collateral that includes substantialy all of the Company and its subsidiaries assets. The senior credit facility
contains a number of restrictive covenants and events of default, including covenants limiting capital expenditures, incurrence of debt, and the
payment of dividends, and requires the Company to achieve certain financia ratios. As of December 31, 2000 and 1999 the Company was in
compliance with all of the covenants of the senior credit facility except one at December 31, 1999 relating to the manner in which licenses are
held, for which awaiver was obtained.

The tranche A term loan of $150 million is repayable in annual principal paymentsof 1% of outstanding principal commencing on May 14,
2002 with the balance due on November 14, 2006. The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal (at the Company's option) to: (1) an adjusted
London inter-bank offered rate ("LIBOR") plus 2.75% or (2) arate equal to 1.75% plus the greater of the administrative agent's prime rate, a
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certificate of deposit rate plus 1.00% or thefederal funds rate plus .50%, in each case subject to reduction based on the Company'sfinancial
performance. Therate of interestin effect at December 31, 2000 and 1999 was 9.25% and 8.94%, respectively, and is based onthe LIBOR rate
option.

The tranche B term loan of $150 million is repayable in annua principal payments of 1% of outstanding principal commencing on May 14,
2002 with the balance due on November 14, 2007. The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal (at the Company's option) to: (1) LIBOR plus
3.00% or (2) arateequal to

2.00% plus the greater of the administrative agent's prime rate, a certificate of deposit rate plus 1.00% or thefederal funds rate plus .50%. The
rate of interest in effect at December 31, 2000 and 1999 was 9.50% and 9.19%, respectively, and is based on the LIBOR rate option.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The tranche C term loan of $135 million is repayable in annua principal paymentsof 1% of outstanding principal commencing on May 14,
2002 with the balance due on May 14, 2008. The loan bears interest at an annual rate equal (at the Company's option) to: (1) LIBOR plus
3.25% or (2) arateequal to 2.25% plusthe greater of the administrative agent's prime rate, acertificate of deposit rate plus 1.00% or the federa
fundsrate plus .50%. The rate of interest in effect at December 31, 2000 and 1999 was 9.75% and 9.44%, respectively, and is based on the
LIBOR rate option.

The senior credit facility also provides arevolving credit facility in theamount of $75 million whichis available, in part, for up to $25 million
inletters of credit and upto $10 million in theform of swinglineloans. This revolving facility is available for seven years and outstanding
balances thereunder will bear interest at an annual interest rate option equivalent to that provided under tranche A.

On July 24, 1999 the Company entered into a interest rate swap agreement to reduce theimpact of changesin interest rates on its floating rate
long-term debt. This agreement fixed at 5.99% theunderlying variablerate on one-half the borrowings under the senior credit facility, or
$217.5 million, for athree-year period. The differential to be paid or received isrecorded as interest expensein the consolidated statement of
operations in the period in which it is recognized. The Company is exposed to credit losses from counterparty nonperformance, but does not
anticipate any losses from its agreement.

Senior Subordinated Notes

On May 14, 1999, the Company issued $150 million in aggregate principal amount of 9 3/8 % senior subordinated notes due 2009. Interest on
the notesis payable semi-annually on May 15 and November 15, commencing November 15, 1999. The noteswill mature on May 15, 2009,
and are redeemable, in wholeor in part, at theoption of the Company, at any time on or after May 15, 2004 at 104.688% of the principal
amount declining to 100% of the principal amount on or after May 15, 2007. The notes contain a number of restrictive covenants, including
covenants limiting incurrence of debt and the payment of dividends. As of December 31, 2000 and 1999 the Company was in compliance with
all the covenants of the notes.

Senior Discount Debentures

On May 14, 1999 the Company issued $46.9 million in aggregate principal amount of senior discount debentures due 2011 and 828 warrants,
for gross proceeds of $25 million. Asamended on October 29, 1999, interest accrues at 13.00% andis payable at the Company's option
semiannually on May 15 and November 15, commencing May 15, 2000 until May 15, 2004 when the Company will be required to
semiannually pay interest. After the consummation of the Company's offering of common stock, in December 1999 the Company redeemed
35% ($9,321) of the aggregate principal amount of the discount debentures original issues, at aprice equal to their accreted value plusa
premium of one year'sinterest at the stated rate. The debentures will mature on May 15, 2011, and areredeemable, in whole or in part, at the
option of the Company, at any time on or after May 15, 2004 at 106.5% of the principal amount declining to 100% of the principal amount on
or after May 15, 2009. The debentures contain a number of restrictive covenants, including covenants limiting incurrence of debt and the
payment of dividends. Asof December 31, 2000 and 1999 the Company wasin compliance with all the covenants of the debentures.

The original issue discount of $5,089 resulted from theissuance of detachable warrantsin connection with the 13.00% senior discount
debentures. These detachable warrantswere exercisable into 828 shares of common stock at any time from May 14, 1999 through May 15,
2011 at $0.01 per share. The original issue discount represents the difference between the exercise price and the fair value of the underlying
shares at the date of issue. On November 18, 1999, these warrantswere exercised in aroll-up transaction resulting in 828 shares of stock being
issued.

Capital leases and other long-term obligations
The Company has entered into various capital leases and other debt agreements totaling $14,641 and $13,407 with a weighted average interest
rate of

8.91% and 8.978 % at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

8. LOCAL TELEPHONE OPERATING REVENUE

Local telephone operating revenuesconsisted of thefollowing at December 31, 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999
Local network service $ 92,420 $
59, 891
Net wor k access revenue 105, 172
67, 174
Directory advertising 32, 056
17,713
Der egul ated revenue and ot her 21,776
14, 373
Total |ocal tel ephone operating revenues $251, 424
$159, 151
9. UNUSUAL CHARGES
During 2000, the Company recorded $5,288 of unusual charges, consisting of the following:
2000

Costs incurred in attenpted acquisition
$1, 451

Severance and restructuring costs

3,019

Legal settlenent

818

During 2000, the Company attempted to acquire the Matanuska Telephone Association, acooperative telephone association located in Alaska.
The acquisition was subject to approval by a vote of the membership of the cooperative association requiring a super majority, which was held
in September of 2000. The membership of the association voted to approve the acquisition but failed to achieve the required super magjority.
The Company had incurred $1,451 of legal, consulting and other out of pocket costs associated with the attempted acquisition which were
charged to expense during September 2000.

The Company recorded $3,019 related to severance and restructuring charges under several plans adopted during 2000. Employee force
reductions resulting from these restructuring plans are expected to total approximately 300 by their completion, whichis expected to be during
the fourth quarter of 2001. Employee groupslocated in Alaska within thelocal telephone, cellular and Internet operations areall included
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within the scope of the severance and restructuring plans. The plansalso call for the closure of a branch operation in VVancouver, Washington.
Asof December 31, 2000, $962 hasbeen paid under the plans and approximately 100 employees have been terminated.

In December 2000, the Company settled out of court a claim by a vendor that arose from an undisclosed contractual obligation it incurred in the
purchase of the Company's operations in May 1999, resulting in a charge to expense of $818.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

10. INCOME TAXES
The Company's combined federal income and state effective income tax rate from continuing operations was a benefit of 0.8% and 1.3% in

2000 and 1999, respectively. The difference between taxes calculated as if the statutory federa rate of 35% wasapplied to loss from continuing
operations before income tax and the recorded tax benefit is reconciled asfollows:

2000 1999
Conput ed federal inconme taxes at the 35%statutory rate $ (8,891) $(7,774)
Increase (reduction) in tax resulting from
State incone taxes (net federal benefit) (1, 494) (1, 407)
Original issue discount interest 211 908
Anortization of investnent tax credits (197) (301)
Val uation all owance - book net operating |oss 10, 205 7, 965
Q her (31) 308
Total income tax benefit $  (197) $ (301)
The benefit for income taxes is summarized as follows:
2000 1999
Current:
Federal incone tax $ -- $ --

State incone tax - - -

Total current - - - -

Def err ed:
Federal incone tax - - -
State i ncone tax .- -

Total deferred -- --

Anortization of investnent tax credits (197)
(301)
Total incone tax benefit $(197)
$(301)

The effect of significant items comprising the Company'snet deferred tax liability wereas follows:
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Deferred tax liabilities - long-term
Property, plant and equi prent
I nt angi bl es
O her

Total long-term deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets:
Current:
Accrued conpensation
Accrued bad debts
Deferred investnment tax credit
Regul atory liabilities FASB 109
Extraordi nary net operating |oss
Total current deferred tax assets
Long-term
Net operating |oss carryforwards from operations
Original issue di scount
Total long-term deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax assets
Val uation all owance

Net deferred tax asset
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

10. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The company has available at December 31, 2000 unused operating loss carryforwards of $79,295 that may be applied against future taxable
income and that expire as follows:

Year of Unused Operating
Expiration Loss
Carryf orwards

2019 $20, 390
2020 58, 905
$79, 295

11. EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

On December 3, 1999 the Company retired 35% ($9,321) of the senior discount debentures due in 2011 with a portion of the proceeds fromits
initial public offering ("IPO") of common stock in November 1999. The Company paid a premium of 13% of theretired principal in the amount
of $1,219. Additionally, 35% of the debt issue costs and original issue discount resulting from the warrants associated the senior discount
debentures werewritten off in the amounts of $294, and $1,754, respectively. The transaction resulted in an extraordinary charge of $3,267
($0.14 per share). The income tax benefit of $1,343 was offset by a valuation allowance.

12. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

Under various plans, ACS Group, through the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, may grant stock options, stock appreciation
rights and other awards to officers, employees and non-employee directors. At December 31, 2000, ACS Group has reserved a total of 6,060
shares of authorized common stock for issuance under thevarious plans. In general, options under the plansvest ratably over three, four or five
yearsand the plansterminate in approximately 10 years.

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” in accounting for its plans.
Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for options with exercise prices equal to or greater than fair value on the date of grant.
If compensation costs had been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", the Company's net
loss and net loss per share on a pro formabases for 2000 and 1999 would have been as follows:

2000 1999

Net | oss:

As reported $( 25, 205)
$(25, 478)

Pro fornma (26, 867)
(26, 144)
Net | oss per share - basic and dil uted:

As reported $ (0.77) $
(1.09)

Pro form (0.82)
(1.12)

The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant, using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted
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average assumptions for grants:

2000 1999
Risk free rate 5. 5%
5.5%
Di vidend yield 0. 0%
0. 0%
Expected volatility factor 52. 5%
40. 3%
Expected option life (years) 6.1 7.0
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

12. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (CONTINUED)
ALEC Holdings, Inc. 1999 Stock I ncentive Plan

ACS Group hasreserved 3,410 sharesunder thisplan, which was adopted in connection with the completion of the acquisitions on May 14,
1999 (seeNote 2, Acquisitions). At December 31, 2000 3,928 options have been granted, 785 have been forfeited, 237 have been exercised and
267 areavailable for grant under the plan. The plan allowsforfeited options to be reissued. The planwill terminate on May 14, 2009.

During May, Juneand July of 1999, 2,919 of these options were granted at an exercise price equivalent to the then fair value of the underlying
stock asevidenced by salesto third parties. Of the options granted in May, 654 are variable plan performance vesting options granted to certain
officers and management of the Company. These performance vesting options becamevested upon completion of ACS Group'sIPO in
November 1999, and resulted in therecording of $4,148 of compensation expense. Compensation expense recorded for these options represents
the difference between the |PO price of $14.00 and the exercise price of $6.1542. The remaining options granted during May, June and July of
1999 generaly vest ratably over five yearsor after nineyears subject to acceleration upon the attainment of certain performance goals.

During September, October, and November 1999, 504 options weregranted, all at exercise prices below thefair value of the underlying stock
at thetime of issuance, whichwas an average of $10.12 per share. These options vested upon completion of ACS Group's |PO in November of
1999, and resulted in the recording of compensation expense of $1,997. Compensation expense recorded for theseoptions represents the
difference between the fair value of the underlying stock of $10.12 and the exercise price of $6.1542.

On November 20, 2000, the Board of Directors approved the grant of options under the plan to purchase 505 sharesto certain members of
management at an exercise price of $5.50 per share, generally vesting over four yearsratably.

Information on outstanding options for the yearsended December 31, 2000 and 1999 is summarized as follows:

2000 1999
Wi ght ed Wi ght ed
Aver age Aver age
Nurnber of Exerci se Nurber of Exerci se
Shar es Price Shar es Price
Qut st andi ng January 1 3,154 $6. 15 -- $ --
G ant ed 505 5.50 3,423 6. 15
Exer ci sed (198) 6. 15 (39) 6. 15
Cancel ed or expired (555) 6. 08 (230) 6. 15
Qut st andi ng Decenber 31 2,906 6. 05 3,154 6. 15
Options exercisable at Decenber 31 1,541 6.12 1, 255 6. 15
Wi ghted average fair value of options granted 3.09 3.88
The outstanding options at December 31, 2000 have the following characteristics:
Qut st andi ng Opti ons Exerci sabl e Options
Wei ght ed Wei ght ed Wei ght ed
Aver age Aver age Aver age
Number of Remai ni ng Exerci se Nunber Exerci se
Range of Exercise Prices Shar es Life (Years) Price Exer ci sabl e Price
$5.50 - $6.15 2,906 7.85 $6. 05 1, 541 $6. 12
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

12. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (CONTINUED)

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 1999 Stock | ncentive Plan

This plan was adopted by ACS Group in November 1999 in connection with itsIPO. At December 31, 2000 1,247 options have been granted,
155 have been forfeited, and 408 are available for grant under the plan. The plan allowsforfeited options to be reissued. The term of options
granted under the plan may not exceed 10 years. Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors,
options will vest ratably on each of the first four anniversaries after the grant date and will have an exercise price equal to the fair market value
of thecommon stock on the date of grant.

No shareswere awarded under this plan during 1999. On February 9, 2000, the Board of Directors approved the grant of options under the plan
to purchase 887 sharesto certain members of management at an exercise price of $14.1354 per share. On June 20, 2000, theBoard of Directors
approved the grant of options under the plan to purchase 28 shares to certain members of management at an exercise price of $12.625 per share.
On September 7, 2000, the Board of Directors approved the grant of options under the plan to purchase 2 shares to a member of management at
an exercise price of $8.5819 per share. On October 20, 2000, the Board of Directors approved the grant of options under the planto purchase 5
sharesto certain members of management at an exercise price of $6.438 per share. On November 20, 2000, the Board of Directors approved
the grant of options under the plan to purchase 315 shares to certain membersof management at an exercise price of $5.50 per share. On
November 28, 2000, theBoard of Directors approved the grant of options under the planto purchase 10 shares to certain members of
management at anexercise price of $6.125 per share.

Information on outstanding options for the year December 31, 2000 is summarized as follows:

Wi ght ed
Aver age
Nunber of
Exerci se
Shar es Price

Qut st andi ng January 1 -- $  --
Granted 1, 247 11. 86
Exer ci sed -- --
Cancel ed or expired (155) 14. 20
Qut st andi ng Decenber 31 1, 092 11.53
Opti ons exercisabl e at Decenber 31 186 11. 66
Wei ght ed average fair value of options granted 6. 55

The outstanding options at December 31, 2000 have the following characteristics:
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Range of Exercise Prices

$5. 50 -
$8. 58 -
$14. 20

$6. 44
$12. 63

Qut st andi ng Opti ons

Wei ght ed Wei ght ed

Aver age Aver age
Number of Remai ni ng Exerci se
Shar es Life (Years) Price
330 9.89 $ 5.53
30 9.49 12. 29
732 9.12 14. 20
F-20
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Wei ght ed
Aver age
Nurber Exerci se
Exerci sabl e Price
53 $ 5.51
5 12. 29
128 14. 20



ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

12. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (CONTINUED)
ACSGroup, Inc.1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Compensation Plan

The non-employee director stock compensation plan was adopted by ACS Group in connection with its IPO. ACS Group has reserved 150
sharesunder thisplan. At December 31, 2000 26 shares have been awarded and 124 shares are available for grant under the plan. Directors are
required to receive not lessthan 25% of their annual retainer and meeting feesin theform of ACSGroup's stock, and may elect to receive up to
100% of director's compensation in theform of stock.

During theyear ended December 31, 2000, 26 shares under the plan were awarded to directors, of which 13 were elected to be deferred until
termination of service by the directors.

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

This plan was also adopted in connection with ACS Group's IPO in November 1999. At December 31, 2000, 868 shares areavailable for
issuance and sale. The planwill terminate on December 31, 2009. All ACS Group employees and all of the employeesof designated
subsidiaries generally will be eligible to participate in the purchase plan, other than employees whose customary employmentis 20 hours or less
per week or isfor not more than five months in a calendar year, or who areindligible to participate due to restrictionsunder the Internal
Revenue Code.

On June 30, 2000, 65 shares wereissued under the plan. On December 29, 2000, 67 shares were issued under the plan.

A participant in the purchase plan may authorize regular salary deductions of a maximum of 15% and a minimumof 1% of base compensation.
The fair market value of shareswhich may be purchased by any employee during any calendar year may not exceed $25. The amounts so
deducted and contributed will be applied to the purchase of full shares of common stock at 85% of the lesser of thefair market value of such
shares on thedate of purchase or on the offering date for such offering period. The offering dates will be January 1 and July 1 of each purchase
plan year, and each offering period will consist of onesix-month purchase period. The first offering period under the plan commenced on
January 1, 2000. Shares will be purchased on the open market or issued from authorized but unissued shares on behalf of participating
employees on the last business days of June and December for each purchase planyear and each such participant will have the rights of a
stockholder with respect to such shares. During the year ended December 31, 2000 approximately 36% of eligible employees elected to
participate in the plan.

13. RETIREMENT PLANS

Pension benefits for substantially all of the Company'semployees are provided through the Alaska Electrical Pension Plan ("AEPP"). The
Company pays a contractua hourly amount based on employee classification or base compensation. Asa multi-employer defined benefit plan,
the accumul ated benefits and plan assetsare not determined or allocated separately to the individual employer. The Company's portion of the
plan's pension cost for 2000 and 1999 was$10,978 and $6,099, respectively.

The Company also hasa separate defined benefit plan that covers certain employees previously employed by Century Telephone Enterprise,

Inc. ("CenturyTel Plan™). This plan was transferred to The Company in connection with the acquisition of the CenturyTel's Alaska Properties.
Existing plan assets and liabilities of the CenturyTel Plan weretransferred to the ACS Retirement Plan on September 1, 1999. Accrued benefits
under the ACSRetirement Plan were determined in accordance with the provisions of the CenturyTel Plan. Upon completion of the transfer to
The Company, covered employees ceased to accrue benefits under the plan. On November 1, 2000 the ACS Retirement Plan was amended to
conform early retirement reduction factors and various other terms to those provided by the AEPP. Asaresult of thisamendment, prior service
cost of $1,992 wasrecorded and will be amortized over the expected service life of the plan participants at the date of the amendment. The
Company usesthe traditional unit credit method for the determination of pension cost for financial reporting and funding purposes and complies
with thefunding requirements under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Since the planis adequately funded, no
contribution was made in 2000 or 1999.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

13. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The following table represents the net periodic pension expense (benefit) for the ACS Retirement Plan for 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999
Servi ce cost $ -- $ --
I nterest cost 447 149
Expected return on plan assets (813)
(170)
Net anortization and deferral 34 --
Net periodic pension benefit $(332) $
(21)

The following isareconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for 2000 and 1999 for the projected benefit obligation and the plan
assets for the ACS Retirement Plan:

2000 1999
Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at begi nning of year $ 5,724 $ --
Acqui sition -- 5, 780
Pl an amendrent s 1,992 --
Anortization of prior service cost (34) --
Servi ce cost -- --
I nterest cost 447 149
Actuarial (gain) |oss 501
(205)
Benefits paid (30) --
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 8,600 $ 5,724
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 9,564 $ - -
Acqui sition -- 9, 289
Return on plan assets (277) 275
Enpl oyer contri butions -- --
Benefits paid (30) --
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 9,257 $ 9,564

The following table represents thefunded status of the ACS Retirement Plan at December 31, 2000 and 1999:
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Proj ected benefit obligation
$(5, 724)
Pl an assets at fair val ue

Funded Stat us

Unrecogni zed net prior obligation
Unrecogni zed prior service cost
Unr ecogni zed net | oss (gain)
(310)

Pensi on asset at end of year

F-22

Dvwared oo B reins 2000,

EDGAR Online, Inc.




ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

13. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The actuarial assumptionsused to account for the plan as of December 31, 2000 and 1999 areas follows:

2000 1999
Di scount rate 7.50%
7.90%
Expected return on assets 8.50%
5. 50%
Rate of conpensation increase 0. 00%
0. 00%

The Company also provides a401(k) retirement savings plan covering substantially al of its employees. The plan alowsfor discretionary
matching contributions as determined by theBoard of Directors, subject to Internal Revenue Code limitations. There was no matching
contribution for 2000 or 1999.

14. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company has three reportable segments: local telephone, which provides landline telecommunications services, and consists of local
telephone service, network access, directory advertising, deregulated and other revenues; cellular, which provides wireless telecommunications
service; and Internet, which is being reported as a separate segment in the current year due to the growth and acquisition of 1Al. Each reportable
segment is a strategic business under separate management and offering different services than those offered by the other segments. The
Company aso hasinterexchange network and television services segmentswhich do not meet the criteria for areportable segment and are
therefore includedin "All Other" below. The Company also incurs interest expense, interest income, equity in earnings of investmentsand other
non operating income and expense at the corporate level which arenot allocated to the business segments, nor arethey evaluated by the chief
operating decision maker in analyzing the performance of the business segments. These non operating income and expense items are provided
in the accompanying table under the caption "All Other" in order to assist the users of these financial statementsin reconciling the operating
resultsand total assetsof the business segmentsto the consolidated financial statements. Common use assetsare held at either the Company or
ACS Holdings and are allocated below based on operating revenues. The accounting policies of the segments are the sameas those described in
the summary of significant accounting policies.

The following table illustrates selected financial datafor each segment as of and for the year ended December 31, 2000:

Local Tel ephone Cel | ul ar I nt er net Al O her El'i m nations Tot al
Qperating revenues $ 251,424 $ 39,540 $ 9,172 $ 20, 904 $(8, 047) $ 312,993
Depreci ation and anortization 56, 912 5,029 1, 495 8, 829 -- 72,265
Operating income (loss) 46, 906 6,414 (8, 760) (11, 629) -- 32,931
I nterest expense (1, 046) (11) (109) (63, 544) -- (64, 710)
I nterest incone 105 215 -- 6, 498 -- 6, 818
I nconme tax provision (benefit) 14, 127 2,703 -- (17, 027) -- (197)
Net income (I oss) 31, 755 3,944 (8, 863) (52, 041) -- (25, 205)
Total assets 709, 823 114, 077 26, 740 57, 645 -- 908, 285
Capi tal expenditures 53,974 11, 505 3,252 3,522 -- 72,253

Operating revenues disclosed above include intersegment operating revenuesof $9,840 for local telephone, $937 for cellular, and $13,210 for
all other. In accordance with SFAS 71, intercompany revenues between local telephone and non local telephone operations are not eliminated
above.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)
14. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates selected financial datafor each segment as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999:

Local

Tel ephone Cel | ul ar I nt er net All Gher Eimnations Tot al
Qperating revenues $ 159, 151 $ 24,882 $ 2,853 $ 6,733 $(474) $ 193, 145
Depreci ation and anortization 32,881 2,159 219 5, 047 -- 40, 306
Operating incone (loss) 19,784 6, 801 (2, 267) (8,031) -- 16, 287
I nterest expense (240) (10) -- (39, 374) -- (39, 624)
Interest income 682 88 851 -- 1,621
I ncome tax provision (benefit) 7,793 2,890 -- (10, 984) -- (301)
Net incone (I oss) 11, 930 4, 056 (2, 267) (39, 197) -- (25, 478)
Extraordinary item -- -- -- (3,267) -- (3, 267)
Total assets 773, 405 114, 654 5,201 41,183 -- 934, 443
Capi tal expenditures 44, 310 10, 962 -- 19, 520 -- 74,792

Operating revenues disclosed above include intersegment operating revenuesof $3,177 for loca telephone, $479 for cellular, and $853 for all
other. Inaccordance with SFAS 71, intercompany revenues between local telephone and non local telephone operations are not eliminated
above.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Fox Paine & Company, ACS Group's majority stockholder, receives an annual management fee in theamount of 1% of the Company's net
income before interest expense, interestincome, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, and equity in loss of investments, calculated
without regard to the fee. The management fee expense for 2000 is $1,169 of which $1,145 waspayable at December 31, 2000. The
management fee expensefor 1999 is $610 all of whichwas payable at December 31, 1999.

In addition, in 1999, Fox Paine & Company received aggregate advisory feesin the amount of $14,200 upon consummation of the acquisitions
of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties and ATU and were reimbursed for pre-closing costs of $9,941.

In connection with stock grants, the company loaned officers of the company $757 with aninterest rate of the federal funds rate or 8%,
whichever is greater. The loans are secured by shares of ACS Group's common stock owned by the individual officers. At December 31, 1999
the balances of the officer loanswere $794. These loanswere repaid in their entirety on January 3, 2000.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of cash and short-term investments, accounts receivable and payable, and other short-term assets and liabilities approximate
carrying values due to their short-term nature.

The fair value for the Company's senior subordinated notesis estimated based on quoted market prices. The fair value of the Company'sterm
loan facilities approximates carrying values due to the variable interest rate nature of the debt. The fair value of the Company's senior discount
debentures is estimated based on market interest rates currently available to the Company. The Company employs an interest rate swap
agreement to manage interest rate exposure. Amountspayable or receivable under the agreement are recognized asadjustments to interest
expense in the periods in which they accrue. The fair value of the Company's interest rate swap agreement represents the estimated amount the
Company would receive or pay to terminate the agreement, calculated based on the present value of expected paymentsor receipts based on the
current market interest rate.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table summarizes the Company's carrying values and fair values of the debt components of its financial instruments at December
31, 2000:

Carryi ng Fair

Val ue Val ue
Senior credit facility termdebt - tranche A $150, 000 $ 150, 000
Senior credit facility termdebt - tranche B 150, 000 150, 000
Senior credit facility termdebt - tranche C 135, 000 135, 000
9 3/ 8% seni or subordi nated notes due 2009 150, 000 126, 375
13% seni or di scount debentures due 2011 14, 363 21, 665
Interest Rate Swap Agreenent --
(1, 243)
Capital |eases and other |ong-term obligations 14, 641 14, 641

$614, 004 $ 596, 438

The following table summarizes the Company's carrying values and fair values of the debt components of its financial instruments at December
31, 1999:

Carrying Fair

Val ue Val ue
Senior credit facility termdebt - tranche A $150, 000 $ 150, 000
Senior credit facility termdebt - tranche B 150, 000 150, 000
Senior credit facility termdebt - tranche C 135, 000 135, 000
9 3/8% seni or subordi nated notes due 2009 150, 000 145, 500
13% seni or di scount debentures due 2011 14, 349 21, 408
Interest Rate Swap Agreenent --
(923)
Capital |eases and other |ong-term obligations 13, 407 13, 407

$612, 756 $ 614, 392

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At December 31, 2000, the Company had acommitment to acquire additional fiber optic circuit capacity in the first quarter of 2001 at a
purchase price of $19,500. This commitment wasfulfilled on January 12, 2001.

The Company isinvolved in variousclaims, legal actions and regulatory proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion
of management, the ultimate disposition of these matterswill not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, CONTINUED
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

18. CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY OPERATING INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly Financial Data

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2000
Qper ating revenue $ 77,091 $ 81, 863 $ 74,866 $ 79,173
Operating income 11, 234 11, 949 3, 326 6, 422
Net | oss (3,138) (2, 696) (10, 876) (8,495)
Loss per share - basic and dil uted: (0.10) (0.08) (0.33) (0.26)
1999
Qperating revenue $ -- $ 38,282 $ 75,540 $ 79,323
Operating income -- 2,374 10, 602 3,311
Loss from continui ng operations -- (5, 746) (4,914) (11, 551)
Extraordinary item -- -- -- (3, 267)
Net | oss -- (5, 746) (4,914) (14, 818)
Loss per share - basic and dil uted:
Net | oss before extraordinary item -- (0.29) (0.23) (0.43)
Extraordinary item -- -- -- (0.12)
Net | oss -- (0.29) (0.23) (0.55)

Certain reclassifications have been made to the quarterly information previously presented in order to make them conform to the current
presentation. The first quarter 2000 operating revenue previously reported in the Company'sfirst quarter 2000 10-Q at $78,324, has been
reduced by $1,233 to reflect the current practice of eliminating intersegment revenue and expense. The second quarter, third quarter, and fourth
quarter 1999 operating revenues previously reported in the Company's 1999 10-K at $38,330, $75,747, and $79,542, respectively, have been
reduced by $48, $207 and $219, respectively, to reflect the current practice of €liminating intersegment revenue and expense. The Company
had no operations prior to the acquisitions of Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc., CenturyTel's Alaska Properties, and ATU on
May 14, 1999. Fourth quarter operating income for 1999 included stock based compensation expense of $6,145.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
SCHEDULE I1- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(IN THOUSANDS)

Bal ance at Charged to Charged to Bal ance at
Begi nni ng costs and ot her End
Description of Period expenses accounts (1) Deductions (2) of Period
2000 Al l owance for doubtful accounts $ 5,203 $7, 839 $ 751 $3, 962 $9, 831
1999 All owance for doubtful accounts $ -- $1, 130 $4, 798 $ 725 $5, 203

(1) Represents the allowance for doubtful accounts at the date of acquisition, and reserve for accounts receivable collected on the behalf of
others.

(2) Represents credit losses written off during the period, less collection of amounts previously written off.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Board of Directors
Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc. Anchorage, Alaska

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Alaska Communications SystemsHoldings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
December 31, 1998, and therelated consolidated statement of cash flows for the period from July 16, 1998 (date of inception) through
December 31, 1998. These financial statements arethe responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility isto expressan opinion
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards requirethat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Anaudit includes examining, on atest
basis, evidence supporting the amountsand disclosures in the financia statements. Anaudit a so includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financia statementsreferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Alaska
Communications SystemsHoldings, Inc. and Subsidiaries asof December 31, 1998, and their cash flowsfor the period from July 16, 1998
(date of inception) through December 31, 1998 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

/'s/ DELO TTE & TOUCHE
LLP

Portl and, Oregon
March 24, 1999
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMSHOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash
Recei vabl e from enpl oyees and related party (Note 2)

Total current assets
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUI PMENT, Net (Notes 1 and 3)
DEFERRED ACQUI SI TI ON AND FI NANCI NG COSTS (Note 1)
DEPCSI TS

LI ABI LI TIES AND STOCKHOLDER S EQUI TY

CURRENT LI ABI LI TI ES:
Accrued Liabilities
Advances payabl e to stockhol der (Note 2)

Total current liabilities
COVM TMENTS AND CONTI NGENCI ES (Notes 4 and 5)
STOCKHOLDER S EQUI TY:

Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized, 1,000 shares;

outstanding, 1 share

See Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMSHOLDINGS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Period from July

16,
1998 (Date of

I nception) Through
Decenber 31, 1998

CASH FLOAS FROM | NVESTI NG ACTI VI Tl ES:

Paynents for property, plant, and equi pnent $ (36, 536)
Deferred acquisition costs (248, 637)
Deposits (11, 820)
Accounts receivable from enpl oyees and rel ated party (41,771)
Accrued liabilities --
Net cash used in investing activities (338, 764)
CASH FLOAS FROM FI NANCI NG ACTI VI Tl ES:
Proceeds from advances from stockhol der 620, 000
NET ( DECREASE) | NCREASE | N CASH 281, 236

CASH, BEG NNI NG CF PERI OD --

CASH, END OF PERI OD $ 281, 236

See notesto consolidated financial statements.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERIOD FROM JULY 16, 1998 (DATE OF INCEPTION) THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 1998
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements for Alaska Communications SystemsHoldings, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") represent the
operating results of the following threelegal entities:

Alaska Communications SystemsHoldings, Inc. (formerly ALEC Acquisition Corporation)
ALEC Acquisition Sub Corp., Inc.
Alaska Communications Systems, Inc.

The Company was organized in 1998 as the principal entity to acquire and manage telecommunication operations in Alaska. The principal
activitiesin 1998 were the preparation of systems and obtaining financing for pending acquisitions (see Note 5). In May 1999, the Company
was acquired and became awholly owned subsidiary of ALEC Holdings, Inc.

A summary of significant accounting policiesfollowed by the Company is set forth below:

USE OF ESTIMATES--The preparation of financia statementsin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetsand liabilities and disclosure of commitments and
contingencies at thedate of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenuesand expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT is stated at cost. At December 31, 1998, the Company was in the early stages of opening its
Corporate Headquartersin Anchorage. No depreciation was claimed in 1998 since the assets in service were acquired at year end.

DEFERRED ACQUISITION AND FINANCING COSTS are stated at cost and are direct costs incurred in connection with the Company's
acquisitions and related financings.

REVENUES--No revenues or expenses have been generated since the Company washot in operation as of December 31, 1998.

2. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Fox Paine Capital Fund, the majority stockholder of the Company's parent, ALEC Holdings, Inc., has advanced cash to allow the Company to
operate until permanent funding is put in placeat the closing of the acquisitions (see Note 5). Outstanding advances were $620,000 as of
December 31, 1998. Fox Paine Capita Fund will continue to fund the Company until permanent funding is obtained at the closing of the
acquisitions.

The Company advanced cash to arelated party to perform certain consulting services in connection with the Company's pending acquisitions.
Cash used is capitalized as deferred acquisition costs. Any unused cash that was advanced to this related party isto be repaid to the Company.
Asof December 31, 1998, the total amount of unused cash was $41,771.
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMSHOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Period From July 16, 1998 (Date Of Inception) Through December 31, 1998
3. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

The balances by category of property, plant, and equipment, at December 31, 1998 are:

Ofice furniture, equipnent, and other $
3, 049

Construction work in progress

33, 487

Total property, plant, and equi prnent
36, 536
Less: Accunul ated depreciation

Property, plant, and equi pnent - net
$36, 536

4. LEASES

The Company has entered into an operating lease for office space in Anchorage, Alaskafor its corporate headquarters. The leaseisfor 60
months and, under this lease agreement, future minimumannual rental paymentsare as follows:

1999
$278, 772
2000
139, 060
2001
141, 841
2002

144,678
2003
147,571

Tot al
$851, 922

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has announced two purchase agreements that will allow the Company to enter thetelecommunications industry. The first
agreement involves theacquisition of CenturyTel's Alaska holdingsincluding Telephone Utilitiesof Alaska, Inc., Telephone Utilities of the
Northland, Inc., PTI Communications of Alaska, Inc., Pacific Telecom of Alaska PCS, Inc., and Pacific Telecom Cellular of Alaska, Inc. and
the second iswith the Municipality of Anchorage to acquire al of its telecommunication investments. Upon completion of thesetwo contracts,
the Company will havein excess of 300,000 local telephone, 70,000 cellular, 20,000 long distance, and 16,000 Internet access lines. The
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combined purchase priceis approximately $700 million. The Company is being funded by a $145 million equity contribution from its parent,
ALEC Holdings, Inc., and theremainder with bank financed debt.

It is currently anticipated that by mid-1999 al regulatory approvals will have been granted and the acquisitions will be completed. At that time,
the Company'sprimary business will be to provide traditional local telephone, long distance, cellular, and Internet service throughout the state
of Alaska. Until the completion of theacquisitions, the Company is incurring costs to facilitate certain transition and financing activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Board of Directors
Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying combined balance sheet of CenturyTel's Alaska Properties as of December 31, 1998, and therelated
combined statement of income and retained earnings, and cash flowsfor the year then ended. These combined financial statementsare the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these combined financia statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards requirethat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Anaudit includes examining, on atest
basis, evidence supporting the amountsand disclosures in the financia statements. Anaudit a so includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statementsreferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CenturyTel's

Alaska Properties as of December 31, 1998, and the results of their operations and their cash flowsfor the year ended December 31, 1998, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl KPMG
LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
February 26, 1999
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Board of Directors

Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc.
Monroe, Louisiana

We have audited the combined balance sheet of CenturyTel Alaska Properties asof December 31, 1997, and therelated combined statements of
income and retained earnings and of cash flowsfor theyear ended December 31, 1996, eleven months ended November 30, 1997, and one
month ended December 31, 1997. Thesefinancia statements arethe responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility isto
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that weplan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Anaudit includes examining, on atest
basis, evidence supporting the amountsand disclosures in the financia statements. Anaudit a so includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basisfor our opinion.

In our opinion, the financia statementsreferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the combined financia position of CenturyTel
Alaska Properties as of December 31, 1997, and the results of their operations and their cash flowsfor the year ended December 31, 1996,
eleven months ended November 30, 1997, and one month ended December 31, 1997, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

/'s/ DELO TTE & TOUCHE
LLP

Portland, Oregon
March 25, 1999
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES

COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equival ents
Accounts recei vabl e:

Custoners, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $376, and $164 at

Decenber 31, 1997 and 1998, respectively
Affiliates (Note 8)
Connecti ng conpani es
Recei vabl e fromsale of cellular |icense
M scel | aneous accounts receivable and ot her
Material and supplies (at cost)
Pr epayment s

Total current assets
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUI PMENT - Net (Note 4)
OTHER ASSETS:

Excess cost of net assets acquired, |ess accunul ated anortization of $5, 056,

and $6, 853 at Decenber 31, 1997 and 1998, respectively (Note 1)
I nvestnents, at cost
Q her, net

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LI ABI LI TIES AND SHAREHOLDER S EQUI TY

CURRENT LI ABI LI TI ES:

Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 5)

Accounts payabl e

Accrued expenses and other accrued liabilities:
Sal ari es and benefits
Taxes
Q her

Advance billings and custoner deposits (Note 1)

Total current liabilities
LONG TERM DEBT (Note 5)
DEFERRED CREDI TS AND OTHER LI ABI LI Tl ES:
Deferred incone taxes (Note 6)
Deferred investment tax credits
G her
Total deferred credits and other liabilities
SHAREHOLDER S EQUI TY:
Common stock (103 and 104 shares authorized and 23 and 24 issued
and out st andi ng, respectively)
Pai d-in capital
Ret ai ned ear ni ngs
Total shareholder's equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER S EQUI TY

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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DECEMBER 31
1997 1998

$ 871 $ 5,728

5,071 8, 446

20, 404 31,922

4,146 10, 984

5,022 --

2,760 1,213

2,653 2,072

1,513 610

42, 440 60, 975

158, 590 161, 710

248,948 242,632

997 976

8, 200 6, 367

258, 145 249, 975

$ 459,175 $ 472,660

$ 1,316 $ 1,427

3,275 5,322

2,434 1, 949

1,123 1, 008

684 1, 849

1, 643 2,019

10, 475 13, 574

41, 634 41,981

11, 297 13, 523

1, 421 909

3,034 1,711

15, 752 16, 143

23 24

393, 026 393, 026

(1, 735) 7,912

391, 314 400, 962

$ 459,175 $ 472,660



CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(IN THOUSANDS)

ELEVEN
MONTHS ONE MONTH
YEAR ENDED ENDED ENDED YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, NOVEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
1996 1997 1997 1998
OPERATI NG REVENUES:
Tel ephone 75, 950 79, 330 10, 255 121,933
Cel | ul ar 4,823 5,120 181 2,576
Total operating revenues 80, 773 84, 450 10, 436 124, 509
OPERATI NG EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and operating
expenses-t el ephone 41, 789 42, 404 6, 434 72,008
Cost of sales and operating
expenses-cel | ul ar 3,381 3,082 147 2,128
Depreci ation and anortization 15, 348 15, 823 2, 466 30, 459
Total operating expenses 60, 518 61, 309 9, 047 104, 595
OPERATI NG | NCOVE 20, 255 23,141 1, 389 19,914
OTHER | NCOVE ( EXPENSE) :
I nterest expense (3,176) (3,027) (253) (3,588)
Interest income (Note 8) 1,180 858 82 2,183
O her incone (expense) - Net (33) (298) 53 356
Total other income (expense) (2,029) (2, 467) (118) (1, 049)
| NCOVE BEFORE | NCOVE TAX
EXPENSE 18, 226 20, 674 1,271 18, 865
I NCOVE TAX EXPENSE (Note 6) 6, 737 7,746 736 9, 218
NET | NCOVE 11, 489 12,928 535 9, 647
RETAINED EARNINGS AT e e
BEG NNI NG OF PERI CD 63, 216 61, 079 -- (1, 735)
Less dividends to sharehol der 13, 626 7,080 2,270 --
RETAI NED EARNI NGS AT END
OF PERI OD $ 61,079 $ 66,927 $ (1,735) $ 7,912

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
Combined Statementsof Cash Flows
(In Thousands)

OPERATI NG ACTI VI TI ES:
Net income
Adj ustments to reconcile net incone to net cash
provi ded by operating activities:
Depreci ation and anortization
Def erred incone taxes and unanortized
investnent tax credits, net
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivabl e
Accounts payabl e
QG her current assets and liabilities, net
O her, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

I NVESTI NG ACTI VI TI ES:
Paynents for property, plant, and equi pnent
Ct her, net

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

FI NANCI NG ACTI VI TI ES:
Proceeds fromissuance of |ong-term debt
Di vi dends pai d
Paynents of |ong-term debt
Change in affiliate bal ance

Net cash used by financing activities
| NCREASE (DECREASE) | N CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS - BEG NNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUI VALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW

| NFORMATI ON:

Net assets of acquisitions contributed as paid-in capital,
i ncl udi ng push-down of goodwi |l of $32,159

Push-down of excess costs of Al askan entities from
CenturyTel acquisition

Paydown of minority interest liability through transfer of
property, plant, and equi pnent

I ncone tax paid

Interest paid

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements.
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ELEVEN MONTHS ONE MONTH
YEAR ENDED ENDED ENDED YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31 NOVEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
1996 1997 1997 1998

11, 489 12, 928 535 9, 647

15, 348 15, 823 2, 466 30, 459

1,538 1, 160 65 24

14, 476 (1,383) 3,873 (3, 644)

(6, 828) (2, 986) (1, 527) 1,479

(1, 434) (4, 329) 176 2,427

.- -- -- (2, 101)

34,589 21,213 5,588 38,291

(20, 465) (14, 575) (1, 825) (26, 799)
(146) 1,021 (1, 454) 135

(20, 611) (13, 554) (3,279) (26, 664)
1,739 .- .- .-

(13, 626) (7, 080) (2, 270) --

(1, 060) (1,129) (293) (1,322)

-- -- -- (5, 448)

(12, 947) (8, 209) (2, 563) (6, 770)
1,031 (550) (254) 4, 857

644 1,675 1,125 871

$ 1, 675 $ 1,125 $ 871 $ 5,728
$ -- $ 89, 132 $ -- $ --
-- -- 208, 389 --

- .- 1,525 --

5, 344 4,653 3, 207 600

3,510 2,706 261 3, 434
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

1. GENERAL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL--The combined financial statementsfor CenturyTel Alaska Properties (the "Company") represent the operating results of the
following legal entities ("Alaskan Entities’):

Telephone Utilitiesof Alaska, Inc. ("TUA")

Telephone Utilities of the Northland, Inc. ("TUN")

PTI Communications of Alaska, Inc. ("PTICA")

Pacific Telecom of Alaska PCS, Inc. ("PTAPCS")

Pacific Telecom Cdlular of Alaska, Inc. ("PTCA"), excluding the assets, liabilities and equity of Alaska RSA #1

TUA, TUN, PTICA, and PTAPCS were wholly owned subsidiaries of Pacific Telecom, Inc. ("PTI") and PTCA wasawholly owned subsidiary
of Pacific Telecom Cdllular, Inc., whichwas awholly owned subsidiary of PTI. Until December 1, 1997, PacifiCorp Holdings owned 100% of
the voting securities of PTI. The Company was acquired on December 1, 1997 as aresult of Century Telephone Enterprises, Inc.'s
("CenturyTel") acquisition of Pacific Telecom, Inc. (the "Acquisition™) (Note 13). The financia statements beginning December 1, 1997 reflect
the excess cost of net assets acquired and the subsegquent amortization expense which wasallocated to the Alaska properties in accordance with
purchase accounting.

TUA, TUN, PTICA, and PTAPCS became wholly owned subsidiaries of CenturyTel of the Northwest, Inc. ("CNI") whichis awholly owned
subsidiary of CenturyTel. PTCA is awholly owned subsidiary of CenturyTel Wireless, Inc. ("CT Wireless') which isawholly owned
subsidiary of CenturyTel.

The Company's primary businessiis to provide traditional and cellular telephone service to its customers which are located in the state of
Alaska. The Company wasdependent on PTI and certain subsidiaries prior to the Acquisition and is dependent upon CenturyTel and certain
CenturyTel subsidiariesto provide construction and maintenance services, materials and supplies and managerial, technical and accounting
services. Inter-company billingsinclude a return oninvestment to the related company.

The Company's telephone operations are regulated in nature and itstelephone accounting records are maintained in accordance with therules
and regulations of the Alaska Public Utilities Commission ("APUC") which substantially adhere to the rules and regulations of the Federal
Communications Commission. The Company'sregulated operations are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") No. 71, Accounting For The Effects Of Certain Types Of Regulation.

ESTIMATES--The preparation of financial statementsin conformity withgenerally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and ligbilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amountsof revenues and expenses during thereporting period. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION--Revenues are recognized when earned. The Company participates in toll revenue pools with other telephone
companies. Such pools are funded by toll revenue and/or access charges regulated by the APUC within theintrastate jurisdiction and the
Federal Communications Commission withinthe interstate jurisdiction. Much of theinterstate toll service revenue earned through various
pooling processes isinitially recorded based on estimates. These estimates are derived from interim financia statements, available separations
studies and the most recent rate of return published by the National Exchange Carriers Association. These estimates are subject to subsequent
adjustment in future accounting periods as refined operational information becomes available. Any subsequent adjustments have not been
material.
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

1. GENERAL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT--Telephone plant is stated substantially at original cost of construction. Telephone plant retired in
the ordinary course of business, together with cost of removal, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation with no gain or loss
recognized. Renewals and bettermentsof telephone plant are capitalized while repairs, as well as renewal s of minor items, are charged to
operating expense.

The Company provides depreciation for telephone plant on the straight-line method, using rates approved by the regulatory authorities.
Depreciation expense for telephone plant amounted to $13,774, $14,406, $1,737, and $23,550 for the year ended December 31, 1996, eleven
months ended November 30, 1997, one monthended December 31, 1997, and year ended December 31, 1998, respectively. Included in 1998
expense is additional depreciation of approximately $1,506 which was approved by the regulatory authorities. The composite depreciation rate
was 5.7% for the year ended December 31, 1996, 5.8% for the eleven months ended November 30, 1997 and the one month ended December
31, 1997, and 6.1% for theyear ended December 31, 1998.

Non-telephone plant is stated at cost and, whensold or retired, againor lossis recognized. Depreciation of such property is provided on the
straight-line method over its estimated service livesranging from 7 to 15 years. Depreciation for non-telephone plant amounted to $1,198,
$922, $190, and $583 for the year ended December 31, 1996, eleven monthsended November 30, 1997, onemonth ended December 31, 1997,
and the year ended December 31, 1998, respectively.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND EXCESS COST OF NET ASSETS ACQUIRED (GOODWILL)--The carrying value of long-lived assets,
including alocated goodwill, is reviewed for impairment at least annually, or whenever events or changesin circumstances indicate that such
carrying value may not be recoverable, by assessing the recoverability of such carrying value through estimated undiscounted future net cash
flows expected to be generated by the assets. The excess cost of net assetsacquired is being amortized over 40 years. Amortization expense was
$333 for theyear ended December 31, 1996, $455 during the eleven months ended November 30, 1997, $537 during the onemonth ended
December 31, 1997, and $6,326 for the year ended December 31, 1998.

INCOME TAXES--Prior to the Acquisition, the Company was included in the consolidated federal income tax return of PacifiCorp Holdings
and CenturyTel in subsequent periods. For financia accounting purposes, federal income taxes are computed and recorded as if the Company
filed a separate federal income tax return, except that, (i) in the event the Company generates a net tax loss whichis utilized in the respective
consolidated return, the Company will be given the benefit of suchloss, and (ii) incometaxes are calculated based upon the statutory tax ratein
effect for PacifiCorp prior to the Acquisition and CenturyTel and its subsidiaries for subsequent periods on a consolidated basis. The Company
periodically settles amountsowed to CenturyTel for federal income taxes. The Company isincluded in a consolidated Alaska state incometax
return.

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are established
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assetsand liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Investment tax credits related to plant have been deferred and are being amortized as a reduction of federal incometax
expense over the estimated useful lives of the assets giving rise to the credits.

Pursuant to SFAS 71, theregulatory liability, net of therelated tax impact, isbeing amortized as a reduction of federal incometax expense over
the estimated remaining lives of the assets which generated the deferred taxes.

CASH EQUIVALENTS--For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all demand deposits, central depository bank
account ("CDA") deposits, and all short-term investmentswith a maturity at date of purchase of three monthsor less to be cash equivalents.

INVESTMENTS--The Rural Telephone Bank ("RTB") requires borrowers of RTB fundsto purchase RTB stock as apercentage of loan funds
provided. These investments have been accounted for using the cost method.

ADVANCE BILLINGS--Advance hillings creditable to revenue accounts in future monthsare recorded in advance billings until theservice is
rendered.

F-39

peres e SO irsssn 2002, EDGAR Online. I nc.




CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

1. GENERAL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

EARNINGS PER SHARE--The common stock of the Company is not traded in a public market; therefore, earnings per share amounts are not
presented in accordance with SFAS 128, EARNINGS PER SHARE.

2. PCSLICENSE ACQUISITION COSTS

In early 1997, the Company was awarded three 10 MHz licenses to provide personal communicationsservices ("PCS') in Alaska. The
Company paid $3,023 for such licenses, which will be amortized over the useful economic lives once construction is complete. At thistime,
construction hasnot yet begun. These licenses areincluded in Other Assets on the balance shest.

3. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUED EXPENSES, AND CUSTOMER
DEPOSITS-The carrying amount approximates the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

OTHER INVESTMENTS--The Company's other investments are represented by itsinvestmentin RTB stock. The carrying amount of such
investment approximates the fair market value of theseinstruments.

LONG-TERM DEBT--The carrying valueof the Company'slong-term debt had afair value of $42,669 at December 31, 1997 and $45,853 at
December 31, 1998. The fair value was estimated by discounting the scheduled payment streams to present value based upon rates currently
offered to the Company for debt of similar remaining maturities. Prepayment penalties and other costs of debt retirement are not reflected in the
estimates.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The following table summarizes themajor classes of property, plant, and equipment as of December 31, 1997 and 1998:

1997 1998

CGeneral Support $ 33,508 $ 31,811
Central office 113, 040 120, 613
| Or 21, 283 5, 652
Cable and wire 221, 428 232,819
Construction in progress 5,633 9, 345
Non-regul at ed and ot her 677 8, 452

Tel ephone property, plant, and equi prent 395, 569 408, 692
Less accunul at ed depreciation (238, 228)
(248, 915)

Net tel ephone property, plant, and equi pnent 157, 341 159, 777
Wrel ess property, plant, and equi pnent 1, 340 2,617
Less accunul at ed depreciation (91)
(684)

Net wireless property, plant, and equi prent 1, 249 1, 933

Property, plant, and equi pnent, net $ 158, 590 $ 161, 710

The Company retired approximately $1,762 of telephone property, plant, and equipment and a like amount of accumulated depreciation in
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

5. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt asof December 31, 1997 and 1998 is summarized below:

1997 1998

First nortgage notes:

5.0%6.5% due in installnments to 2027 $ 29, 226 $ 28,546

7.2%9.4% due in installnments to 2020 10, 820 10, 588

10.1% 11.8% due in installnments to 2017 2,904 2,672
Unsecured note at 3% due in installnents to 2007 -- 1, 602

Subt ot al 42,950 43, 408
Less current maturities (1, 316) (1, 427)

Total |long-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 41,634 $ 41,981

The approximate annual debt maturities for the five years subsequent to December 31, 1998 are as follows: 1999, $1,427; 2000, $1,527; 2001,
$1,637; 2002, $1,755; and 2003, $1,551.

At December 31, 1998, under the most restrictive covenant of the Company'slong-term debt agreement, all of the Company's retained earnings
were available for the payment of cash dividends.

Substantially all of the Company'stelephone property, plant, and equipment is pledged to secure the first mortgage notes.
6. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense consists of the following components:

ELEVEN MONTHS ONE MONTH
YEAR ENDED ENDED ENDED YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, NOVEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
1996 1997 1997 1998
Feder al :
Current $ 4,733 $ 5, 689 $ 575 $ 7,093
Def erred 265 109 (12) (177)
St at e:
Current 1, 388 1, 708 170 2,101
Def erred 351 240 3 201
I ncome tax expense $ 6, 737 $ 7,746 $ 736 $ 9,218
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

6. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The following is a reconciliation from the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company's effective income tax rate:

ELEVEN MONTHS ONE MONTH
YEAR ENDED ENDED ENDED YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31 NOVEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER 31
1996 1997 1997 1998
Statutory federal income tax rate 35. 00% 35. 00% 35. 00% 35. 00%
Sate inconme taxes, net of federal incone tax
benefit 6. 00% 6. 00% 8. 44% 7.90%
Anortization of nondeductible excess cost of
net assets acquired -- -- 14. 20% 10. 10%
Anortization of excess deferred incone taxes (1.67)% (1.32)% (2.18)% (1.60)%
Anortization of deferred investnent tax credits (3.15)% (2.27)% (3.76)% (2.70)%
O her, net 0.78% 0. 06% 6.20% 0. 20%
Ef fective income tax rate 36.96% 37.47% 57.90% 48. 90%

The tax effects of temporary differencesthat gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assetsand deferred tax liabilitiesat December
31, 1997 and 1998 were as follows:

1997 1998
Deferred tax assets:
Regul atory liability $ 18 $ 388
Deferred investnment tax credits 991 374
O her 829 567
Total gross deferred tax assets 1, 838 1, 329
Less: Valuation allowances -- --
Net Deferred tax assets 1, 838 1, 329
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant, and equiprment, primarily due to depreciation differences (13, 088) (14, 112)
Excess costs of net assets acquired (47) (740)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (13, 135) (14, 852)
Net deferred tax liability $(11, 297) $(13,523)
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantialy all employees of the Company, except those who are membersof the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers ("IBEW"),
are covered by a pension plan (the "Plan") which is sponsored by PTI before the Acquisition and CNI subsequently which includes other
affiliated companies. The Plan provides benefits based upon employees total years of service and the highest five years compensation during
their last 10 yearsof service. The Company's portion of pensionincome was $57 during theyear ended December 31, 1996, $219 during the
eleven months ended November 30, 1997, $23 during the one month ended December 31, 1997, and $384 for the year ended December 31,
1998. Because actuarial information regarding the status of the Plan is computed for the Plan in total, the Company does not separately
determine its portion of the actuarial present value of theaccumulated plan benefits, projected benefit obligation, or net assets available for
benefits.

In accordance with the purchase agreement with Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc., formerly known as ALEC Acquisition
Corporation ("ALEC") (see Note 13), the Plan assets and obligationswill be valued at theclosing date. Based on this valuation, assets equaling
the actuarial present value of the accrued benefits of the Company'semployees, plus an additional $250, will be transferred to a replacement
plan.

The Company participates in a post retirement health care and insurance plan (the "PRB Plan") whichis sponsored by PTI prior to acquisition
and by CNI subsequently which includes other affiliated companies.

The Company recognizes the cost of other post retirement benefits over the active service period of its employees. PTI's policy was to fund
annually an amount of the post retirement benefit liability that will systematically reduce that liability using available fundsand allow
deductibility for federal income tax purposes. Due to income tax regulationsthat restrict the deductibility of certain contributions for post
retirement benefits, PTI elected to makenon-tax contributions to meet funding requirements imposed by state regulatory commissions. PTlI
recognized the transition obligation, which represents the previously unrecognized prior service cost, over a period of 20 years. Because
actuarial information regarding the status of the PRB Plan is computed for the PRB Plan intotal, PTI did not separately determineits portion of
the actuarial present value of the accumulated plan benefit, projected benefit obligations or net assets available for benefits. At December 31,
1997, the date of thelatest actuarial evaluation for the PRB Plan, plan assets were less than the projected benefit obligation by approximately
$46,246 and the unamortized portion of the transition obligation was$26,099. The Company's portion of the net periodic post-retirement
benefit cost was$846 during theyear ended December 31, 1996, $485 during the eleven monthsended November 30, 1997, $41 during the one
month ended December 31, 1997, and $471 during the year ended December 31, 1998, as follows:

Servi ce cost $ 183
I nterest cost 392
Anortization of transition obligation 116
Anorti zation of unrecognized prior service cost
(4)
Expected return on assets
(216)

Net periodic postretirenent benefit cost $ 471

At the time of adoption of SFAS 106, Employers' Accounting For Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, the Company €elected to
amortize the transition obligation, at the date of implementation, over 20 years.

In accordance with the purchase agreement with ALEC (see Note 13), the purchaser assumes theliability for post retirement benefits related to
employees that retire subsequent to theclosing date.
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

8. CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

The Company purchases certain plant materials and other services (including certain operating expenses) from PTI, CenturyTel, and other
affiliated companies. Materials and services purchased by the Company from PTI prior to acquisition and CenturyTel and its subsidiaries
subsequently totaled approximately $9,227 for the year ended December 31, 1996, $8,581 for the eleven monthsended November 30, 1997,
$1,626 for the one month ended December 31, 1997, and $29,306 (which included $15,648 of operating expenses) during theyear ended
December 31, 1998. Many of the coststhat areallocated to the Alaska companies are based on time distribution and are, therefore,
representative of what costs would have been on a stand-alone basis. General and administrative costs are allocated based on expense levels of
all companies. Such costs, when allocated to the subsidiaries, include a reasonable rate of return oninvestment to the related affiliate and,
therefore, are representative of what costs would have been on a stand-alone basis.

Prior to the Acquisition, short-term advances weremade to PTI under anagreement providing interest at the prime commercia rate for funds
held more than 90 days. Interest income on these advances was $1,052 during theyear ended December 31, 1996, $797 during the eleven
months ended November 30, 1997, and $81 during the one month ended December 31, 1997.

Subsequent to the Acquisition, the Company participates in a Central Depository Account ("CDA") with CenturyTel and other affiliates. The
Company is assessed or receivesinterest on the net amount of its CDA balance and the net accounts receivable or payableto CenturyTel and its
affiliates. Related interest income amounted to $2,156 for the year ended December 31, 1998. The rate used to calculate the related interest
income wasthe threemonth U.S. T-Bill rate. Related interest expense amounted to $637 for the year ended December 31, 1998. The rate used
to calculate the related interest expense was theweighted average rate of CenturyTel's debt.

9. BUSINESS AND CREDIT CONCENTRATIONS

The Company provides telephone services to customers (business and residential) located in the state of Alaska. Receivablesfrom connecting
companies represent the amounts due from various long distance carriers suchas AT& T and the Bell operating companies.

The ultimate realization of the Company'sbalance in the CDA discussed above is dependent upon thefinancial resources of CenturyTel.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Expenditures for property, plant, and equipment are anticipated to be approximately $19,469 for telephone operations and $615 for wireless
operations during 1999.

The Company isinvolved in variousclaims andlegal actions arisingin the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate disposition of the matterswill not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

The Company's operations are subject to federal, state and local lawsand regulations governing the use, storage, disposal of, and exposureto,
hazardous materials, the release of pollutants into the environment and the remediation of contamination. Asan owner or operator of property
and a generator of hazardous wastes, the Company could be subject to certain environmental lawsthat impose liability for the entire cost of
cleanup at contaminated sites, regardless of fault or the lawfulnessof the activity that resulted in contamination. The Company believes,
however, that its operations are in substantial compliance withapplicable environmental lawsand regulations and that thereis no material
exposure to loss related to environmental issues.
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Many of the Company's properties formerly contained, or currently contain, underground and aboveground storage tanks used for the storage of
fuel or wastes. Some of these tanks have leaked. The Company believes that known contamination caused by these leaks has been, or isbeing,
investigated or remediated. The Company cannot be sure, however, that it hasdiscovered all contamination or that the regulatory authorities
will not request additional remediation at sites that have previously undergone remediation.
11. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company isengaged in providing local exchange telephone services and cellular telephone services in Alaska. The followingtables

illustrate selected financial data for each segment:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996 TELEPHONE CELLULAR TOTAL

Operating revenues $ 75,950 $ 4,823 $ 80,773
Depreciation and anortization 14, 383 965 15, 348
Qper ating income 19,778 477 20, 255
Capi tal expenditures 19, 694 771 20, 465
ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997 TELEPHONE CELLULAR TOTAL

Oper ating revenues $ 79,330 $ 5,120 $ 84,450
Depreciation and anorti zation 15, 090 733 15, 823
Qperating income 21, 836 1, 305 23,141
Capi tal expenditures 14, 225 350 14, 575
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 TELEPHONE CELLULAR TOTAL

Operating revenues $ 10,255 $ 181 $ 10,436
Depreciation and anorti zation 2,375 91 2,466
Qperating incone 1, 446 (57) 1, 389
Capi tal expenditures 1,732 93 1, 825
Total assets 450, 155 9, 020 459, 175
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 TELEPHONE CELLULAR TOTAL

Operating revenues $ 121,933 $ 2,576 $ 124,509
Depreciation and anortization 29,734 725 30, 459
Qperating income (loss) 20, 190 (276) 19,914
Capital expenditures 26, 664 135 26, 799
Total assets 470, 649 2,011 472, 660
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
11. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

The following is areconciliation of operating income to income before income tax expense:

ELEVEN MONTHS ONE MONTH
YEAR ENDED ENDED ENDED YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, NOVEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,
1996 1997 1997 1998
Operating incone $ 20, 255 $ 23,141 $ 1, 389 $ 19,914
I nterest expense (3,176) (3,027) (253) (3,588)
I nterest incone 1,180 858 82 2,183
Gt her inconme (expense), net (33) (298) 53 356
I ncome before incone tax expense $ 18, 226 $ 20, 674 $ 1,271 $ 18, 865

12. ACCOUNTING FORTHE EFFECTS OF REGULATION

The Company currently accounts for its regulated telephone operations in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 71. Whilethe ongoing
applicability of SFAS 71 to the Company'stel ephone operations is being monitored due to the changing regulatory, competitive, and legidative
environments, the Company believes that SFAS 71 till applies. However, it is possible that changes in regulation or legislation or anticipated
changesin competition or in the demand for regulated servicesor products could result in the Company's telephone operations not being subject
to SFAS 71 in the near future. In that event, implementation of SFAS 101, Regulated Enterprises--Accounting For The Discontinuance Of
Application Of FASB Statement No. 71, would require the write-off of previously established regulatory assetsand liabilities, along with an
adjustment of certain accumulated depreciation accountsto reflect the difference between recorded depreciation and the amount of depreciation
that would have been recorded had the Company's telephone operations not been subject to rate regulation. Regulatory assets were
$45,600,000, and regulatory liabilities were $880,000. Such discontinuance of theapplication of SFAS 71 would result in a material, noncash
charge against earnings whichwould be reported as an extraordinary item. Whilethe effect of implementing SFAS 101 cannot be precisely
estimated at this time, management believes that the noncash, after-tax, extraordinary charge would be between $25,000 and $28,000.
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CENTURYTEL ALASKA PROPERTIES
NOTESTO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, ELEVEN MONTHS ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 1997,
ONE MONTH ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

13. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

On September 8, 1997, the Company acquired the outstanding stock of Polarnet, Inc., aninternet service provider. The purchase price was
approximately $1,100 and was accounted for by the purchase method. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of net
assets acquired amounted to approximately $968, whichisincluded in goodwill. The results of operations of Polarnet, Inc. from September 8,
1997 areincluded in the statement of income.

On October 6, 1997, PTI acquired the net assetsof the local exchange utilities ("PTI-Fairbanks") from the City of Fairbanks. The purchase
price wasapproximately $87 million and wasaccounted for by the purchase method. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair
value of net assets acquired amounted to approximately $31 million, whichisincluded in goodwill. The results of operations of PTI-Fairbanks
from October 6, 1997 are included in the statements of income. Assetsand liabilities acquired wereas follows:

Fair val ue of assets acquired $ 86, 750
Cash paid for net assets
(85, 000)

Liabilities assumed $ 1,750

On December 1, 1997, PTI was sold to CenturyTel for approximately $2.2 billion (including assumed debt). As aresult of this transaction, the
Company recorded all previously retained earnings as paid-in capital and pushed down excess costs of approximately $208 million to the
Alaskan entitiesto reflect the changefrom PTI'sto CenturyTel's basis of accounting.

In August 1998 CNI and CT Wireless entered into a definitive agreement to sall the stock of the Company to ALEC for approximately $409
million, subject to certain adjustments. The transaction is anticipated to close in 1999 subject to regulatory approvals and various closing
conditions.

14. YEAR 2000 (Unaudited)

The Company has initiated a plan (" ear 2000 Plan") to identify, assess, and remediate"Y ear 2000" issues within each of itssignificant
computer programs and certain equipment which contain micro-processors. The Year 2000 Plan is addressing the issue of computer programs
and embedded computer chipsbeing unable to distinguish between the year 1900 and the year 2000, if a program or chip usesonly two digits
rather than four to define the applicable year. The Company has divided the Y ear 2000 Plan into four major phases--assessment, planning,
implementation, and testing. After completing the assessment and planning phases earlier this year, the Company is currently inthe
implementation and testing phases. Systemswhich have been determined not to be Year 2000 compliant are being either replaced or
reprogrammed, and thereafter tested for Y ear 2000 compliance. The Y ear 2000 Plan anticipates that by October 1999 theimplementation and
testing phases will be completed.

The Company isidentifying and contacting critical suppliers and customers whose computerized systems interface with the Company's systems,
regarding their plans and progress in addressing their Y ear 2000 issues. The Company has received varying information from such third parties
on the state of compliance or expected compliance. Contingency plansare being devel oped in the event that any critical supplier or customer is
not compliant.

The failure to correct amaterial Y ear 2000 problem could result in an interruptionin, or afailure of, certain normal business activities or
operations. Such failures could materially and adversely affect the Company'soperations, liquidity, and financial condition. Due to the general
uncertainty inherent in the Y ear 2000 problem, resulting in part from the uncertainty of the Y ear 2000 readiness of third-party suppliersand
customers, the Company is unable to determine at this time whether consequences of Y ear 2000 failures will have a material impact on the
Company'soperations, liquidity, or financial condition.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly Municipality of Anchorage:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund (Utility) as of December 31, 1998
and 1997, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for each of the yearsin the
three-year period ended December 31, 1998. Thesefinancial statements are theresponsibility of the Utility's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that weplan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Anaudit includes examining, on atest
basis, evidence supporting the amountsand disclosures in the financia statements. Anaudit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basisfor our opinion.

Thefinancia statements present only the Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund and are not intended to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the Municipality of Anchorage in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In our opinion, the financia statementsreferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Municipality of

Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and theresults of itsoperations and its cash flows for each of theyears
in the three-year period ended December 31, 1998 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl KPM5G
LLP

Anchorage, Alaska
February 19, 1999
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Accounts receivable, net of uncollectibles of $1,586 and $1, 343
in 1998 and 1997

I nvent ori es

Total current assets
RESTRI CTED CASH
RESTRI CTED | NVESTMENTS
NET TELEPHONE PLANT
OTHER ASSETS
Cellul ar |icenses
Mnority investnents
& her

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

FUND EQUI TY AND LI ABI LI TI ES
CURRENT LI ABI LI TI ES

Accounts payabl e
Accrued i nterest

Conpensat ed absences payabl e

Accrued enpl oyee benefits

Advance billings and custoner deposits
Current installnments of |ong-term obligations

Total current liabilities
LONG TERM OBLI| GATI ONS
FUND EQUI TY
Ret ai ned Ear ni ngs

TOTAL FUND EQUI TY AND LI ABI LI TI ES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
STATEMENTSOF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

(IN THOUSANDS)

OPERATI NG REVENUES
Local tel ephone
Cel I ul ar
Long di stance

Total operating revenue
OPERATI NG EXPENSES

Cost of sales and operating
expenses- -1 ocal

Cost of sales and operating
expenses--cel | ul ar

Cost of sales and operating
expenses--1ong di stance

Depreci ation and anortization

Total operating expenses

OPERATI NG | NCOVE
I nterest expense
Equity in earnings (loss) of minority
i nvest ments
I nterest incone
O her incone (expense), net

Net ot her expense
NET | NCOVE
RETAI NED EARNI NGS, JANUARY 1
Utility Revenue Distribution to

Muni ci pality of Anchorage
RETAI NED EARNI NGS, PERI CD END

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$ 116, 555
21, 845
1,541

19, 009
(9, 308)

158
2, 540
(281)

132, 596

$ 121, 057
29, 225
6, 815

22, 893
(9, 394)

(2, 945)

2,967
49

136, 414



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE

TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
STATEMENTSOF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

CASH FLOANS FROM OPERATI NG ACTI VI TI ES

I ncome from operations

Adj ustments to reconcile income from operations to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and anortization
Provi sion for uncollectible accounts
Loss on disposition of fixed assets
Non-regul ated income and ot her

Changes in assets and liabilities which increase (decrease) cash

Accounts receivable
Inventory of materials,
QO her assets

Accounts payabl e

suppl i es,

and goods for resale

Accrued enpl oyee benefits and conpensated absences payabl e

Custoner deposits
Advance billings
Qher liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOAS FROM FI NANCI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Uility revenue distribution--Mnicipality of Anchorage
Cash flows fromcapital and related financing activities
Acqui sition of tel ephone plant
Short-term advance from Miunicipality of Anchorage Genera
Principal paynents on |ong-term obligations
Bond i ssuance
Interest payments on |ong-term obligations
Cost of renoval of tel ephone plant

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activ

CASH FLOAS FROM | NVESTI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Interests
Mnority investments
Proceeds from sale of restricted investnents
Purchase of restricted investnents

Net cash used by investing activities

NET CHANGE | N CASH
CASH, JANUARY 1

CASH, PERI OD END (including Restricted Cash (see Note 1))

NON- CASH CAPI TAL, FI NANCI NG AND | NVESTI NG ACTI VI TI ES
Retirement of tel ephone plant
Wite down of long-terminvestnents
Fi nanced equi prent purchased
Total Non-cash Capital,

Fi nancing, and Investing Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1996 1997 1998
$ 20, 477 $ 19, 005 $ 22,548
20, 496 26, 839 29, 608
1,112 1,113 1, 643
288 100 174
439 43 95
(1996) (4, 040) (4, 160)
159 (504) 1,341
(364) 120 1,244
(25) 4,172 1, 155
1,198 194 (713)
(620) (262) (292)
306 558 428
(350) (697) 136
42,120 46, 641 53, 207
(8,100) (8,300) (8,100)
(24, 958) (35, 187) (29, 644)
(12, 000) -- .-
(22,002) (19, 617) (17, 340)
43, 659 24,790 29, 592
(6,513) (7,952) (8,011)
(181) (650) (77)
(21, 995) (38, 616) (25, 480)
2,347 2,325 2,968
(2,398) (5,227) (7,283)
12, 865 12,109 13,912
(13, 601) (12, 872) (15, 256)
(787) (3, 665) (5, 659)
11, 238 (3,940) 13,968
5,243 16, 481 12,541
$ 16, 481 $ 12,541 $ 26, 509
$ 7,124 $ 9,077 $ 3,401
- - - - 1, 888
-- -- 6, 655
$ 7,124 $ 9,077 $ 11,944

I nc.




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description Of Business

The accompanying financial statements includethe activities of the Telephone Utility Fund (Utility), a public utility of the Municipality of
Anchorage (Municipality), ATU Communications, Inc. (ACl), aholding company, MACtdl, Inc. (MACtel) and ATU Long Distance, Inc. (ATU
LD), wholly owned subsidiaries of ACI. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

The regulated arm of the Utility provides local telecommunications service and access to long distance telecommunications serviceto the
Anchorage Bowl area and to Girdwood and other small communities in the area south of the Anchorage Bow! both inside and outside the
boundaries of the Municipality. The nonregulated arm of the Utility sells, rents, and leases customer premise eguipment to customers
throughout the State of Alaska. MACtel isawholesale/retail cellular service provider that operatesin Anchorage, the Kenai Peninsula, and the
North Star and North Slope Boroughs. ATU LD provides long distance service to customers in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, the Kenai
Peninsula and the Matanuska Valley. Approximately 70% of the Utility's employees are covered under alabor contract with the International
Brotherhood of Electrica Workers (IBEW) which expires on August 31, 1999.

On January 5, 1998, MACtel acquired certain assetsof Pacific Telecom Cellular of Alaska RSA #1, Inc. and stock of Prudhoe
Communications, Inc., collectively d/b/aCellulink, a cellular service company in Fairbanks, Alaska for $8,900.

The purchase price wasallocated as follows:

Property and equi pnent $
1,817
Cel lular licenses
7,083

$
8, 900

Results of operations for the acquired companies have been included in 1998 operations since thedate of acquisition. Pro forma information for
prior periods is not presented because it is not material.

Sale Of Utility

During 1998, the Municipal Assembly accepted a bid in theamount of $295,000 from Alaska Communications Systems, Inc. to acquire
substantially al of the assets and assume substantialy all of the liabilities of the Utility. The sale will become effective after review and
approval by the Alaska Public Utilities Commission (APUC), the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), and non-action by the United
States Department of Justice under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. The sales price will be adjusted based upon levelsof cash and net plant on the
closing date.

Regulation

The Utility is subject to rate regulation by the FCC for interstate telecommunication service, and the APUC for intrastate and local exchange
telecommunication service. The Utility, as required by the FCC, accounts for such activity separately.

The services of ATU LD are subject to rate regulation as a non-dominant interexchange carrier by the FCC for interstate telecommunication
services and the APUC for intrastate telecommunication services. The operations of MACtel are not subject to rate regulation.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BasisOf Accounting
The accounting records of the Utility conform to Part 32 Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the FCC and the APUC.

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on theaccrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies of the Utility arein conformity
with the requirements of the FCC and the APUC. The Utility preparesits financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”. Accounting under SFASNo. 71 is
appropriate as long as rates are established by or subject to approval by independent third-party regulators; rates aredesigned to recover the
specific enterprise's cost-of-service; and in view of demand for service, it isreasonable to assumethat rates are set at levels that will recover
costsand can be collected from customers.

Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting And Financial Reporting For Proprietary Funds And
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Utility applies all applicable GASB pronouncements and all Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and I nterpretations, Accounting Principles, Board Opinions and Accounting Research
Bulletins, unlessthey conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. ATU follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 27 to account for
pension and post-retirement costs, which differsfrom FAS Statement No. 87 and FAS Statement No. 106 regarding the methodology for
calculation of such costsand how they arerecorded and disclosed. Specificaly, GASB Statement No. 27 requiresthat annual pension cost be
equal to the annual required contributions of the employer (ARC) to the plan for that year calculated via an actuarial valuation performed in
accordance withspecific parameters. These parameters address such matters as thefrequency of actuarial valuations, acceptable actuarial cost
methods, asset valuation methodol ogy, minimum and maximum amortization periods and the amortization method. Generally, employersare
required to record a net pension obligation (NPO) if the ARC calculated in accordance with the parameters exceeds actual contributions made.
Annual pension cost is calculated asthe ARC, one year'sinterest on the NPO, and certain required adjustments. Under GASB Statement No.
27, employers are permitted to apply the measurement and recognition requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 to postemployment healthcare
benefits.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 27, the Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund recorded annual pension cost of $1,041,000 for
the year ended December 31, 1998, of which $749,520 related to pension benefits and $291,480 related to postemployment healthcare benefits.
Asof December 31, 1998 and 1997, thereisno NPO.

Under FASB Statement No. 87, Employers Accounting For Pensions, thefollowing components areincluded in the net pension cost recognized
for a period by an employer sponsoring a defined benefit pension plan:

- Service cost

- Interest cost

- Actual return on plan assets, if any

- Amortization of unrecognized prior service cogt, if any

- Gain or loss (including the effects of changesin assumptions) to the extent recognized

- Amortization of the unrecognized net obligation (and loss or cost) or unrecognized net asset (and gain) existing at the date of initial
application of FASB Statement No. 87.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The service component of net periodic pension cost, the projected benefit obligation, and the accumulated benefit obligation are based on an
attribution of pension benefits to periods of employee service and on the use of actuarial assumptions to calculate the actuaria present value of
those benefits. Actuarial assumptions reflect thetime value of money (discount rate) and the probability of payments (assumptions asto
mortality, turnover, early retirement, and so forth).

Under FASB Statement No. 87, aliability (unfunded accrued pension cost) isrecognized if net periodic pension cost recognized pursuant to
FASB Statement No. 87 exceeds amounts the employer has contributed to the plan. Anasset (prepaid pension cost) isrecognized if net periodic
pension cost isless than amounts the employer has contributed to the plan.

If the accumulated benefit obligations exceeds the fair value of plan assets, theemployer shall recognize in the statement of financial position a
liability (including unfunded accrued pension cost) that is at least equal to the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation. Recognition of an
additional minimum liability is required in certain other circumstances.

Accounting for post retirement benefits pursuant to FASB Statement No. 106, Employers Accounting For Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions, is similar to the accounting proscribed for pension benefits in accordance withFASB Statement No. 87.

It is not practicable to quantify the differences between the statements without an additional compl ete actuarial valuation because the actuarial
calculations for FAS Statement No. 87 purposes require different assumptions and represent different measurement bases. Other differences
between GASB and FAS have been evaluated and have been determined not to be material for the periods presented.

In preparing thefinancial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assetsand liabilities asof the date of the balance sheet and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ fromthose estimates. The more significant accounting and reporting policies and estimates applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements arediscussed below.

Cash Pools And Restricted | nvestments

The Municipality usesa central treasury to account for all cash and investmentsto maximizeinterest income. Interest income from cash pool
investments is allocated to the Utility based on its monthly closing cash pool equity balance. Restricted investmentsare recorded at fair value.
All amounts in the cash pools and in restricted investments areinterest bearing and consist primarily of repurchase agreements, banker's
acceptances or U.S. Government securities. The Utility adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting And Financial Reporting For Certain
Investments And For External Investment Pools, during 1998. The impact of adopting this statement wasnot material to thefinancial
Statements.

Under GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits With Financid Institutions, Investments (Including Repurchase Agreements), And Reverse Repurchase
Agreements, the Utility's cash and investments are classified in credit risk category 1 because they are insured or registered or are securities
held by the Utility or its agent in the Utility's name.

Statement Of Cash Flows

The Utility has adopted GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows Of Proprietary And Nonexpendable Trust Funds And Governmental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Utility has defined cash as the demand deposits
and investments maintained in the general and construction cash pools, including restricted and unrestricted balances, as well as cash balances
maintained separately from the cash pools. Maturity periods of investmentshave been disregarded, since the Utility uses the general and
construction cash pools as demand deposit accounts.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash consists of the following at December 31:

1996 1997 1998
Equity in general cash pool 14, 427 9, 401 19, 254
Cash 963 1,073 6, 501
Total cash 15, 390 10, 474 25, 755
Amounts included with restricted investnents:
Equity in construction cash pool -- 927 --
Equity in general cash pool reserved for custoner deposits 1,091 830 537
Cash included in revenue bond reserve investnents -- 310 217
$16, 481 $12, 541 $26, 509

Inventories

The Utility'sinventories, consisting primarily of parts and supplies, are valued at thelower of weighted average cost or market.

Telephone Plant
Telephone plant is stated at cost. The additions to telephone plant in service are recorded at the original cost of contracted services, direct
materials and labor, and indirect overhead charges. When property isretired, the cost of the property unit, plus removal costs, lesssalvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation. Gain or loss on theretirement of regulated telephone plant is not recognized except for extraordinary
retirements.
The Utility's depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the assets. Current rates on regulated plant were
implemented January 1, 1997 and were based on APUC Docket U-96-78. MACtel and ATU LD property and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line and declining balance methods over the estimated useful asset lives.

The estimated lifein years of major plant and equipment categories follows:
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ESTI MATED

PLANT AND EQUI PMENT LI FE
Bui | di ngs

56

Central office equipnent

9-10

Cable, wire and conduit

12- 46

Furni ture, conputers and support equi pnent
7-22

Vehi cl es

11-19

Leasehol d i nprovenents

2-3

Nonr egul at ed

3-10

Minority Investments
Minority investmentsconsist of investments in companies which are accounted for using the equity method.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)
(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cellular Licenses
Cellular licensesare stated at net book value. Amortization is computed on the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 40 years.
Discount On Revenue Bonds Payable
The discount on revenue bonds payable is amortized over the life of the related bond issue using the effective interest method.

Revenue Recognition

Recurring revenues are billed one month in advance and are deferred until the month earned. Nonrecurring revenues arebilled in arrears and
are recognized when earned.

During 1998 the Utility participated in both interstate and intrastate common line pooled settlements. During 1998 the Utility did not participate
in any traffic-sensitive pools. Pooled revenuesare based on settlements with the applicable pool's administrator. Intrastate pooled revenuesare
settled on a monthly basis withthe Alaska Exchange Carrier Association (AECA) and are final at the time of settlement. Participation in the
AECA pool was discontinued effective January 1, 1999. Interstate pooled revenues are settled on a monthly basiswith the National Exchange
Carrier Association (NECA). The NECA settlements may be adjusted for a period of up to twenty-four months. Interstate traffic sensitive
revenue is based on rates and charges defined in the Utility's interstate tariff approved by the FCC. Interstate traffic sensitive revenue is
recognized when earned for both recurring and nonrecurring charges.

To theextent that disputes arise over revenue settlement procedures, the Utility's policy isto defer revenue collected until settlement
methodol ogies are resolved and finalized.

Municipal Utility Service Assessment

The Municipal Utility Service Assessment (MUSA) is assessed by the Municipality and is calculated based on the net book value of telephone
plant in theprior year. Net book value for each tax district is multiplied by the current mill rate to determine the assessment. The Utility also
pays a grossreceipt tax, whichis 1.25% of gross operating revenues, excluding nonregulated revenues.

Advertising
Advertising costs areexpensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Income Taxes
The Internal Revenue Code provides that grossincome for tax purposes doesnot includeincome accruing to a state or territory, or any political
subdivision thereof, whichis derived fromthe exercise of any essential governmental function or from any public utility. The Utility isa public
utility of theMunicipality and istherefore exempt from federal and state incometaxes. ACl and its subsidiaries are exempt from federal and

state incometaxes because ACI is a holding company owned 100% by the Utility.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
GASB NO. 27
The Utility adopted GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting For Pensions By State And Loca Governmental Employers, during 1998. GASB No.
27 establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and display of pension expense and related liabilities, assets, note disclosure and
applicable required supplementary information in thefinancial reports of stateand local governmental employers. The impact of adopting
GASB No. 27 was not material to the financial statements.
Impairment Of Long-Lived Assets
The Utility has adopted FASB Statement No. 121, Accounting For The Impairment Of Long-Lived Assets And For Long-Lived AssetsTo Be
Disposed Of. Under the provisions of this statement, the Utility hasevaluated its long-lived assets for financial impairments and will continueto
evaluate them if events or changesin circumstanceindicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be fully recoverable.
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the December 31, 1997 and 1996 financial statementsto conform to the current year's presentation.

(2) TELEPHONE PLANT

A summary of telephone plant and equipment at December 31, follows:

1997 1998
Plant in Service
Cable, wire and conduit $ 166, 055 $ 169, 705
Central office equipnent 124,199 126, 364
Bui | di ngs 43, 908 44, 207
Furniture, conputers and support equi prment 21, 580 21, 380
Non-r egul at ed equi pnent 30, 413 36, 269
Vehi cl es 7,523 7,499
Land 5,101 5, 168
Leasehol d i nmprovenents 468 741
399, 247 411, 333
Less accumul ated depreciation (162, 990)
(187, 179)
Net plant in service 236, 257 224,154
Construction work in progress 14, 412 33, 549
Net tel ephone pl ant $ 250, 669 $ 257,703
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE

TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998

(3) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

(IN THOUSANDS)

Long-term obligations consist of the following at December 31:

Bonds payable:
1997
1993 Series, effective interest rate of 5.49% due in 2013 $ 17,390
1994 Series, effective interest rate of 4.38% due in 2010 66, 210
1996 Series, effective interest rate of 5.71% due in 2016 42,745
1997 Series, effective interest rate of 5.18% due in 2017 25, 000
1998 Series, effective interest rate of 4.44% due in 2010 --
151, 345
Less: Unanortized |oss on refunding (2,295)
Less: Current portion (14, 705)
Less: Unanortized discount (257)
Less: Unanortized prem um 238
Net | ong-term revenue bonds payabl e 134, 326
Equi pment financing obligations, interest rates range from approxi mately
4-5% final paynent due in 2004 --
Less: Current portion --
Net equi prent financing obligations --
Not e payabl e:
Not e payable, effective interest rate of 5.98% due in 1999 2,187
Less: Current portion (2,014)
Net note payabl e 173
Arbi trage payabl e 727
Total |ong-term obligations $ 135, 226

Debt service requirements are the following for the years ended December 31.:

EGAF
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Long-Term Obligations

2002.
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(16, 370)
(226)
678



15, 141
2004- 2008
60, 041
2009- 2013
39, 989
2014- 2017
19, 435
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
(3) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

The 1993 revenue bond covenants require the establishment of reserves over afive-year period equal to the maximum annual debt service on all
outstanding bonds. The 1994 refunding bond covenants require establishment of areservein the amount of $9,750. The 1996 revenue bond
covenants require an amount equal to the lesser of $4,400 or the maximum annual debt serviceto be funded in equal installments over four
years. The 1997 revenue bond covenants require an amount equal to thelesser of $2,500 or the maximum annual debt serviceto be funded in
equal installments over four years. The 1998 revenue bond covenants require an amount equal to the lesser of $3,000 or the maximum annual
debt service to be funded in equal installmentsover four years. The revenue bond covenants further stipulate that revenues less expenses will be
equal to at least 1.4 times the debt service requirements for that year. Expenses are defined as costsfor operation and maintenance of the
system, excluding depreciation and MUSA for each year. For the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, the Utility complied with
the revenue bond covenants.

(4) REFUNDING OF LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In 1994, the Utility issued refunding bond issues for the purpose of redeeming certain bond issues when they become due or callable. The net
proceeds of the refunding bond issue were used to purchase US Government securities which weredeposited in anirrevocable trust with an
escrow agent to provide al future debt service paymentson therefunded bonds. Since payment of these advance refunded issues has been
provided, asdescribed above, neither the liability nor the assetsirrevocably pledged, including related interest income and expense, are
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

Defeased bonds as of December 31, 1998 total $11,390 for the 1990 issue.
(5) RETIREMENT PLANS
Substantialy all employees are covered by one of thefollowing plans.

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Plan
The IBEW Plan isaunion sponsored defined benefit pension plan for members of the IBEW #1547 Union. The Utility contributed $3.67 per
compensable employee hour to the Alaska Electrical Trust Fundin 1998, 1997 and 1996. Utility contributions to this plan were $3,130, $3,379
and $3,608 for the yearsended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. The hourly rate paid by the Utility is determined by the
collective bargaining process. The Utility's obligation for IBEW employee retirement islimited to the amount paid to the Alaska Electrical
Trust Fund.

State Of Alaska Public Employees Retirement System Plan

Asdiscussed in note 1, the Utility adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting For Pensions By State And Local
Governmental Employers (GASB 27), in 1998.

State Of Alaska Public Employees Retirement System
A. Plan Description
The Utility contributes to the State of Alaska Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), a defined benefit, agent multiple-employer public
employee retirement system which wasestablished and is administered by the State of Alaska (State) to provide pension, postemployment
healthcare, death and disability benefits to eigible employees.
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5. RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

All full-time Utility employees not covered by the IBEW Plan are eligible to participate in PERS. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State L egislature.

Eachfiscal year, PERS issues a publicly available financia report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box
110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by calling (907) 465-4460.

B. Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

Employee contribution rates are 6.75% as required by State statute. The funding policy for PERS provides for periodic employer contributions
at actuarially determined rates that, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll, are sufficientto accumulate sufficient assets to pay

benefits when due.

The Utility's annual pension cost for the current year and therelated information is as follows:

Contribution rates

Enpl oyee

Enpl oyer
Annual pension cost
Contri butions nade
Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost nethod
Anortization nethod
Anortization period
Asset val uation met hod
Actuarial assunptions

Inflation rate

I nvest ment return

Proj ected salary increase

Health cost trend

$750
June 30, 1996
Projected unit credit
Level dollar, open
Rol ling 25 years
5-year snoothed market

4%
8. 25%
5. 50%

N A

The components of annual pension cost for the year ended December 31, 1998 are as follows:

EGAF
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POST- EMPLOYMENT
HEALTHCARE

1.89%
2.47%
$291
$291
Sane
Sane
Same
Sane
Samne

Sane
Sane

5. 50%



Annual required contribution (ARC
$1, 041

Interest on the net pension obligation (NPO

Adjustnment to the ARC

Annual pension cost (APQC)
1, 041

Contri buti ons made

1, 041

I ncrease in NPO

NPO, begi nning of year
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

(5) RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Three year trend information follows:

PERCENTAGE COF

YEAR ENDED APC
DECEMBER 31 APC CONTRI BUTED NPO
Pensi on 1996 $ 1,032 100% $ --
1997 827 100% --
1998 750 100% --
Post - enpl oynent heal t hcare 1996 $ 382 100% $ --
1997 306 100% --
1998 291 100% --

In thecurrent year (the transition year), the Utility determined, in accordance with provisions of GASB No. 27, that no pension liability (asset)
existed to PERS and there wasno previously reported liability (asset) to PERS.

Information regarding funding progress follows:

UNFUNDED

ACTUARI AL
ACTURI AL ACCRUED UAAL AS A
ACTURI AL ACTURI AL ACCRUED LI ABILITY PERCENTAGE OF

VALUATI ON YEAR VALUE OF PLAN LI ABILITY ( ASSET) FUNDED COVERED COVERED

ENDED JUNE 30 ASSETS (AAL) (UAAL) RATI O PAYROLL PAYROLL
Pensi on benefits 1995 $ 5,417 $ 4,457 $ (960) 122%  $11, 288 -9%
1996 6, 656 5,702 (954) 117% 11, 436 -8%
1997 10, 180 7,419 (2,761) 137% 12, 290 -22%
Post - enpl oyment heal t hcare benefits 1995 $ 2,036 $ 1,675 $ (361) 122% 11, 288 -3%
1996 2,565 2,198 (367) 117% 11, 436 -3%
1997 3,79 2,765 (1, 029) 137% 12, 290 -8%
Tot al 1995 $ 7,453 $ 6,132 $(1,321) 122%  $11, 288 -12%
1996 9,221 7,900 (1, 321) 117% 11, 436 -11%
1997 13,974 10, 184 (3,790) 137% 12, 290 -31%

(6) OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Municipality offers itsemployees, including employees of the Utility, adeferred compensation plan (Plan) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, availableto al Municipal employees, permitsthem to defer a portion of their salary until future
years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. Itisthe
opinion of theMunicipality's legal counsel that the Municipality has no liability for losses under the Plan but does have the duty of duecare that
would be reguired of an ordinary prudent investor.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND

NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)

(6) OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
The municipality believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditorsin the future.

In accordance with labor agreements, IBEW employees medical/dental coverage is provided through the Alaska Electrical Health and Welfare
Trust Fund. Utility contributions to thisfund were $2,859, $3,143 and $2,888 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996,
respectively.

(7) MINORITY INVESTMENTS

Minority investmentsheld consist of the followingat December 31:

1997 1998 OMNMERSH P %

Al askan Choi ce Tel evi sion, LLC $ 4,627 $ 2,651
33%
Al aska Network Systems, Inc. 2,353 2,015
47%
I nternet Al aska, |nc. 803 500
30%
Security One, LLC 200 369
20%

$ 7,983 $ 5,535

The Utility is one of three membersof alimited liability company, Alaskan Choice Television, LLC (ACTV). ACTV has accumul ated
substantial losses since inception and is not generating sufficient cash flow to sustain operations. These factors, among others, indicate that
ACTV may be unable to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. ACTV's continuation as a going concern is dependent
upon its ability to attain additional equity and debt financing and achieve positive cash flow and profitability. ACTV isin negotiation with a
potential investor whowill provide working capital. The other two members of the limited liability company have agreed to sell their interests
tothisinvestor. ACTV expectsto complete this transaction in the second quarter of 1999. Additionally, ACTV isin discussion with several
financial institutions to provide the necessary debt financing. Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18,
"The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock”, the Utility assessed the recoverability of its investment in ACTV
during 1998 and adjusted the carrying value of theinvestment to its estimated fair value resulting in a noncash impairment loss of
approximately $1,500.

(8) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
I ntragover nmental Charges
Certain general and administrative functions of the Municipality, including data processing, workers compensation insurance and

medical/dental/life insurance, are centralized and the related cost is allocated to the variousfunds of the Municipality, including the Utility.
Such costs allocated to the Utility totaled $3,187, $3,672, and $3,204 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996, respectively.

These costs are alocated to ATU fromthe Municipality of Anchorage through an inter-governmental charge system ("1GC") based upon ATU's
proportionate share of certain cost drivers, such as manned positions, building square footage or number of transactions processed, depending
upon the type of cost being allocated. Certain IGC's are based upon work ordersfor specific projects between departments. Management
believes that the methodology utilized is reasonable. It is not practicable to quantify what such costs would have been on a stand-alone basis.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998

(IN THOUSANDS)
(9) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of afinancial instrument represents theamount at which theinstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other thanin aforced sale or liquidation. Significant differences can arise between the fair value and carrying amount of
financial instruments that are recognized at historical cost amounts.

The following methods and assumptionswere used by the Utility in estimating fair value disclosures for financial instruments:

Cash, restricted investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accrued interest, customer deposits and accrued
employee benefits--The carrying amounts at December 31, 1998 and 1997 approximate the fair values due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Long-term debt--The fair value of the Utility's long-term debt is estimated by discounting the future cash flows of the variousinstruments at
rates currently available to the Utility for similar debt instruments of comparable maturities.

The carrying amount of long-term debt and itsestimated fair value at December 31 are as follows:

1997 1998
Carryi ng anount $153, 532
$172, 847
Fair val ue 161, 000
181, 000

(10) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Utility has adopted FASB Statement No. 131, Disclosures About Segments Of An Enterprise And Related Information. The Utility has
three reportable segments: local telephone, long distance and cellular. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described
in the summary of significant accounting policies. Each reportable segment is a strategic business offering different services and is managed

separately.

The following table illustrates selected financial data for each segment.
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YEAR ENDED 1996

Qperating incone (loss)
Depreci ation and anorti zation
Capi tal expenditures

Total assets

YEAR ENDED 1997

Qperating i ncone (| oss)
Depreci ation and anorti zation
Capital expenditures

Total assets

YEAR ENDED 1998

Qperating incone (loss)
Depreci ation and anorti zation
Capi tal expenditures

Total assets

LOCAL
TELEPHONE

$ 17, 850

Dywret Fr.mrwz".m

$

$
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114
664

1, 757

(3,744)
164
275

2,532

EDGAR Onl i ne,

I nc.

CELLULAR
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE
TELEPHONE UTILITY FUND
NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 1996, 1997 AND 1998
(IN THOUSANDS)
(11) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Construction Commitments
The Municipal Assembly has approved the Utility's1999 capital budget of $29,200.

Contingencies

The Utility isinvolved in various claimsand legal actionsarising in the ordinary course of business. Inthe opinion of management, the ultimate
disposition of the matterswill not have a material adverse effect onthe Utility'sfinancial position or results of operations.
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EXHIBIT 12.1
ALASKA COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
STATEMENT RE: COMPUTATION OF RATIOS

FOR THE YEARSENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999
(UNAUDITED, IN THOUSANDS)

2000 1999
Ear ni ngs:
Rati o of Earnings to Fixed Charges:
I ncome from continui ng operations $( 25, 205) $(22, 211)
Add:
Equity in loss of minority investnents 303 198
I ncone taxes (197) (301)
Fi xed charges 65, 131 39, 731
Ear ni ngs $ 40,032 $ 17,417
Fi xed Char ges:
Interest and debt expense per statenents of incone
(including allocation of funds used during construction) $ 64,710 $ 39,624
Estimate of interest within rental expense 421 107
Fi xed charges $ 65,131 $ 39,731
Ratio of Earnings to fixed charges 0.61 0.44

The amount of the deficiency for years 2000 and 1999 is $25,099 and $22,314, respectively. The deficiency represents the amount needed to
achieve aratio of 1:1. The Company did not have registered debt or any operations prior to 1999.
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SUBSI DI ARY

Al aska Communi cati ons Systens Hol di ngs,

I nc.
ALEC Acqui sition Sub Corp.
ACS of the Northland, Inc.
ACS of Al aska, Inc.
ACS of Fairbanks, |nc.
ACS of Anchorage, Inc.
ACS Wreless, Inc.
ACS Long Di stance,
ATU LD License Sub, Inc.
ATU Conmuni cati ons, |nc.
Paci fic Tel ecom of Al aska PCS, |Inc.
Peni nsul a Cel | ul ar Services, |nc.
ACS Tel evi sion, LLC
ACS Internet, Inc.
ACS Messagi ng, Inc.
ACS | nfosource, Inc.
ACS of Al aska License Sub, I|nc.
ACS of the Northland License Sub,
ACS of Fairbanks License Sub, Inc.
ACS of Anchorage License Sub, Inc.
ACS Wrel ess License Sub, Inc.
ACS Long Di stance License Sub,
ACS Tel evi sion License Sub, Inc

I nc.

I nc

I nc.

DBA

ACS,
ACS,
ACS,
ACS,

ACS,

EGAF
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EXHIBIT 21.1

ACS Local
ACS Local
ACS Local
ACS Local

SUBSIDIARIESOF THE COMPANY

Service
Servi ce
Service
Servi ce

ACS Long Di stance

2002.
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EXHIBIT 23.1
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS CONSENT

We consent to theincorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-92091 of Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. on
Form S-8 of our reports on thefollowing financia statements of the following companies (for the periods indicated) appearing in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. for theyear ended December 31, 2000:

- Our report dated February 20, 2001 on the consolidated balance sheetsof Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999 and therelated consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity, and cash flows for theyears ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999.

- Our report dated March 24, 1999 on the consolidated balance sheet of Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1998 and the related consolidated statement of cash flowsfor the period from July 16, 1998 (date of inception) through
December 31, 1998.

- Our report dated March 25, 1999 on the combined financia statements of CenturyTel Alaska Properties as of December 31, 1997 andfor the
year ended December 31, 1996, the eleven monthsended November 30, 1997, and one month ended December 31, 1997.

/'s/ DELO TTE & TOUCHE
LLP

Portl and, Oregon
March 12, 2001
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EXHIBIT 23.3

The Board of Directors
CenturyTd, Inc.:

We consent to theincorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (No. 333-92091) on Form S-8 of Alaska Communications Systems

Group, Inc., of our report dated February 26, 1999, on CenturyTel's Alaska Properties asof and for the year ended December 31, 1998, which
report appears in the December 31, 2000, annual report on Form 10-K of Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.

/sl KPMG
LLP

Shreveport, Louisiana
March 12, 2001

56

swneet ox SO asim 2002, EDGAR Onl i ne, I nc.




EXHIBIT 235
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund

We consent to incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (No. 333-92091) on Form S-8 of Alaska Communications Systems
Group, Inc. of our report dated February 19, 1999 relating to the balance sheets of the Municipality of Anchorage Telephone Utility Fund as of
December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flowsfor each of the
yearsin thethree-year period ended December 31, 1998, which report appears in the December 31, 2000 annual report on Form 10-K of Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc. Our report contains a paragraph which emphasizes that the financia statements represent the financial
position and results of operations of theMunicipality of Anchorage, Alaska, Telephone Utility Fund and not the Municipality of Anchorage,
Alaskataken as awhole.

/sl KPMG
LLP

Anchor age, Al aska
March 12, 2001
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